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NOTICE TO THE MEMBERS

Shorter Notice is hereby given that the Second (2"%) Annual General Meeting of the Members of
Aguapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as Advaya Chemical Industries Limited) (the
“Company”) will be held on Wednesday, the 25" day of June 2025 at 03:00 P.M. through Video
Conference (“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”), to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2025 including the Consolidated Audited Financial Statements for the year
ended 31% March 2025 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon.

To appoint a director in place of Mr. Gopal Rathi (holding DIN: 00553066), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3.

Appointment of Mr. Kaushik Roy (DIN: 06513489) as a Director (Non-Executive Director)
of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and 161 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) (including any
statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof), and the rules framed thereunder and
pursuant to applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, subject to the provisions of
the Articles of Association of the Company and on the recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) and the approval of the Board of Directors of the
Company, Mr. Kaushik Roy (DIN: 06513489) who was appointed as an Additional Director
(Non-Executive) of the Company with effect from 27" March, 2025, who is eligible for
appointment and has consented to act as a Director of the Company and who holds office up
to the date of this ensuing general meeting of the Company, and in respect of whom the
Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160(1) of the Act proposing his
candidature for the office of a director be and is hereby appointed as a Director (Non-
Executive) of the Company, with effect from the date of this meeting.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board (including its committee thereof) and/or Company
Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters
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and things as may be considered necessary, desirable, or expedient to give effect to this
Resolution.”

Appointment of Mr. Suresh Kalra (DIN: 02833715) as an Executive Director of the
Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and 161 and other
applicable provisions , if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) (including any
statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof), and the rules framed thereunder, and
pursuant to applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, subject to the provisions of
the Articles of Association of the Company and on the recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) and the approval of the Board of Directors of the
Company, Mr. Suresh Kalra (DIN: 02833715) who was appointed as an Additional Director
(Executive) of the Company with effect from 27" March, 2025 and who is eligible for
appointment and has consented to act as a Director of the Company and who holds office up
to the date of this ensuing general meeting of the Company, and in respect of whom the
Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160(1) of the Act proposing his
candidature for the office of a director be and is hereby appointed as a Director (Executive)
of the Company, with effect from the date of this meeting.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Directors and/or Company Secretary of the Company,
be and are hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be
considered necessary, desirable, or expedient to give effect to this Resolution.”

Appointment of Mr. Suresh Kalra (DIN: 02833715) as a Whole time Director of the
Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, in pursuance of the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 read with
Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including
any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and in accordance
with the applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, subject to the provisions of
the Articles of Association of the Company and based on the recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) and the approval of the Board of
Directors of the Company, and such other approvals consents, permissions, sanctions as may
be necessary, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the
appointment of Mr. Suresh Kalra (DIN: 02833715) as a Whole Time Director and Key
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Managerial Personnel of the Company for a period of 3 years effective from 27" March,
2025 to 26" March 2028 on such terms and conditions of appointment as may be decided by
the Board.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the Directors and/or Company Secretary of the Company,
severally and jointly, be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, things and
execute all such documents, instruments, writings, applications and returns as, in its absolute
discretion, it may be considered necessary, expedient or desirable, along with filing of
necessary E-forms with the Registrar of Companies, including power to sub-delegate, in
order to give effect to the foregoing resolutions or otherwise as considered by the Board to
be in the best interest of the Company as it may deem fit.”

To consider the appointment of M/S. S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, as
Statutory Auditors of the Company, and to fix their remuneration in this regard

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being
in force), M/s S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number:
301003E/E300005), be and are hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company
to fill the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of M/s L. B. Jha & Co, Chartered
Accountants for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years, commencing from the conclusion of
this Annual General Meeting and continuing till the conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting to be held for the Financial Year 2029-2030, at such remuneration as shall be
decided and fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company.”

To consider the appointment of M/s. Mehta & Mehta, Company Secretaries, as Secretarial
Auditor of the Company, and to fix their remuneration in this regard

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 , read with Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A
and other applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 and any other provisions as
applicable (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force), M/s. Mehta & Mehta, Company Secretaries ((ICSI Unique Code
P1996M11007500)), and as per the recommendation of Board of Directors of the Company,
the approval of members be and is hereby accorded for appointment of Secretarial Auditors
of the Company for undertaking the Secretarial Audit of the Company for a term of 5 (five)
consecutive financial years, commencing from the conclusion of this ensuing Annual
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General Meeting and continuing till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held
for the Financial Year 2029-2030, at such remuneration as shall be decided and fixed by the
Board of Directors of the Company.”

8.  To ratify the remuneration of the Cost Auditor for the financial year ending 31% March 2025

To Consider and, if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force,
the Company hereby approves the aggregate remuneration of Rs. 2,50,000/- (Rupees Two
Lacs Fifty Thousand only) plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses, as approved by
the Board of Directors of the Company, payable to M/s Shome & Banerjee (Firm
Registration No. 000001) appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, to conduct
the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2025
be and is hereby ratified.”

Registered Office By Order of the Board
9™ and 10% Floor,
Amar Synergy, 12B, Sadhu Vaswani Road, / ‘\)\_a/
Pune — 411001, Maharashtra W
CIN: U20299PN2024PLC227198

Jayesh Damle

Place: - Pune Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Date: - 20" June 2025 (Membership No: A24869)
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The meeting of the Members was convened at shorter notice with the consent of 100% of

members entitled to vote, as per the provisions of Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013. The

necessary approvals were obtained in compliance with statutory requirements.

In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the SEBI (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and

MCA Circulars, the 02" AGM of the Company is being held through Video Conferencing

(“VC™) on Wednesday, the 25" day of June 2025 at 03:00 P.M., which does not require physical

presence of Members at a common venue. The proceedings of the AGM will be deemed to be

conducted at the Registered Office of the Company situated at 9" & 10™ Floor, "Amar

Synergy", 12B, Sadhu Vaswani Road, Pune - 411001.

The Company has availed the services of Microsoft Teams platform for conducting meeting

through Video Conferencing.

In terms of the MCA Circulars, since the physical attendance of Members has been dispensed

with, there is no requirement of appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the facility of

appointment of proxies by Members under Section 105 of the Act will not be available for the

02" AGM.

Since the AGM will be held through VVC Facility, the route map, proxy form and attendance slip

are not annexed to this Notice. The recorded transcript of the AGM shall be made available as

soon as possible on the website of the Company at aquapharm-india.com.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC mode 15 minutes before the commencement of the

Meeting.

The attendance of the Members participating in the AGM through VC will be counted for the

purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

A Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) relating to Special

Businesses to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting is attached hereto.

The cut-off date for determining the eligibility of members to attend and vote at the Annual

General Meeting (AGM) is 15" May 2025. Only members registered as of this date will be

entitled to participate and cast their votes.

In case of Joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order

of names will be entitled to vote.

Non-individual Members are required to authorize one or more person as their representative

to attend the Annual General Meeting through a resolution of its Board of Directors or other

Governing Body.

Nomination facility as per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act is available to individuals

holding shares in the Company. Members can nominate a person in respect of all the shares

held by them singly or jointly. Members holding shares in physical form and who have not yet

registered their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13.

If a Member desires to opt out or cancel the earlier nomination, he/she may submit the same in

Form ISR-3 or SH-14 as the case may be.

Members are requested to:

a)  Notify immediately any change in their address to the Company.

b)  Quote their Folio Numbers in all correspondence with the Company.

c)  Furnish Bank Account particulars, in case not sent earlier or want any updation thereto.

d)  Update their PAN number / Aadhaar Number / any other Registration Number in the
Register of Members of the Company.

Members may also note that the Notice of the Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report

for Financial Year 2024-25 will also be available on the Company’s website: aquapharm-

india.com for their download. The aforesaid documents and all the documents referred to in the
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accompanying Notice will also be available for inspection by the Members under the “Investor
Relations” segment of the Company at aquapharm-india.com

Details required under Secretarial Standard on General Meeting (SS-2) issued by the Institute
of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of appointment forms an integral part of the Notice.
The Director have furnished the requisite declaration for his appointment

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC ARE AS

UNDER:

1. Members will be provided with the facility to attend the 02" Annual General Meeting (AGM)
via Video Conferencing (VC) through the Microsoft Teams platform. A meeting link and
password for joining the AGM will be shared with members shortly before the scheduled time.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid
any disturbance during the meeting.

4.  Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop

Connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi Connection to mitigate
any kind of aforesaid glitches.
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

[ITEM NO. 3. |

Appointment of Mr. Kaushik Roy (DIN: 06513489) as a Director (Non-Executive Director) of the
Company.

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC), the Board
has appointed Mr. Kaushik Roy (DIN: 06513489) as an Additional Director (Non-Executive) of the
Company, effective from 27" March 2025, subject to the approval of shareholders of the Company.
In accordance with Section 161 of the Act, Mr. Kaushik Roy shall hold office upto the date of this
AGM of the Company and is eligible for appointment as a Director. Mr. Kaushik Roy is a
distinguished business leader serving as the Managing Director of PCBL Chemical Limited and
Sector Head of Harrisons Malayalam Limited. Additionally, he is also a member of the Group
Management Board of RP-Sanjiv Goenka Group.

Mr. Roy is widely recognised for transforming PCBL, driving its diversification, and setting new
benchmarks for success. Under his leadership, PCBL has become a dynamic, innovative, and
customer centric organisation, committed to sustainable growth. Guided by the vision, the company
continues to evolve, expand, and explore new possibilities in the chemicals sector.

Mr. Kaushik Roy has a vast multi-functional business experience, spanning over three decades, across
different sectors such as tyres, cement, and chemicals. He is a Mechanical Engineer with a Post
Graduate Degree from IIT Kharagpur and studied Business Administration from the University of
Tokyo. He is also an Alumni of IMD, Switzerland. He is a member of the Managing Committee of
The Confederation of Indian Industry (CII) and The Bengal Chamber of Commerce and Industry
(BCC&).

Mr. Roy has been conferred with Business Leader of the Year (FY*20) Award by The Economic Times
and recognised with the Management Excellence Award - Corporate Leadership by Calcutta
Management Association (CMA) in 2021.

The Company has received from Mr. Kaushik Roy, requisite consent in connection with his
appointment as Non-Executive Director.

Mr. Kaushik Roy is not related to any other director of the Company.

A copy of the draft letter for appointment of Mr. Kaushik Roy as a Non-Executive Director setting
out the terms and conditions would be available for inspection by the shareholders during business
hours.

Considering Mr. Kaushik Roy's experience and expertise, the Board deems it beneficial and in the
best interest of the Company to appoint him as a Director (Non-Executive). Therefore, the Board
recommends his appointment as proposed in Resolution Item No. 3 of the accompanying Notice for
approval of the Members as an Ordinary Resolution. Further, he has provided a declaration affirming
that he is not debarred from holding the office of a director by virtue of any order passed by SEBI or
any other such authority pursuant to circulars dated June 20, 2018, issued by the Stock Exchange
pertaining to enforcement of SEBI Orders regarding appointment of Directors by the listed
companies.
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Except Mr. Kaushik Roy, being an appointee and his relatives, none of the Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company and their respective relatives is concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice. This Statement may also
be regarded as a disclosure under the SS-2 on the General Meetings.

| ITEM NO. 4. \

Appointment of Mr. Suresh Kalra (DIN: 02833715) as an Executive Director of the Company.

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC), the Board
has appointed Mr. Suresh Kalra (DIN: 02833715) as an Additional Director (Executive) of the
Company, effective from 27" March 2025, subject to the approval of shareholders of the Company.
In accordance with Section 161 of the Act, Mr. Suresh Kalra shall hold office upto the date of this
AGM of the Company and is eligible for appointment as a Director. Mr. Suresh Kalra holds a degree
in Engineering and Business Management and has overall experience of more than 26 years in leading
global business with expertise in business strategy, operational efficiency and building organisational
capability.

The Company has received from Mr. Suresh Kalra, requisite consent in connection with his
appointment as Executive Director.

Mr. Suresh Kalra is not related to any other director of the Company.

A copy of the draft letter for appointment of Mr. Suresh Kalra as a Executive Director setting out the
terms and conditions would be available for inspection by the shareholders during business hours.

Considering Mr. Suresh Kalra's experience and expertise, the Board deems it beneficial and in the
best interest of the Company to appoint him as a Director (Executive). Therefore, the Board
recommends his appointment as proposed in Resolution Item No. 4 of the accompanying Notice for
approval of the Members as an Ordinary Resolution. Further, he has provided a declaration affirming
that he is not debarred from holding the office of a director by virtue of any order passed by SEBI or
any other such authority pursuant to circulars dated June 20, 2018, issued by the Stock Exchange
pertaining to enforcement of SEBI Orders regarding appointment of Directors by the listed
companies.

Except Mr. Suresh Kalra, being an appointee and his relatives, none of the Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company and their respective relatives is concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice. This Statement may also
be regarded as a disclosure under the SS-2 on the General Meetings.

| ITEM NO. 5. \

Appointment of Mr. Suresh Kalra (DIN: 02833715) as a Whole time Director of the Company.

Mr. Suresh Kalra was appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company (“the Board”) as an
Additional Director (Executive) of the Company with effect from 27" March 2025. Subsequently,
there was a change of designation of Mr. Suresh Kalra from Additional Director (Executive) to Whole
Time Director of the Company w.e.f. 27" March 2025. Mr. Suresh Kalra holds office as a Director of
the Company upto the date of this Annual General Meeting.
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The Board of Directors, based on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, at its meeting held on 27" March, 2025 recommends the appointment of Mr. Suresh
Kalra, as the Whole Time Director of the Company for a term from 27" March, 2025 to 26" March
2028 on such terms and conditions including remuneration to be paid in the manner set out in the
Agreement

Mr. Suresh Kalra, aged 51 years, holds a degree in Engineering and Business Management and has
overall experience of more than 26 years in leading global business with expertise in business strategy,
operational efficiency and building organisational capability.

The approval of the Members is being sought to the terms and conditions of appointment of Mr.
Suresh Kalra as the Whole Time Director of the Company. The terms and conditions proposed are in
line with what is necessary to continue to encourage good professional managers with a sound career
record to important positions such as that occupied by Mr. Suresh Kalra. The proposed appointment
and the terms and conditions of appointment are in accordance with the conditions specified in
Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board considers that his association would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is
desirable to avail the services of Mr. Suresh Kalra as a Whole Time Director of the Company.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item No. 5 of the Notice
in relation to appointment of Mr. Suresh Kalra as a Whole Time Director of the Company, for the
approval by the shareholders of the Company.

Except Mr. Suresh Kalra, being an appointee and his relatives, none of the Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company and their respective relatives is concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice. This Explanatory
Statement may also be regarded as a disclosure under SS-2 on the General Meetings.

[ITEM NO. 6. |

To consider the appointment of M/S. S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, as Statutory
Auditors of the Company, and to fix their remuneration and in this regard, if thought fit, to pass with
or without modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

M/s L. B. Jha & Co, Chartered Accountants have tendered their resignation as Statutory Auditors
w.e.f. 07" May 2025 with immediate effect due to pre-occupation with other assignments. This has
resulted into a casual vacancy in the office of Statutory Auditors of the Company as envisaged by
Section 139(8) of the Companies Act, 2013. Casual vacancy caused by the resignation of auditor shall
be approved by the shareholders in General Meeting within three months from the date of
recommendation of the Board of Directors of the Company. The Board of Directors of the Company
recommended the appointment of M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration Number: 301003E/E300005) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to fill the casual
vacancy caused by the resignation of M/s L. B. Jha & Co. Accordingly, shareholders’ approval by
way of ordinary resolution is sought.

M/s S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number:
301003E/E300005), have conveyed their consent for being appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company along with a confirmation that, their appointment, if made by the members, would be within
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the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and shall satisfy the criteria as provided under
section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and have given a certificate in prescribed format declaring
that firm complies with all eligibility norms prescribed regarding appointment of statutory auditors.

The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the passing of the resolution in Item No. 06 of
the notice as an ordinary resolution. None of the Directors or Key Managerial Persons of the Company
(including their relatives), in the Company are concerned or interested in the said resolution.

| ITEM NO. 7. |

To consider the appointment of M/s. Mehta & Mehta, Company Secretaries, as Secretarial Auditor of
the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the
time being in force) (“the Act”), every listed company and certain other prescribed categories of
companies are required to annex a Secretarial Audit Report, issued by a Practicing Company
Secretary, to their Board’s report, prepared under Section 134(3) of the Act. Furthermore, pursuant to
recent amendments to Regulation 24A of the SEBI Listing Regulations, every listed entity is required
to conduct a Secretarial Audit and annex the Secretarial Audit Report to its annual report.
Additionally, a listed entity must appoint a Secretarial Audit firm for a maximum of two terms of five
consecutive years, with shareholder approval to be obtained at the Annual General Meeting.

Accordingly, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors has
approved the appointment of M/s. Mehta & Mehta, Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditors
of the Company for a period of five years, commencing from 1% April 2025 to 31% March 2030. The
appointment is subject to shareholders’ approval at the Annual General Meeting.

While recommending M/s. Mehta & Mehta P for appointment, the Board and the Audit Committee
evaluated various factors, including the firm’s capability to handle a diverse and complex business
environment, its existing experience in the Company’s business segments, its industry standing, the
clientele it serves, and its technical expertise. M/s. Mehta & Mehta was found to be well-equipped to
manage the scale, diversity, and complexity associated with the Secretarial Audit of the Company.
M/s. Mehta & Mehta is a pear reviewed and a well-established firm of Practicing Company
Secretaries, registered with the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, New Delhi. The firm M/s.
Mehta & Mehta is a 25-year-old firm promoted by Atul Mehta and Dipti Mehta. Striving for quality
and excellence in legal and secretarial consultancy which covers varied areas of the corporate field
and diverse avenues of corporate laws & other related areas. The firm started out as a practicing
company secretaries’ firm, and today the bouquet of services includes Management, Mentoring,
Strategizing, Finance, Legal,

Compliance, HR, Secretarial, Marketing, Operations, Sustainability and so on.

The terms and conditions of M/s. Mehta & Mehta’s appointment include a tenure of five years, from
15t April 2025 to 31% March 2030 at such remuneration as shall be decided and fixed by the Board of
Directors of the Company. The requirement for a Secretarial Audit became applicable to the Company
from the financial year 2023-2024, during which M/s. Mehta & Mehta was appointed as the
Secretarial Auditor. This appointment took place before the implementation of the five-year term
requirement, as described above. The fee paid to M/s. Mehta & Mehta for the year 2023-2024 is same
as that proposed for 2024-2025. Accordingly, there is no material change in the fee payable to M/s.
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Mehta & Mehta compared to that of the outgoing auditor, making the requirement to disclose such a
change not applicable.

M/s. Mehta & Mehta has provided its consent to act as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company and
has confirmed that the proposed appointment, if made, will be in compliance with the provisions of
the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations. They have also confirmed that they are not disqualified to
be appointed as Secretarial Auditors in terms of provisions of the Act & Rules made thereunder and
SEBI Listing Regulations. Accordingly, the consent of the shareholders is sought for the appointment
of M/s. Mehta & Mehta as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company. The Board of Directors
recommends the resolution for approval by the Members, as set out at Item No. 7 of the Notice.

The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the passing of the resolution in Item No. 07 of
the notice as an ordinary resolution. None of the Directors or Key Managerial Persons of the Company
(including their relatives), in the Company are concerned or interested in the said resolution.

[ITEMNO. _ 8. |

To ratify the remuneration of the Cost Auditor for the financial year ending 31% March 2025

Based on the recommendations of Audit Committee, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on
27" March 2025, has approved the appointment of M/s. Shome & Banerjee (Firm Registration No.
000001) at an aggregate remuneration of Rs. 2,50,000/- (Rupees Two Lacs Fifty Thousand only) plus
applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company
for the Financial year ending 31% March 2025.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to
be ratified by the members of the Company. Accordingly, consent of the members is sought by way
of an Ordinary Resolution for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the
Financial Year ending 31 March 2025.

None of the Directors of the Company and their relatives is/are in any way interested or concerned in
the said resolution.

The Board of Directors of your company recommends resolution for the approval of Members as an
Ordinary Resolution.

Registered Office By Order of the Board
9% and 10 Floor,
Amar Synergy, 12B, Sadhu Vaswani Road, W
Pune — 411001, Maharashtra )‘g}/
CIN: U20299PN2024PLC227198 )

Jayesh Damle

Place: - Pune Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Date: - 20" June 2025 (Membership No: A24869)
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Details of Director as per Secretarial Standard on General Meetings — SS-2.

Explanatory Statement
as set out to Item No 3

Explanatory
Statement as set out
toltemNo4 &5

Sr. Particulars Mr. Kaushik Roy Mr. Suresh Kalra Mr. Gopal Rathi
No.
1. Date of birth & Age | 60 51 50
2. Qualification Mechanical Engineer | holds a ACA
with a Post Graduate | degree in
Degree  from  IIT | Engineering  and
Kharagpur and studied | Business
Business Management
Administration  from
the  University  of
Tokyo
3. |Date of first | 27" March 2025 27" March 2025 17 December 2024
appointment on
Board
4, Terms and | Non-Executive Executive Whole- | Non-Executive
conditions of | Director time Director Director
appointment.
The terms of | The terms  of | The terms of
appointment are as per | appointment are as | appointment are as
the resolution setoutin | per the resolution | per the resolution set
this Notice read with [ set out in this|out in this Notice
Statements therein. Notice read with | read with Statements
Statements therein. | therein.
5. Experience Please  refer  the | Please refer the | He has successfully

led many
acquisitions and
strategic initiatives

across sectors over
the last 20 years and
plays pivotal role in
strategizing Group’s
expansion into new

business lines and
sectors, leadership
role in  business
development, re-
engineering and
troubleshooting

amongst Group

companies. He has
vast experience and
expertise in areas of
Investment
decisions,
Acquisitions,
Business
development,
holding structure &
integration,
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Sr.

No.

Particulars

Mr. Kaushik Roy

Mr. Suresh Kalra

Mr. Gopal Rathi

restructuring models,
strategizing for
optimising
efficiencies &
maximising
potential,
Entrepreneurial
decision making.
Prior to RP-Sanjiv
Goenka Group, he
was associated with
Hutchinson (now
\Vodafone) in
Business  Planning
and Finance Role.
His  qualifications
and robust
experience make him
a valuable asset to
the Board, ensuring
that his contributions
will be both strategic
and impactful.

Shareholding in the
company (If any)

NIL

NIL

NIL

The number of
Meetings of the
Board attended
during the year
2024-25

NIL

NIL

6

Other Directorships

1. Harrisons
Malayalam Ltd

2. Nanovace
Technologies
Limited

3. PCBL Chemical
Limited

4. Spencer
International
Hotels Limited

5. STEL Holdings
Limited

NIL

1. Business
Media Private
Limited

2. Digidrive
Distributors
Limited

3. Editorji
Technologies
Private Limited

4. Eminent
Electricity
Distribution
Limited

5. Herbolab India
Private Limited
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Sr. Particulars Mr. Kaushik Roy Mr. Suresh Kalra Mr. Gopal Rathi
No.
6. Pocket Aces
Pictures
Private Limited
7. Purvah Green
Power Private
Limited
8. RPSG Sports
Private Limited
Membership/ As mentioned below | As mentioned | As mentioned below
Chairmanship  of below
Committees of
other Boards
No. of | 4 1 2
Directorships  in
Listed Entities Incl.
This Listed Entity
No. of | 1 2 0
Memberships  in
Audit/Stakeholders
Committee(s)
including this listed
entity
No. of post of | NIL NIL NIL
Chairperson in
Audit/Stakeholders
Committee(s) incl/
this Listed entity
9. Relationship with | Not related to any of | Not related to any | Not related to any of
other Directors, | the directors or KMP | of the directors or | the directors or KMP
Managers and Key | of the Company KMP of the | of the Company
Managerial Company
Personnel (KMP)
of the Company
10. | The remuneration | Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable
last drawn by such
person from the
Company (if
applicable) and
Details of
Remuneration
sought to be paid
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BOARD’S REPORT

To,
The Members,

The Board of Directors of Aquapharm Chemical Limited (“your Company” or “the Company”
or “ACL™) is pleased to present the 2" (Second) Annual Report on the business and operations
of the Company and the Audited Financial Statements (Standalone and Consolidated) of the
Company for the financial year ended 31% March 2025 (“financial year under review”).

1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The highlights of the Company’s financial performance for the year under review, along
with the previous year’s figures, are given hereunder:
(Amount in INR Crores)

Standalone Consolidated

Particulars 31-03-2025 | 31-03-2024 | 31-03-2025 | 31-03-2024
Revenue from operations 766.99 113.19 1,419.80 240.07
PBDIT 119.73 0.00 193.68 13.32
Less: Finance Cost 104.03 19.46 107.51 20.01
PBDT 15.70 -19.46 86.17 -6.69
Less: Depreciation 114.11 19.10 128.09 21.22
PBT: -98.41 -38.56 -41.92 -27.91
Exceptional Items 0.52 0 0.52 0
Tax Expense -20.91 -2.23 -13.30 0.45
PAT -78.02 -36.33 -29.14 -28.36
Earnings Per  Equity -1.87 -4.17 -0.69 -3.26
Share

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 have been prepared in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended.

2. OPERATIONS:

During the year, the operational performance of the Company was as follows:
(Amount in INR Crores)

Standalone Consolidated
2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24
Export Sales 540.12 78.04 446.01 67.36
Domestic Sales 226.87 35.15 973.79 172.71
Total Sales 766.99 113.19 1,419.80 240.07
Other Income 26.24 3.56 11.27 1.99
Total Revenue 793.23 116.75 1,431.07 242.06

The Company was incorporated on 11" January 2024, and hence the comparative
information relevant to the previous year has been furnished for the period from 11™
January to 31st March 2024. Accordingly, the figures of the comparative period ended
31 March 2024 are not comparable to the current year ended 31 March 2025.
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3.  PERFORMANCE REVIEW:

The Company was incorporated on 11" January 2024 and is a subsidiary of PCBL
Chemical Limited. It is engaged in the business of manufacturing, processing, exporting,
importing, trading, buying, selling, stocking and dealing in chemicals, chemical products,
specialty chemicals, water treatment chemicals with key products such as phosphonates,
biodegradable chelating agents, polymers, biocides and oil field chemicals (imidazoline,
quats) antiknock preparations chemical, antifreeze chemical, liquid / solid gages
chemical, hydraulic transmission chemical, composite diagnostic, laboratory reagents,
writing or drawing ink, all type of chemical substance & additives and other products
including organic and inorganic chemicals, solvents of any mixtures derivatives and
compounds thereof, and providing technical and other consultancy services to customers,
industries, government and semi government bodies, industrial users for use of light and
heavy chemicals of any nature to be used by the industry.

The Company has issued Listed Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) on 29" January
2024, and the NCDs are listed on the BSE Limited w.e.f. 31% January 2024. The
Company, being a ‘high value debt listed entity’ as per the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 {“SEBI Listing Regulations”}, is
required to comply with the provisions of Regulation 15 to Regulation 27 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations.

4.  AMALGAMATION OF WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY:

During the financial year under review, the Company has received an Order from the
Central Government through the office of the Regional Director, Western Region
(“Regional Director”), Mumbai, dated 6" December 2024, sanctioning the
Amalgamation of Aquapharm Chemicals Private Limited (Wholly Owned Subsidiary)
with Advaya Chemical Industries Limited, which is currently known as Aquapharm
Chemical Limited.

Considering the Order of Regional Director, Western Region, Mumbai, Aquapharm
Chemicals Private Limited, i.e., Transferor Company is, amalgamated with Advaya
Chemical Industries Limited, currently known as Aquapharm Chemical Limited, and the
appointed date is 1% February 2024.

5. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY::

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company since incorporation is Rs.
40,00,00,00,000/- (Rupees Four Thousand Crores) divided into 4,00,00,00,000 equity
shares of Rs. 10/- each.

Subsequent to incorporation, the Paid-Up Share Capital of the Company has increased
from Rs. 5,00,00,000 (Rupees Five Crore) divided into 50,00,000 (Fifty Lakhs) equity
shares of Rs. 10/- each to Rs. 1,00,00,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred Crore) divided into
10,00,00,000 (Ten Crores) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.

During the financial year under review, on 18" February 2025, approval of the Board
was received for the conversion of 275,00,00,000 (two hundred seventy-five crores) fully
paid-up, unlisted, optionally and fully convertible debentures having a face value of INR
10 (Indian Rupees Ten) issued by the Company to PCBL Chemical Limited and PCBL
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(TN) Limited into equity shares of a face value of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten) each.
Considering the above, the paid-up Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 28,50,00,00,000
(Rupees Two Thousand Eight Hundred and Fifty Crores).

Further, there was no issue of equity shares with differential rights, sweat equity and
under any scheme of employee stock option as per the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, and rules made thereunder.

DIVIDEND:

The Board of Directors has not recommended any dividend for the financial year 2024-
25.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

During the year under review, no amount is proposed to be transferred to any reserve.
NATURE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS, CHANGES AND FUTURE OUTLOOK:
There has been no change in the nature of the business of the company.

The Company is in the business of manufacturing and sale of specialty chemicals & water
treatment chemicals. The Company was incorporated on 11" January 2024, and hence
the comparative information relevant to the previous year has been furnished for the
period from 11" January to 315 March 2024. Accordingly, the figures for the comparative
period ended 31 March 2024 are not comparable to the current year ended 31 March
2025,

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the draft Annual Return
of the Company as of 31% March, 2025, is made available on the website of your
Company and can be accessed at www.aquapharm-india.com.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD:

The Board met fifteen (15) times during the year under review. The intervening gap
between two consecutive board meetings did not exceed 120 days, as prescribed under
the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Board meetings were held on:

Sr. No. Date Sr. No. Date

1. 02-05-2024 2. 22-05-2024
3. 31-05-2024 4, 14-06-2024
5. 14-06-2024 6. 17-07-2024
7. 01-08-2024 8. 23-10-2024
9. 17-12-2024 10. 09-01-2025
11. 03-02-2025 12. 06-02-2025
13. 18-02-2025 14, 05-03-2025
15. 27-03-2025 - -
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11. CHANGE IN THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD:

The Company was incorporated with three Directors in the Board viz.

Mr. Raj Kumar Gupta (DIN: 07894448)
Mr. Kaushik Mukherjee (DIN: 08897745)
Mr. Gopal Rathi (DIN: 00553066)

The following is a list of the changes made to the Board of Directors' composition during
the financial year under review.

. Appointment of Directors - 02" May, 2024
The Company has appointed Mr. T. C. Suseel Kumar and Mrs. Kusum Dadoo as
additional non-executive independent directors, w.e.f. 02" May, 2024, subject to
the approval of the Members of the Company in the ensuing General Meeting of
the Company.

. Resignation of Director - 3" May 2024
Mr. Gopal Rathi resigned from the position of Directorship w.e.f. 3 May 2024.

o Change in Designation — 14™ June 2024

Mr. Kaushik Mukherjee was appointed as a Whole-time Director of the Company
for a term of 5 years from 14" June 2024 to 13" June 2029.

o Confirmation of Directors — 27" August 2024.

In the first Annual General Meeting of the members of the Company the following
appointments were approved by the members.

Name of the Director Designation

Mr. T.C. Suseel Kumar | Non-Executive Independent Director
Mrs. Kusum Dadoo Non-Executive Independent Director
Mr. Kaushik Mukherjee | Whole time Director

o Appointment of Directors — 17" December 2024

The Company has appointed Mr. Gopal Rathi as additional non-executive director
and Mrs. Iram Hassan as additional non-executive independent director, w.e.f., 17"
December 2024, subject to the approval of the Members of the Company in the
ensuing General Meeting of the Company.

o Confirmation of Directors — 12" March 2025
The approval of the Members of the Company was received for the appointment of
Mr. Gopal Rathi as non-executive director and Mrs. Iram Hassan as non-executive

independent director.

. Appointment and Resignation of Directors — 27" March 2025
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- Mr. Suresh Kalra was appointed as an Additional Director and as a Whole-
time Director of the Company for a period of 3 years with effect from the
27" day of March 2025, subject to the approval of the Members of the
Company in the ensuing General Meeting of the Company.

- Mr. Kaushik Roy was appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director of the Company with effect from 27" March 2025,
subject to the approval of the Members of the Company in the ensuing
General Meeting of the Company.

- Mr. Kaushik Mukherjee ceased to be a Director and Whole-time Director of
the Company with effect from the end of the day on 271" March 2025.

- Mr. Raj Kumar Gupta ceased to be a Director of the Company with effect
from the end of the day on 27" March 2025.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Gopal Rathi retires by rotation and
being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment.

The Board recommends the re-appointment of Mr. Gopal Rathi as Director for your
approval. Brief details as required under Secretarial Standard-2 are provided in the Notice
of AGM.

12. DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS:

None of the Directors of the Company have incurred any disqualification on account of
non-compliance with any of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

13. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to Sections 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the Act, the Board, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, confirms that:

i. In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31%' March
2025, the applicable accounting standards have been followed, and there are no
material departures;

ii.  Appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently, and
judgments and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the
financial year and of the loss of your Company for that period;

iii. Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

iv. The annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

v. Internal financial controls laid down by the Directors have been followed by the
Company and such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating
effectively; and

vi.  Proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws are
in place and are adequate and operating effectively.
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14. STATUTORY AUDITORS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT:

The Company in its 1% (first) Annual General Meeting held on 27" August, 2024 had
appointed M/s. L. B. Jha & Co., Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No.
301088E), to act as Statutory Auditor of the Company for a term of 5 (five) consecutive
years, in accordance with the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the
time being in force) from the conclusion of 1% Annual General Meeting, till the
conclusion of 6™ Annual General Meeting i.e., Annual General Meeting to be held for
the year ended 31% March 2029, at a remuneration as may be decided and fixed by the
Board of Directors of the Company.

There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks, or disclaimers made by the
Statutory Auditors in their report. During the financial year under review, the Auditors
had not reported any matter under Section 143 (12) of the Act; therefore, no detail is
required to be disclosed under Section 134 (3) (ca) of the Act.

The report given by M/s. L. B. Jha & Co., Chartered Accountants, on the financial
statement of the Company for the year 2024-2025 is a part of the annual report. The notes
on the financial statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and do
not call for any further comments.

15. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS & THEIR REPORT:

The Board had appointed M/s. Mehta & Mehta, Company Secretaries, Pune, as the
Secretarial Auditor for conducting the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial
year 2024-25. The Secretarial Audit Report has been annexed to this report as Annexure-
V.

There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks, or disclaimers made by the
Secretarial Auditors in their report.

Further, pursuant to Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015 and subject to the approval of the Members of the
Company, the Board proposed to appoint M/s. Mehta & Mehta, Company Secretaries,
Pune, for a period of 5 consecutive years to hold the office from the conclusion of the
02" (Second) Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 07™" (Seventh) Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held for the year ended 31 March 2030, subject
to approval by the Members by way of an ordinary resolution in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting.

16. COST AUDITORS:

The financial statements for the financial year 2023-24 were re-casted considering the
amalgamation of the Aquapharm Chemicals Private Limited (the transferor company)
with the Company. After taking into consideration the re-casted financials and pursuant
to the Companies (Cost Record & Audit) Amendment Rules 2014, the provisions of cost
audit are applicable to the Company for the financial year 2024-25.

Accordingly, the Board has appointed M/s. Shome & Banerjee, Cost Accountants,
Kolkata, in the Board meeting held on 27" March 2025 as the Cost Auditor for
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conducting the audit of cost records of the Company for the financial year 2024-25, at
the remuneration approved by the Board of Directors of the company, which will be
subsequently ratified by members in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Accordingly, pursuant to Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
the Board seeks the ratification by the members for remuneration payable to M/s. Shome
and Banerjee, Cost Accountants, Kolkata, for financial year 2024-25.

17. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER
SUB-SECTION (12) OF SECTION 143 OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE
REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT:

There are no frauds reported by auditors under Sub-Section (12) of Section 143 other
than those which are reportable to the Central Government.

18. ASTATEMENT ONDECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
UNDER SUB-SECTION (6) OF SECTION 149:

Your Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of your
Company confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under
Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) read with Regulation 25(8) of the
SEBI Listing Regulations, and there has been no change in the circumstances which may
affect their status as an Independent Director. The Independent Directors have also given
a declaration of compliance with Rules 6(1) and 6(2) of the Companies (Appointment
and Quialification of Directors) Rules, 2014, with respect to their names appearing in the
data bank of Independent Directors maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate
Affairs.

Further, in the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions
prescribed under the Listing Regulations 2015 and are independent of the management
of the Company. Further, the Board also states that Independent Directors are the persons
of integrity and have adequate experience to serve as Independent Directors of the
Company

19. COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION  INCLUDING CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING
QUALIFICATIONS, POSITIVE ATTRIBUTES, INDEPENDENCE OF A
DIRECTOR AND OTHER MATTERS PROVIDED UNDER SUB-SECTION (3)
OF SECTION 178:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(3) of the Act, your Company has framed a
policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration and other matters, which is available
on the website of the Company at www.aquapharm-india.com.

20. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with respect to all the
applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
(ICSI) under the provisions of Section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board
hereby reports that during the financial year under review, the Company has complied
with applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e., SS-1 and SS-2, relating to “Meetings of the
Board of Directors” and “General Meetings,” respectively.
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21. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER
SECTION 186

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments made during the year under review are
briefly noted under Note No. 6, Note No 7, and Note No. 38, respectively to the
standalone financial statements.

22. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH
RELATED PARTIES UNDER SECTION 188(1) OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

All transactions with related parties entered into during the year under review were at
arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business and in accordance with the
provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder.

The particulars relating to contracts or arrangements which are in the ordinary course of
business and at arm’s length with related parties are provided in Annexure-I (AOC 2) to
this report.

Further, the Disclosure as per point A of Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2011, has been briefly noted under Note no. 41 to the standalone financial statements and
Note no. 40 to the consolidated financial statement.

23. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL:

The Board of Directors of the Company has developed an Internal Financial Control
System as referred to under Section 134(3)(q) of the Act read with Rule 8(5)(c)(viii) of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The Company has an internal financial control
system commensurate with the size, scale, and complexity of its operations. The Board
of Directors has laid down standard processes and procedures for implementing the
internal financial controls across the organization.

After considering the framework of existing internal financial controls and compliance
systems; work performed by the Internal, Statutory and External Consultants; reviews
performed by the Management, the Board of Directors is of the opinion that the
Company’s internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements pursued
by the Directors are considered sufficient, and no reportable material weakness in the
design or operation was observed.

Based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
and considering the essential components of internal control and also considering its
inherent limitations with reference to financial statements, the Auditors of the Company
have certified that the internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements were adequate in all material respect and operating effectively.

24. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY:

There are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company occurred between the close of the financial year ended 31% March 2025 and
the date of this Board’s Report.
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Further, the details with respect to contingencies have been briefly noted under Note no.
38 to the standalone financial statements and Note no. 37 to the consolidated financial
statement.

25. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The information required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Account) Rules, 2014, with respect to conservation of
energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo, as required to be
disclosed under the Act, is provided in Annexure-I1 to this report.

26. DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICY OF THE COMPANY:

Risk Management is the process of identification, assessment, and prioritization of risks
followed by coordinated efforts to minimize, monitor, and mitigate/control the
probability and/or impact of unfortunate events or to maximize the realization of
opportunities.

Your Company has laid down a comprehensive risk assessment and minimization
procedure in accordance with the requirements of the Act and the SEBI Listing
Regulations, which is reviewed and approved by the Board from time to time. This
procedure is reviewed to ensure that the executive management controls risk through
means of a properly defined framework.

The Company has taken and ensured all the necessary care with respect to threats which
may affect the existence of the Company. A risk management policy/system in this regard
is in place. In the opinion of the Board, risks that may threaten the existence of the
Company are minimal.

27. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVE:

As part of its initiatives under Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), the Company has
undertaken various programs and projects. The amount required to be spent on CSR
activities by Aquapharm Chemicals Private Limited, the transferor company, for the
financial year 2024-25 was INR 3.77 crore. As per the recommendation of the CSR
Committee of the Transferor Company, i.e., Aquapharm Chemicals Private Limited, the
Transferor Company had transferred INR 0.30 crore and on the recommendation of the
CSR Committee of the Company, i.e., Aquapharm Chemical Limited (formerly known
as Advaya Chemical Industries Limited), had transferred INR 0.03 crore to Aquapharm
Foundation for development and renovation of the Senior Citizen Community Centre and
other charitable purposes during the year.

The Company has transferred an unspent amount of Rs. 3.44 crore to the Unspent CSR
Account towards its ongoing project.

The project is in accordance with Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, and the
details of the same have been provided in Annexure-I11 to this report.

28. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES AND
THEIR POSITION & FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:
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Your Company is a subsidiary of PCBL Chemical Limited. Your Company had 1
unlisted, wholly owned private subsidiary, namely M/s. Aquapharm Chemicals Private
Limited, which was merged with the company with effect from 1% January 2025.
Considering the said merger, the Company has the following subsidiaries:

I. The Company has a wholly owned subsidiary in the Netherlands, named
“Aquapharm Europe B.V.,” which was established in February 2015.

ii. The Company has a wholly owned subsidiary in the United States of America
named “Aquapharm Chemicals LLC,” which was established in July 2017. This
is a Delaware Limited Liability Company. This subsidiary is a holding company
of “Aquapharm PChem LLC” with 100% holding and “Aquapharm Specialty
Chemicals, LLC” with 100% holding.

ii. The Company holds 95% shares in a company based in Saudi Arabia named
“Unique Solutions for Chemical Industries Company.” Further, “Unique
Solutions for Chemical Industries Company” has a subsidiary named USCI
LLC in Sharjah Media City, Sharjah.

iv. The Company has another wholly owned subsidiary Company named
“Aquapharm Foundation,” a Section 8 company.

There are no associate companies or joint venture companies within the meaning of
Section 2(6) of the Act.

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 129, 134, and 136 of the Act read with rules made
thereunder and Regulation 53 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, your Company has
prepared consolidated financial statements of your Company and a separate statement
containing the salient features of financial statement of its Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures
and Associates are given in Annexure-1V (in Form AOC -1), which forms part of this
Annual Report.

The annual financial statements and related detailed information of the subsidiary
companies shall be made available to the shareholders of the holding and subsidiary
companies seeking such information on all working days during business hours till the
date of the AGM of the Company. The financial statements of the subsidiary companies
shall also be kept open for inspection by any shareholder during working hours at your
Company’s registered office and that of the respective subsidiary companies concerned.
In accordance with Section 136 of the Act, the audited financial statements, including
consolidated financial statements and related information of your Company and audited
accounts of each of its subsidiaries, are available on the website of your Company at
www.aquapharm-india.com.

29. PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

The Company has not invited and/ or accepted any deposits from the public during the
year under review.

30. DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE
BLOWER POLICY FOR DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES:

Your Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism Policy / Whistle Blower Policy and has
established the necessary vigil mechanism for Directors and Employees in confirmation
with Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 22 of SEBI Listing Regulations, to facilitate
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reporting of the genuine concerns about unethical or improper activity, without fear of
retaliation.

The vigil mechanism of your Company provides for adequate safeguards against
victimisation of whistle blowers who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct
access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. No person has been
denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The said policy is uploaded on
your Company’s website and may be accessed at the following link: www.aquapharm-
india.com.

During the financial year ended on 31 March 2025, your Company has not received any
complaint under the vigil mechanism / whistle blower policy.

31. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at the workplace and has adopted
a Policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at the
Workplace, in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder and all
employees are aware of it.

The Policy aims to provide protection to employees at the workplace and prevent and
redress complaints of sexual harassment and for matters connected or incidental thereto,
with the objective of providing a safe working environment where employees feel secure.

During the period under review, no cases were filed pursuant to the Sexual harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013

Further, the Company has complied with the provisions relating to the Constitution of
Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

32. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS, COURTS AND TRIBUNALS:

No significant and material order has been passed by the Regulators, Courts or Tribunals
impacting the going concern status and the Company’s operations in future.

33. INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE UPDATE:

No application has been made / No proceeding is pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the year under review.

34. VALUATION FOR ONE TIME SETTLEMENT WITH BANK AND FINANCIAL
INSTITUTION:

The Company has not made any valuation for one-time settlement with Banks and
Financial Institutions. Hence, there is no reason for elaboration on the said aspect.

35. CREDIT RATINGS:
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During the year under review, the Company has received its credit ratings from CRISIL
Ratings. The CRISIL Ratings, after due consideration has assigned the rating of CRISIL
AA/Stable (Reaffirmed) for the Bank loan facilities of Rs. 1100 Crore (enhanced from
Rs. 450 crore) and CRISIL AA/Stable (pronounced as CRISIL double A rating with
Stable outlook) on the Rs. 550 crore Non-Convertible Debentures of your Company.

36. LISTING:
The Company has listed its Non-Convertible Debentures on 31% January 2024 on the
BSE Limited (BSE). The Company has paid the requisite listing fees to the Stock
Exchange for FY 2024-25.

37. NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (NCDs):
Your Company had allotted rated, listed, secured, redeemable 55,000 non-convertible
debentures of the face value of Rs. 1,00,000/- each for a total sum of Rs. 550 Crores on
private placement basis on 29" January 2024. The NCD’s are listed on the BSE Limited.

38. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

The following changes occurred to your company's Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs)
during the financial year under review:

Sr. Name Change Date
No.

1.| Mrs. Sangeeta Gupta | Appointment as  Company 31 May 2024
Secretary and  Compliance

Officer
2.| Mr. Kaushik | Change of designation from 14" June 2024
Mukherjee Director to Whole Time Director
of the Company
3.| Mr. Amit Basu Appointment as the Chief 14" June 2024
Financial ~ Officer of the
Company

4.| Mrs. Sangeeta Gupta | Resigned as Company Secretary | 6" February 2025
and Compliance Officer

5. Mr. Amit Basu Resigned as the Chief Financial | 6™ February 2025
Officer of the Company
6. Mr. Ganesh | Appointment as the Chief | 6™ February 2025
Vishwanathan Financial ~ Officer of the
Company

7.| Mr. Jayesh Damle Appointment as  Company | 6" February 2025
Secretary and  Compliance

Officer

8.| Mr. Suresh Kalra Appointment as Chief Executive 5 March 2025
Officer

9.| Mr. Suresh Kalra Change of designation from | 27" March 2025

Chief Executive Officer to
Chief Executive Officer &
Whole Time Director of the
Company
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Company had the following KMPs as on March 31, 2025, as per Section 2(51) of the
Act:

Sr. No. | Key Managerial Personnel Designation
1. Mr. Suresh Kalra Chief Executive Officer & Whole-
time Director
2. Mr. Ganesh Vishwanathan Chief Financial Officer
3. Mr. Jayesh Damle Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer

39. DETAILS RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KEY
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND EMPLOYEES:

The statement containing particulars of employees, as required under Section 197 of the
Act, read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, forms a part of this Annual Report. However, in
terms of Section 136 of the Act, the Annual Report is being sent to the shareholders and
others entitled thereto, excluding the said annexure. If any shareholder is interested in
obtaining a copy thereof, such shareholder may write to your Company Secretary in this
regard at damle.jayesh@aquapharm.net.

40. BOARD EVALUATION:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board has carried
out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the performance of
Independent Directors and other Directors individually, as well as the evaluation of the
working of its committees for the financial year 2024 - 25. The evaluation has been
carried out based on the criteria defined by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

Based on the evaluation, Company expects the Board and the Directors to continue to
play a constructive and meaningful role in creating value for all the stakeholders in the
ensuing years.

41. KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS:

Key Financial Ratios for the financial year ended 31 March 2025, forms part of the
Financial Report.

42. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:
The Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of Corporate Governance
and adheres to the Corporate Governance requirements set out by the SEBI. The
Company has duly complied with the Corporate Governance requirements as set out
under Regulation 27 of Chapter 1V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015.
43.  COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEES:

Following is the composition of the various committees as on 31 March 2025:

A) Composition of the Audit Committee:
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Name Capacity Designation
Mr. T C Suseel Kumar | Non-Executive - Independent Director | Chairman
Ms. Kusum Dadoo Non-Executive - Independent Director | Member
Mr. Suresh Kalra Executive Director Member

B) Composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee:
Name Capacity Designation

Mr. T. C. Suseel Kumar

Non-Executive - Independent Director

Chairperson

Ms. Kusum Dadoo Non-Executive - Independent Director | Member
Mr. Kaushik Roy Non-Executive - Non-Independent | Member
Director

C) Composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee:
Name Capacity Designation
Mr. T C Suseel Kumar | Non-Executive - Independent Director | Chairperson
Ms. Kusum Dadoo Non-Executive - Independent Director | Member
Mr. Suresh Kalra Executive Director Member

D) Composition of the Risk Management Committee:
Name Capacity Designation
Mr. T. C. Suseel Kumar | Non-Executive - Independent Director | Chairperson
Mr. Suresh Kalra Executive Director Member
Mr. Kaushik Roy Non-Executive - Non-Independent | Member

Director

E) Composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:
Name Capacity Designation
Ms. Kusum Dadoo Non-Executive - Independent Director | Member
Mr. Suresh Kalra Executive Director Member
Mr. Kaushik Roy Non-Executive -  Non-Independent | Chairperson

Director

44. GENERAL:

Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items
as there were no transactions on these items during the year under review:

. The company did not undergo any change in the nature of its business during the
financial year.

" There were no complaints relating to child labour, forced labour or involuntary
labour during the financial year 2024-25.
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45. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Directors wish to take the opportunity to place on record their sincere appreciation and
gratitude for the continued assistance, support, and cooperations extended by all
Government Authorities, Banks, Purchasers, Customers, Suppliers, Auditors and other
business associates, and last but not the least the members of the Company.

Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the committed
services by the Company’s Executives and Employees without whose help, cooperation
and hard work the Company would not have been able to achieve the results.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Aquapharm Chemical Limited

W C.ns o=
Mr. Suresh Kalra Mr. Gopal Rathi

CEO & Whole-time Director Director
Date: 23™ April 2025 DIN: 02833715 DIN: 00553066
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Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of
section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

Name(s) of the | Nature of | Duration of Salient terms | Justification Date(s) of Amount paid | Date on which
related  party | contracts / | the contracts / | of the for entering approval by as advances, if | the special
and nature of | arrangements | arrangements | contracts or into such the Board, if | any: resolution was
relationship / transactions | / transactions | arrangements | contracts or any: passed in
or arrangements general
transactions or meeting as
including the | transactions required
value, if any under first
proviso to
section 188
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) () (9) (h)
Not Applicable
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2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Name(s) of the related party and nature | Nature of contracts / | Duration of the | Salient terms of the | Date(s) of | Amount paid
of relationship arrangements / | contracts / | contracts or arrangements | approval by the | as advances, if
transactions arrangements / | or transactions including | Board, ifany: | any:
transactions the value (INR in Crore), if
any
() (b) (c) (d) (e) ®
Aquapharm PChem LLC, USA Procurement of N.A. 0.02 06/02/2025 N.A.
(Subsidiary of Aquapharm Chemical Services
LLC, USA, which is a wholly owned &
subsidiary of the Company) Services rendered 16.07
Aquapharm Specialty Chemicals LLC, | Services rendered N.A. 222 06/02/2025 N.A.
USA (Subsidiary of Aquapharm
Chemical LLC, USA, which is a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company)
Aquapharm Europe B.V. Services rendered N.A. 0.93 06/02/2025 N.A.
(Subsidiary of the company)
RPSG Resources Private Limited License fees 5 Years 10.00 06/02/2025 N.A.
PCBL (TN) Limited Sale of services N.A. 3.00 06/02/2025 N.A.

All the transactions were in the ordinary course of business and at arm’s length basis. There were no specific contracts executed.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Aquapharm Chemical Limited

Date: 23" April 2025

%alta

CEO & Whole-time Director
DIN: 02833715

C.on Q“”f)

Mr. Gopal Rathi
Director
DIN: 00553066
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Annexure Il to Board’s Report

The particulars of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange
earnings and outgo required under the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are as follows:

| A

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

(i)

The steps taken to Conserve Energy-

The Company is committed to reducing Natural Resource Utilization through a
program of Energy Conservation via structured & sustainable improvement process.
The units, of Mahad, Pirangut & Bhosari, have undertaken several programs. Key
programs are listed below:

v Mahad Plant:

¢ Installation of Variable Frequency Drive for ID & FD fan of Coal fire boiler for
power saving.
. Year 2023-24 = 3,09,000 Units.
. Year 2024-25 = 3,14,000 Units.
e Rainwater harvesting to reduce specific water consumption.
. Year 2022-23 = 21,614 Cu. M
. Year 2023-24 = 28,600 Cu. M.
- Year 2024-25 = 34,494 Cu. M.
e Reduction in coal consumption by using clinked fuel additive. Around 3%
efficiency improvement.
. Year 2023-24 = 275 MT - Coal Saved.
. Year 2024-25 = 326 MT — Coal Saved
e Temperature transmitter installed to interlock cooling tower fan to optimize
power consumption in winter & monsoon season.
e Specific power consumption reduced from.
. Year 2023-24 = 168 to 153 KWh/MT of product.
. Year 2024-25 = 153 to 150 KWh/MT of product.
e Specific water consumption reduced from
. Year 2023-24 = 2.28 to 2.03 Cub M/ MT of product.
. Year 2024-25 = 2.03 to 1.95 Cub M/ MT of product

v Pirangut Plant:

e Process optimized to reduce the batch cycle time & specific utility consumption
of each product.
e Switched from old CFL (Compact Fluorescent Lamp) bulbs to LED (Light
Emitting Diode) bulbs.
e Energy saved by using the tanker’s own pump to unload Furnace Oil (FO)
instead of relying on facility-based unloading pumps.
e Rainwater harvesting -
. Year 2022-23 = 450 Cu. M.
. Year 2023-24 = 480 Cu. M.
. Year 2024-25 =505 Cu. M

%AOUAPHARM
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(ii.)

(iii.)

(iv.)

The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy:

o  Windmill Installation - Taluka Jath, Dist. Sangali. Power generation from wing
mill for year as follows -
- Year 2022-23 = 3302240 units.

] Year 2023-24 = 3613772 units.
] Year 2024-25 = 3466883 units.

0  Solar System Installation — at HO Pune for captive consumption. The power
generation from solar system is as follows.
. Year 2022-23 = 44363 units.

= Year 2023-24 = 40000 units.
= Year 2024-25 = 36500 units.

0  Solar System Installation — at Innovation Center Bhosari. Power generation per
year as follows -
. Year 2022-23 = 13013 units.

] Year 2023-24 = 29158 units.
] Year 2024-25 = 48255 units.

The capital investment on energy conservation equipment:

0  The Company invested in Windmill in the year 2014-15.

The Company invested in Solar System in the year 2015-16 at Head office.

0  The Company invested in Solar System in the years 2016-17 (10 KVA) & 2023-
24 (28 KVA) at New Innovation Centre.

o

The overall carbon footprint (Scope I) improvement is as follows —

. 2021-22 = 0.37 kg/MT of product.
. 2022-23 = 0.30 kg/MT of product.
. 2023-24 = 0.29 kg/MT of product.
. 2024-25 = 0.28 kg/MT of product.

B.

Technology Absorption and Research & Development (R&D):

» the efforts made towards technology absorption.
> the benefits derived like new product development, product improvement, cost

(i)

reduction or import substitution.

Technology Absorption:

R&D has developed new products and formulations for textile applications, paper &
pulp, corrosion inhibition, scale control for cooling water, detergents, power
generation plants, oil field applications and home & personal care. Some of them are
already commercialized and others are ready for commercialization.
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(ii.) Research & Development (R&D):

Focus areas for R&D are to develop future technologies for Aquapharm, targeting
sustainable growth, exploring new applications and enhancing customer base with
total customer satisfaction. Previous year, R&D Innovation Centre made significant
progress in following technologies:
. New formulations for paper & pulp, digester & bleaching application
. New emulsion polymers for textile applications
. Backward integration of products for sustainable growth and to mitigate
market inflation.
. New REACH registration of green chelant & phosphonates to increase EU
customer base
. Green chelating agents and new formulations with different variants’/forms
developed for detergent segment.
. As per market demand, polymer based solid products were developed for
detergent/home care applications
. Several new application areas for existing products are identified with
product modifications to meet specific requirements.
. Based on customer demand, new variants of existing phosphonates (salts, %
actives, pH variations) were successfully developed
. Granule product line for green chelant and biodegradable polymer
o Production & current business support:
0  Six Sigma approach to enhance productivity & quality through cycle
time reduction and process improvements
o] Implementation of cheaper RMs to reduce the cost of product
0  Value added use of by-products to make new products thereby utilizing
waste.

Overall, this has resulted in reducing the Carbon footprint.

(iii.) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from
the beginning of the financial year)-

a) the details of technology imported; N.A
b) the year of import; N.A
c) whether the technology been fully absorbed,; N.A

d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, | N.A
and the reasons thereof; and the expenditure incurred on Research
and Development.

(iv.) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development.
(Amount in INR Crores)
2024-25 | 2023-24

[1] Capital 0.38 0.01
[2] Revenue 12.06 2.53
Total R&D Expenditure 12.44 2.54

(Percentage of total Turnover) 1.57% 2.18%
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‘ C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the Foreign
Exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual outflows.

(Amount in INR Crores)

2024-25 2023-24

Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows 566.27 83.00
Foreign Exchange outgo in terms of actual outflows 490.19 80.43

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Aquapharm Chemical Limited

JRE A Coox e
r. Suresh Kalra Mr. Gopal Rathi

CEO & Whole-time Director Director
Date: 231 April 2025 DIN: 02833715 DIN: 00553066
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IAnnexure 111 to Board’s Report|

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities
[Pursuant to clause (0) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

1. Abrief outline on CSR policy of the Company:

CSR Policy intends to:
Strive for economic development that positively impacts the society at large with
minimal resource footprint.

Embrace responsibility for the Company’s actions and encourage a positive impact
through its activities on hunger, poverty, malnutrition, health and wellbeing,
environmental sustainability, education, livelihood improvement, basic amenities,
communities, stakeholders and the society and one or more of such other activities that
may be included in future in Schedule VI to the Act.

The Key focus areas of CSR Policy are:

I. Senior Citizens Care:
Empower and to ensure physical, mental, and social wellbeing of senior citizens by
bringing the senior citizens to the mainstream of life through setting up of “senior
citizens' community centre.’

ii. Health:
Maternal and child health and nutrition, early childcare and development,
adolescent health and hygiene and community health and hygiene in underserved
areas and among underprivileged sections.

ii. Education:
Access to quality education with level-appropriate reading and writing ability, and
mainstreaming drop-out children through in-school and outside school
interventions for underprivileged children. Creating a child-friendly environment
in government and government- aided schools by providing infrastructure in the
form of classrooms, water and sanitation facilities, libraries, playgrounds,
computers, etc.

Iv. Environment:
Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and
fauna, animal welfare, agro-forestry, conservation of natural resources and
maintaining the quality of soil, air and water.

V. Community development and skill development:
Access to basic civic amenities, such as, safe drinking water, appropriate and
adequate sanitation facilities for underprivileged communities. Protection of child
rights, women empowerment, and skill development of youths from
underprivileged communities for improving their employability.

Vi. National Heritage, Art and Culture:
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Protecting national heritage, art and culture including restoration of buildings and
sites of historical importance and works of art; setting up public libraries;
promoting and developing traditional arts and handicrafts.

The Company strives to be in service of the community at large and provide services that
create holistic development and operate in alignment with the Company’s philosophy.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Sr. | Name of Director | Designation / | CSR Committee | CSR Committee
No. Nature of | meetings  held | attended during
Directorship during the vyear | the year
(Numbers) (Numbers)
1. *Mr. Raj Kumar | Chairman of 2 2
Gupta Committee /
Director
2. *Mr. Kaushik | Member / Whole- 2 2
Mukherjee time Director
3. Ms. Kusum Dadoo | Member / Director 2 2
4. Mr. Kaushik Roy | Member / Director 2 0
5. Mr. Suresh Kalra | Member / Whole- 2 0
time Director
*During the year, Mr. Raj Kumar Gupta and Mr. Kaushik Mukherjee has resigned from
the post of Director. Due to resignation of Directors and appointment of new Directors,
the CSR Committee was reconstituted on 27" March 2025.

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR
Projects approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the Company:
https://www.aquapharm-india.com/csr/

4.  Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR
Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable:

Not Applicable
5.
a)  Average net profit of the Company as per sub-section (5) of section 135:
INR 188.44 Crore
b)  Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5):
INR 3.77 Crore
c)  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous
financial years:
Not Applicable
d)  Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any:
NIL
e)  Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]:

INR 3.77 Crore
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6.
a)  Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing
Project):
(i) Details of CSR Amount Spent against Ongoing Projects for the financial year: NIL
(i)  Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial
year:
(INR. In Crore)
1) [ ®3) OEEEO) 6) | (7) (8)
SI. | Name of the | Item Local | Location of | Amount | Mode of | Mode  of
No. | Project. from the | area | the project. spent | Implemen | Implementa
list  of | (Yes forthe |tation - |tion -
activities | /No) | State project. | Direct Through
in District (Yes/No). | Implementi
Schedule ng Agency
VIl to Name
the Act. CSR
Registration
Number
1. | Operation Setting | Yes | Pune 0.33 | No Yes.
and up old Maharashtra Agquapharm
maintenance | age Foundation
of Senior homes,
Citizens day care CSR00013234
Community | centers
Centre, and such
Pune other
facilities
for
senior
citizens
Total 0.33

b)  Amount spent in Administrative Overheads — Nil
c)  Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable — Not Applicable
d)  Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)] — INR 0.33 Crore

e)  CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Amount Unspent (INR. in Crore): 3.44
Total Amount | Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund specified
Spent for the | Unspent CSR Account as per | under Schedule VI as per second proviso

Financial section 135(6). (INR. in Crore) to section 135(5).

Year. (INR. Amount Date of transfer Name of the Amount Date of
in Crore) Fund Transfer
INR 0.33 INR 29" April, - - -

3.44 2025
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f)  Excess amount for set-off, if any:
Sr. No. Particular Amount (in (INR)
(In Crore)
Q)] 2) 3)
i. | Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) 3.77
ii. | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 0.33

ii.

Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]

iv.

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the
previous financial years, if any

v. | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]

7.  Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three
Financial Years:

(@) () 3) “) () (6) () ¥
Sr. | Preceding | Amount Balance Amount | Amount transferredtoa | Amount Deficiency,
No. | Financial | transferred | Amountin | Spentin | Fund as specified under | remaining | if any
Year. to Unspent | Unspent the Schedule VII as per | to be spent
CSR CSR Financial | second  proviso  to | in
Account Account Year (in | subsection (5) of section | succeeding
under under INR 135, if any Financial
section 135 | subsection | Crore) Amount (in | Date of Years (in
(6) (in INR | (6) of INR Crore) | Transfer INR Crore)
Crore) section 135
(in INR
Crore)
1 2022-23 | 2.26 Nil 2.26 Not Not Nil Nil
Applicable | Applicable
2 2023-24 | 2.60 Nil 2.60 Not Not Nil Nil
Applicable | Applicable

8.  Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

No.

profit as per subsection (5) of section 135:

Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net

The Company has an ongoing project of setting up an International School at Alipore in
Kolkata launching Grade 6 to Grade 12 by RP- Sanjiv Goenka Group CSR Trust.
Accordingly, the spending of CSR expenditure was not possible to be done in a span of
1 (one) year. However, the Company has transferred the amount of unspent CSR into the
Unspent CSR Account within the time prescribed under the Act.

Date: 23 April 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Aquapharm Chemical Limited

CEO & Whole-time Director
DIN: 02833715

c.o Lo
Mr. Gopal Rathi

Director

DIN: 00553066
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Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/Associate
Companies/Joint Ventures
Part “A”: Subsidiaries

Sr. No. Particulars Details
1. | Name of the Subsidiary | Aquapharm | Aquapharm | Unique Aquaphar
Europe B.V. | Chemicals | Solutions for m
LLC Chemical Foundatio
(Including Industries n
figures of Company
Aquapharm | (including the
Pchem LLC, | figures of
USA and USCI LLC
Aquapharm | Sharjah Media
Specialty City, Sharjah)
Chemicals,
LLC)
2. | Reporting period for the
subsidiary concerned, if | April to April to April to March | April to
different from the March March March
holding company’s
reporting period
3. | Reporting currency and
Exchange rate as on the | EUR usD SAR INR
last date of the relevant | 1EUR =INR | 1 USD = 1SAR =INR
financial year in the 92.3246 INR 22.8217
case of foreign 85.5814
subsidiaries
(Amount in INR Crores) |
4. | Share capital 0.01 11.71 9.78 0.01
5. | Reserves & surplus 5.36 350.65 -50.35 6.73
6. | Total assets 44.22 439.77 67.12 6.87
7. | Total liabilities 38.85 78.43 107.69 0.12
8. | Investments - - - -
9. | Turnover 35.23 691.60 45.94 0.32
10. | Profit before taxation 2.45 57.12 -2.88 -0.14
11. | Provision for taxation -0.93 -16.43 -0.22 -
Deferred tax - 10.21 - -
12. | Profit after taxation 1.52 50.90 -3.10 -0.14
13. | Proposed Dividend - - - -
14. | % of shareholding 100.00% 100.00% 95.00% 100%

The subsidiaries have been audited as per the respective financial years applicable.
1. Names of Subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations:
Not Applicable.
2. Names of Subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year.
Not Applicable.
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Not Applicable.

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate
Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of associates/Joint Ventures N
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date N\
2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the \
company on the year end
Number of Shares \
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture \
% Shareholding N.A.
3. Description of how there is significant influence \
4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not \
consolidated
5. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest
audited Balance Sheet \
6. Profit/Loss for the year N\
i. Considered in Consolidation \
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation

1. Names of Associates or Joint Ventures which are yet to commence operations.
Not Applicable

2. Names of Associates or Joint Ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year.
Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Aquapharm Chemical Limited

e vd .o Lo

Mr. Suresh Kalra Mr. Gopal Rathi
CEO & Whole-time Director Director
Date: 23" April 2025 DIN: 02833715 DIN: 00553066
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COMPANY SECRETARIES
Flat No. A -103, Reya, Above LG Showroom, Opp. PU LA. Deshpande Garden, Pune -4110030
PHONE: +91 7420071553 E-mail: admin@mehta-mehta.in. Visit us : www.mehta-mehta.com

FORM MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Aquapharm Chemical Limited
9th and 10th Floor, Amar Synergy,
12B, Sadhu Vaswani Road, Pune,
Mabharashtra, India, 411001

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Agquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly Known as
Advaya Chemical Industries Ltd) (hereinafter called the "Company"). Secretarial audit was conducted
in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report
that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31
March 2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to
the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on 31 March 2025 according to the provisions of:

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA") and the rules made thereunder;

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial

Borrowings;

(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') as amended from time to time:-

REGISTERED OFFICE: 201-206, SHIV SMRITI CHAMBERS, 2"P FLOOR, 49A, DR. ANNIE BESANT ROAD, ABOVE
CORPORATION BANK, WORLI, MUMBAI -400018
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COMPANY SECRETARIES
Flat No. A -103, Reya, Above LG Showroom, Opp. PU LA. Deshpande Garden, Pune -4110030
PHONE: +91 7420071553 E-mail: admin@mehta-mehta.in. Visit us : www.mehta-mehta.com

(@)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (during the period under review not applicable to the
Company)

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 (during the period under review not applicable to the Company);

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021; (during the period under review not applicable to the Company)

()  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; (during the period under review not applicable to the Company)

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(n)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009
(during the period under review not applicable to the Company); and

(i)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018
(during the period under review not applicable to the Company);

(1)  Any other Act, Regulations, Rules, Circulars, Guidelines, Notifications or Directions, as
amended from time to time, issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India and
applicable to the Company, if any.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

e Secretarial Standards for Board Meetings (SS-1) and for General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI);

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of the Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in composition of the Board
of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

REGISTERED OFFICE: 201-206, SHIV SMRITI CHAMBERS, 2"P FLOOR, 49A, DR. ANNIE BESANT ROAD, ABOVE
CORPORATION BANK, WORLI, MUMBAI -400018
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COMPANY SECRETARIES
Flat No. A -103, Reya, Above LG Showroom, Opp. PU LA. Deshpande Garden, Pune -4110030
PHONE: +91 7420071553 E-mail: admin@mehta-mehta.in. Visit us : www.mehta-mehta.com

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent well in advance as prescribed under the applicable standards, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and
for meaningful participation at the meeting.

During the Audit Period, all the decisions were taken unanimously and there was no instance of dissent
found in the minutes of the Board or Committee meetings.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable Acts, Laws,
Rules, Regulations, Circulars, Standards and guidelines.

We further report that during the Audit Period, the Company has undertaken the below mentioned
specific event / action have taken place, having major bearing on the Company’s compliance
responsibility in pursuance of the above-referred Acts, Laws, Rules, Regulations, Circulars, Standards
and Guidelines, etc:

1. During the year, the wholly owned subsidiary of the listed entity, Aquapharm Chemical Private
Limited, was amalgamated with the listed entity pursuant to the provisions of Section 233 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

2. The listed entity has changed its name from Advaya Chemical Industries Ltd to Aquapharm
Chemical Ltd. The Company has applied to BSE for updating the name change, and the process
is currently underway

For Mehta & Mehta,
Company Secretaries
(ICSI Unique Code P1996MH007500)

SD/-

Ashwini Inamdar

Partner

FCS No: F9409 Place: Mumbai UDIN: F009409G000509359
CP No.: 11226 Date: 23-04-2025 PR No. 3686/2023

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A” and
forms an integral part of this report.

REGISTERED OFFICE: 201-206, SHIV SMRITI CHAMBERS, 2"P FLOOR, 49A, DR. ANNIE BESANT ROAD, ABOVE
CORPORATION BANK, WORLI, MUMBAI -400018
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COMPANY SECRETARIES
Flat No. A -103, Reya, Above LG Showroom, Opp. PU LA. Deshpande Garden, Pune -4110030
PHONE: +91 7420071553 E-mail: admin@mehta-mehta.in. Visit us : www.mehta-mehta.com

To,

Annexure A

The Members,

Aguapharm Chemical Limited
9th and 10th Floor, Amar Synergy,
12B, Sadhu Vaswani Road, Pune,
Maharashtra, India, 411001

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on
test basis.

As regard the books, papers, forms, reports and returns filed by the Company under the provisions
referred to in our Secretarial Audit Report in Form No. MR-3, the adherence and compliance with
the requirements of the said regulations is the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to checking the execution and timeliness of the filing of various forms, reports, returns and
documents that need to be filed by the Company with various authorities under the said
regulations. We have not verified the correctness and coverage of the contents of such forms,
reports, returns and documents.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For Mehta & Mehta,
Company Secretaries
(ICSI Unique Code P1996MH007500)

SD/-

Ashwini Inamdar

Partner

FCS No: F9409 Place: Mumbai UDIN: F009409G000509359
CP No.: 11226 Date: 23-04-2025 PR No. 3686/2023

REGISTERED OFFICE: 201-206, SHIV SMRITI CHAMBERS, 2"° FLOOR, 49A, DR. ANNIE BESANT ROAD,

ABOVE CORPORATION BANK, WORLI, MUMBAI -400018
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DETAILS OF THE DEBENTURE TRUSTEE
Name Catalyst Trusteeship Limited
CIN U74999PN1997PLC110262
Registered Office | GDA House, Plot No. 85, Bhusari Colony (Right), Paud Road, Kothrud,
Pune, Maharashtra - 411 038
Phone No. +91 22 4922 0555
Fax No. +91 (022) 49220505
Email Address ComplianceCTL-Mumbai@ctltrustee.com
Website Address | https://catalysttrustee.com/

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Aquapharm Chemical Limited

C\u.,-L Q—‘\’;’
Mr. Suresh Kalra Mr. Gopal Rathi
CEO & Whole-time Director Director

Date: 23™ April 2025 DIN: 02833715 DIN: 00553066
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F2/2, GILLANDER HOUSE
L B h u E ‘ In 8, NETAJI SUBHAS ROAD
. KOLKATA-700 001
CHARTERED AGCOUNTANTS TEL : +91-33-2242 5858/4277
FAX : +91-33-2242 0650

E-mall : Ibjha@Ibjha.com
Website : www.lbjha.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF

AQUAPHARM CHEMICAL LIMITED.

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS” ADVAYA CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED”)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

1.  We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of Aquapharm
Chemical Limited (Formerly known as “Advaya Chemical Industries Limited”)(the
“Company”’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows ,the
Statement of Changes in Equity and notes to the standalone Ind AS financial statement for the
year then ended on that date including a summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information (herein after referred to as “Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2025, its losses (including Other Comprehensive Income),
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.
Key Audit Matters
3.  Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most

significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. We have determined that the matter described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report:

1

ALSO AT : FLAT NO. 23, 1ST FLOOR, BLOCK NO. 4, SHANKAR MARKET, CONNAUGHT PLACE, NEW DELHI-110 001 e Tel : +91-011-2140 0396 @ E-mail : Ibjhadel@Ibjha.com
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Key Audit Matter

Procedures Performed

Impairment Testing of Goodwill

The Company has Goodwill of Rs 606.76
crores as at March 31, 2025, arising out of
acquisition of Aquapharm Chemicals
Private Limited (ACPL), which has been
amalgamated with Aquapharm Chemical
Limited (formerly known as Advaya
Chemical Industries Limited) (ACIL)
during the current year. The said Goodwill
has an indefinite useful life and as required
by Ind AS 36 “Impairment of Assets”, are
tested for impairment annually.

For assessment, the Company has engaged
a valuer to determine the recoverable value
of related goodwill based on discounted
cash flow method which is complex and is
sensitive  to  underlying assumptions
especially those relating to cash flow
forecasts including future business growth
and the application of an appropriate
discount rate, which are inherently
subjective.

Accordingly, impairment testing of
Goodwill is determined to be a key audit
matter in our audit of the standalone
financial statements.

Our audit procedures included, among others the
following:

e Obtained and read the report of the
management’s  expert to  evaluate the
reasonableness of the methodology and key
assumptions used by management and its expert
used for impairment testing of Goodwill.
Evaluated the competence and objectivity of the
management’s expert.

e Obtained suitable management representations
on projections of future cash flows and the
various assumptions used in the valuation.

Assessed the disclosures made in the standalone
financial statements.

Other Information

4.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report but does not include
the standalone Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The aforesaid
documents are expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the standalone Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

8. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

9.  In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

10.  The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

11.  Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone Ind AS financial statements.

12.  As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

3
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

13. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

14.  We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

15.  From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matters or when we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

16.  Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone Ind
AS financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

17.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub —section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the Annexure-A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.
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As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31% March,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31° March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company
examined by us the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 has been
paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section
197 read with Schedule V to the Act,

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclose the impact of pending litigations on the financial position
of the Group — Refer Note 38 to the standalone financial statements.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

d. (i) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 50 to the standalone financial statements , no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind

5
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of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i1))The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 50 to the standalone financial statements, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company
from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii)Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (i) and (ii) above, contain any material misstatement.

e.  The dividend declared and paid during the year by the Company is in compliance
with Section 123 of the Act.

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with
and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.

For L. B. Jha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 301088E

(D N Roy)
Place: Kolkata Partner
Date: 23.04.2025 Membership No. 300389

UDIN: 25300389 BMHWLV8758
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ANNEXURE- A: TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF AQUAPHARM CHEMICAL LIMITED.
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS ADVAYA CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED
[Referred to in paragraph 17 of the Auditors’ Report of even date]

(@)(A)

®)
(b)

©

(d)

(©

(@)

(b)

(a)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles
assets

The Company has a program of physical verification of fixed assets to cover all its
major items in a phased manner over a period of three years, which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the programme, a portion of fixed assets have been physically verified by
the management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on
such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, the title deeds of the immovable properties of the
Company are held in the name of the Company other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
company examined by us, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant
and Equipment or Intangible assets during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been
initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31,2025 for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
(as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

The inventory (excluding inventory with third parties) has been physically verified
by the management during the year. The discrepancies noticed on physical
verification of inventory as compared to book records were not material and have
been properly dealt with in the books of account. In our opinion, the frequency of
verification is reasonable.

During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of
INR 5 crores in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The
Company has filed quarterly returns or statements with such banks which are in
agreements with the unaudited books of accounts. (Also, refer Note 23 of the
Financial Statements)

The Company has made investments and granted unsecured loan to a subsidiary. The
aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding as at the Balance Sheet
date with respect to such loan, securities and guarantees to subsidiary and to parties
on behalf of the subsidiary are as per the table given below:
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Particulars Loans Guarantees Securities

Aggregate amount
granted/ provided
during the year:

- Subsidiaries - - -

- Others - - -

Balance outstanding
as at balance sheet
date in respect of the

above case:
- Subsidiaries INR 26.93 Crores | INR 56.51 Crores -
- Others - -
(b) In respect of the aforesaid investments, guarantees, securities and loan, the terms and

conditions under which such loan was granted, investments were made and
guarantees and securities were provided are not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

(c) In respect of the loan, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest
has been stipulated and accordingly there was no principal and interest amount that
has fallen due in the current year.

(d) In respect of the loan, there is no amount which is overdue for more than ninety days.

) There were no loans or advances in nature of loans which have fallen due during the
year and were renewed or extended except for a loan given to a subsidiary which was
extended during the year. Further, no fresh loans were granted to same parties to
settle the existing overdue loans or advances in nature of loan.

There were no loans or advances in nature of loans which were granted during the
® . : :

year, including to promoters or related parties that were repayable on demand or

without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, the Company has not given any loans, given guarantees or
provided any securities to others during the year as per the provisions of section 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has complied with the provisions
of section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of investments made during the year.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed there
under. Further, no orders have been passed by Company Law Board or National
Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal
which could impact the Company.
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vi. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company pursuant
to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records
under sub-section (1) of section 148 in respect of the Company’s product to which the
said rules are made applicable and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed
records have been made and maintained. We have however not made a detailed
examination of the said records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

Vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in
depositing the undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, goods
and service tax, duty of customs, cess and any other statutory dues, as applicable,
with the appropriate authorities.

(b) There are no statutory dues of provident fund, employees' state insurance, profession
tax, labor welfare fund and sales tax, which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute. The particulars of other statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) as at
March 31, 2025 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as

follows:
Name Gross. Payment Net Pel:l()d to Forum where the
Nature | Amount Amount | which the . .
of the under dispute is
statute of dues (INR rotest (INR amount endin
Cr) p Cr) relates P g
Income 0.01 0.01 AY 2014- | CPC (Centralized
Tax ’ - ’ 15 Processing Centre)
Hon’ble Income
Income AY 2016- | Tax
The Tax 4.05 I 2.9 17 AppellateTribunal
Income (ITAT)
Tax Act,
1961 1
Income AY 2020- | CIT (Appeal)
Tax 1.24 - 1.24 21 NFAC
Income AY 2021- | CIT (Appeal),
Tax 0.20 - 0.20 22 NFAC
Income 011 011 AY 2022- | CIT (Appeal)
Tax ) - ’ 23 NFAC
Income AY 2023-
Tax 18.75 ) 18.75 24 CPC
March-
Excise 2015 to CESTAT,
Central | puty 0.14 0.01 0-14 1 pecember- | Mumbai
Excise 2016
Act,
1944 . January
g’;"‘se 0.05 0 0.05 | 2017 to %ﬁf
y July 2017
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(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)
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. April 2011
Service 3.62 0.18 344 | to March | SESTAT,
Tax Mumbai
2016
December
. Service 2011 to CESTAT,
Finance Tax 0.06 0 0.06 March Mumbai
Act 2016
1994
. Deputy Director
Service April 2017 Cost GST &
2.2 2.2 | to June .
Tax - Central Excise,
2017 .
Raigad
Goods Goods Assistant
and and Commissioner.
SE;I;:CG Service 1.4 0.35 1.05 Feb-2018 CGST AuditI
2017 tax, 2017 Committee, Pune
Customs Customs- January Commissioner of
Act, MEIS 48.66 2.22 46.44 | 2017 to Customs (Port),
1962 May 2022 | Kolkata

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or in
the payment of interest to lenders during the year.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, the Company has used the term loans for the purpose for
which loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised
on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term
purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statement of the company, the Company has not taken
funds from an entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries. Hence, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

10
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According to the information and explanation given to us and procedure performed

() by us, the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiary company. Further, the company has not defaulted in repayment
of such loans raised. The details of the aforesaid is as given below.

X. (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under this
clause is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares/
fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and
hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

xi. (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come
across any instance of fraud on or by the Company, noticed or reported during the
year, nor have we been informed of such case by the management.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this
report.

(©) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, the Company has not received any complaints from any
whistle- blower during the year (and upto the date of this report) and hence reporting
under this clause is not applicable.

Xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under this clause is not
applicable.
xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the

Company examined by us, the Company has complied with the requirements of
sections 188 and 177 of the Act with respect to the transactions with the related
parties. Pursuant to the requirement of the applicable Accounting Standard, details of
the related party transactions have been disclosed in Note 41 of the financial
statements for the year under audit.

Xiv. (a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for
the period under audit have been considered by us.

XV. In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

| 11
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XVI. (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3 (xvi) (a) & (b)
is not applicable.

(b) &(c) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in
the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and hence
reporting under this clause is not applicable.

XVil. According to the information and explanation given to us and records of the company
examined by us, the Company has not incurred cash losses during the current
financial year and Immediate previous year.

XVii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

XiX. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

XX. (a) The Company has not undertaken any “other than ongoing projects” in pursuance of
its Corporate Social Responsibility Policy. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(a)
Of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is yet to transfer the amount remaining unspent in respect of CSR
expenditure on ongoing projects, to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the
Companies Act, 2013 till the date of our report. However, the time period for such
transfer i.e., thirty days of the expiry of the financial year as permitted under the
second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act, has not elapsed till the
date of our report.

(b)

For L. B. Jha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 301688E

A7
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Place: Kolkata : S8 — (DN Roy)’j
Date: 23.04.2025 e Partner
' Membership No. 300389
UDIN: 25300389 BMHWLYV8758
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ANNEXURE- B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Aquapharm Chemical Limited.

(Formerly known as “Advaya Chemical Industries Limited”)

[Referred to in paragraph 18 (f) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Control under Clause (i) of Sub —sections 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”)

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Aquapharm Chemical
Limited (Formerly known as “Advaya Chemical Industries Limited”). (“the Company”) as of
31* March, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Control

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
control based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the “Guidance
Note” and the Standard on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of
internal financial control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal controls based
on the assessed risk. The procedure selected depends on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the financial statement, whether due to fraud or
error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

[
T
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Meaning of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting

6. A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
standalone Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that

1) Pertain to the maintenance of the records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.

2) provide reasonable assurance that the transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of standalone Ind AS financial statements accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditure of the Company are being made
only in accordance with authorization of management and directors of company; and

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting

7. Because of inherent limitation of internal financial control over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to errors or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluations of the
internal financial control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respect, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31st March 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the company considering, the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control Over Financial Reporting, issued by
ICAL

For L. B. Jha & Co.
Chartered Accountants

,—,\f;;”—.: N Firm Registration No: 301088E
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(D N Roy)
Place: Kolkata Partner
Date: 23.04.2025 Membership No. 300389

UDIN: 25300389 BMHWLV8758
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Agquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")

Standalone Ind AS Balance Shect as at March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

q As at As at
R NoteNo. 39+ March 2025 31st March 2024
ASSETS
Non-current Assets
Property, planl and equipment 4a 355.35 302.08
Capital work-in-progress 4b 286.48 112,50
Goodwill 5a 606.57 1,161,29
Intangible assels Pl 2,072.28 2,164.20
Right of use assels 4c 56.79 56.90
Financial assets

Investments 6 273.90 270.00

Loans 7 8.14 744

Other financial assets 8 5.75 458
Non current tax assets (net) 22 498 0.18
Other non-current assets 9 0.94 11.92
Total Non-current Assets 3,671.18 4,091.09
Current Assets
Inventories 10 22351 154.26
Financial assets

Investments 11 C 36.85

Trade receivables 12 195.18 198.81

Cash and cash equivalenls 13 38.54 83.53

Other Bank balances 14 7.93 14.00

Other financial assets 15 1613 1031
Other current assels 16 35.82 23.96
Total Current Assets 517.11 521.72
Total Assets 4,188.29 4,612.81
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equitv sharve capital 17a 2,850.00 100.00
Instruments entirely equity in nature 17b - 2,750.00
Other equity 18 (114.06) (36.38)
Tolal Equity 2,735.94 2,813.62
Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 19 823.64 848.29
Lease Liabilitics 4d 0.29 -

Other financial liabilities 25 - 3641
Provisions 20 1.35 1.79
Deferred tax liabilities (nel} 21 256 57755
Total Non-current Liabililies 827.84 1,464.04
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 23 279.62 178.78

Lease Liabililies 4d 022 -

Trade Pavables

(1) Micro enlerprises & small enterprises 24 3.84 6.16
(if) Other than micro enterprises & small enterprises 24 146.37 78.99

Other financial liabilities 25 178.86 55.21
Provisions 26 5.79 5.23
Current tax liabilities (net) 22 - 234
Other current liabilities 27 9.81 8.4
Total Current Liabilities 624.51 335.15
Total Liabilities 1,452.35 1,799.19
Total Equity & Liabilities 4,188.29 4,612.81

2

Summary of material accounting policy information
The accompanving noles are an integral parl of Financial Statements.

This is Standalone Balarwe Sheel referred to in our report of even date
ForL B Jha & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 301088E

D.N.Roy

Partner

Membership No.: 300389
Place: Kolkata

Date: 23rd April, 2025

1

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as
"Advaya Chemical Induslries Limited")

anesh Vishwanathan
Chiaf Financial Officer

Suresh Kalra
CEO and Whole time Director
DIN: 02833715

Cw\\,m(lo:z

Gopal Rathi

Director

DIN: 00553066

Date: 23rd April, 2025

Jayesh Damle

Company Secretary



Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Standalone Ind AS Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

: For the year ended 31st  11th January, 2024 to
Particulars Note No. March 2025 31st March, 2024
28 766.99 113.19

Revenue from operations

Other income 29 26.24 3.56
Total income 793.23 116.75
Expenses

Cost of raw materials consumed 30 458.73 7298 :
Changes in inventories of finished goods & work-in-progress 31 0.36 (11.55)
Employee benefit expense 32 64.79 9.51
Finance costs 33 104.03 1946
Depreciation and amortization expense 34 11411 19.10
Other expenses 35 149.62 45.79
Total expenses 891.64 155.29
Profit / (Loss) before tax and exceptional items (98.41) (38.56)
Exceptional items (refer note 49) :

Impairment of Goodwill 554.72 =
Reversal of deferred tax liability pursuant to restructuring (554.20) -
Total exceptional items : 0.52 -
Profit / (Loss) before tax (98.93) (38.56)
[ncome tax expense:

Current tax 22 - 512
Deferred tax 21 (20.91) (7.35)
Total tax expense / (gain) (20.91) (2.23)
Profit / (Loss) for the year (78.02) (36.33)
Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) (OCI)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (A)

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 0.22 0.14
Income tax relating to above (0.05) (0.03)
Total (A) 0.17 0.11
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss (B)

Net movement on cash flow hedges 0.22 (0.22)
Income tax relating to above (0.06) 0.06
Total {B) 0.16 (0.16)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year, net of tax (A+B) 0.33 (0.05)
Total comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the year (77.69) (36.38)
Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS}) (in INR) 42 (1.87) (4.17)
Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) (in INR) 42 (1.87) (4.17)
{Nominal value per share: INR 10)

Summary of material accounting policy information 2

The accompanying noles are an integral part of Financial Statements.

This is Statement of Standalone Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For L B Jha & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as

Firm Registration No.: 301088E "Advaya Chemical Indusitries Limited")

D.N.Roy uresh Kalra anesh Vishwanathan
Partner CEO and Whole time Director Chief Financial Officer
Membership No.: 300389 DIN: 02833715
Place: Kolkata /
Date: 23rd April, 2025 W
C. o\ O.éf-‘-) ’
Gopal Rathi ‘ Jayesh Damle
Director Company Secretary

DIN: 00553066
Date: 23rd April, 2025



Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Standalone Ind AS Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Allamounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 11th January, 2024 to

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March, 2024
A. Operating activities
Profit/ (Loss) before tax (98.93) (38.56)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortization expense 11411 19.10
Net movement in exceptional items {refer note 49) 0.52 -
(Profit) / Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.09) (0.13)
(Profit) / Loss on sale of investments (3.18) -
Change in fair value of investments “ (0.63)
Finance costs 104.03 19.46
Interest income (3.12) (0.45)
Unrealized foreign exchange difference (net) (5.07) (1.22)
Operating profit before working capital changes 108.27 (2.43)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivable 7.34 (1.13)
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories (69.25) (1.02)
Decrease/(Increase) in loans given to related parties 0.21 0.07
Decrease/ (Increase) in other financial assets (5.15) 4.67
Decrease/(Increase) in other current asszats (11.86) 0.84
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables 65.19 (23.57)
Increase/(Decrease) in employee benefit obligations 0.34 (1.85)
Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial liabilities 6.93 24.35
Increase/ (Decrease) in other current liabilities 1.37 (2.54)
Cash generated from operating activities 103.39 (2.61)
Income tax paid (net of refunds) (7.14) (0.06)
Net cash flows generated from / (used in) operating activities (A) 96.25 (2.67)
B. Investing activities*
Purchase of property, plant and equipments and intangible assets (156.22) (17.29)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipments 1.44 0.61
Purchase of current investments (191.19) (24.88)
Payment towards acquisition of a subsidiary acquired in a business combination - (3,730.09)
Proceeds from sale of current investments 231.23 24.99
Net movement in other bank balances 6.07 0.11
Investment in Subsidiaries (3.91) -
Interest Received 1.28 0.05
Net cash flows used in investing activities (B) (111.30) (3,746.50)
C. Financing activities*
Proceeds from Issue of Equity Shares - 100.00
Proceeds from Issue of Optionally Convertible Debenture (OCD) - 2,750.00
Proceeds from current borrowings 230.16 20.82
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 148.00 997.89
Repayment of current borrowings (150.61) (24.96)
Repayment of non-current borrowings (151.93) -
Interest paid (105.72) (11.34)
Payment of prinicipal portion of lease liabilities (0.12) -
Net cash flows (used in) / generated from financing activities (C) (30.22) 3,832.41
[.Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (45.27) 83.24
I1.Effect of exchange rate change in cash and cash equivalents 0.28 0.29
IIl.Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year (refer note 13) 83.53 -
IV.Cash and cash equivalents as at year end (refer note 13) (I1+11+11I) 38.54 83.53

*There are no non cash investing and financing activities during the year. For additions to Right of use of assets, refer note 4(c).
Refer note 23 for changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.




Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Standalone Ind AS Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Components of cash and cash equivalents:
As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Balances with banks 38.51 83 48
Cash on hand 0.03 0.05
38.54 83.53

Total cash and cash equivalents

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

This is Statement of Standalone Cash flows referred to in our report of even date
For L B Jha & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 301088E "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")

D.N.Roy Suresh Kalra
Partner CEO and Whole time Director
Membership No.: 300389 DIN: 02833715

Place: Kolkata
Date: 23rd April, 2025

..o Qlao
Gopal Rathi " *
Director

DIN: 00553066
Date: 23rd April, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as

Ganesh Vishwanathan
Chief Financial Officer

7

Jayesh Damle
Company Secretary



A quapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Standalone Ind AS Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Allamounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

A Equity Share Capital

Note no No. of shares Amount
(Units)
As atJanuary 11, 2024 - =
Shares issued during the period 17a 10,00,00,000 100.00
As at March 31, 2024 10,00,00,000 100.00
Shares issued during the year 17a 2,75,00,00,000 2,750.00
As at March 31, 2025 2,85,00,00,000 2,850.00
B Instruments Entirely Equity In Nature
0.1% Optionally and Fully Convertible Debentures (OCDs")
Note no No. of shares Amount
(Units)
As at January 11, 2024 - -
OCDs issued during the period 17b 2,75,00,00,000 2,750.00
As at March 31, 2024 2,75,00,00,000 2,750.00
OCDs coverted to equity shares in the ratio 1:1 17b (2,75,00,00,000) (2,750.00)
As at March 31, 2025 = -
C Other Equity
Reserves and surplus |Other reserves Total
Retained earnings Cash flow
hedge reserve

Profit / (Loss) for the period (36.33) - (36.33)
Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) 0.11 (0.16) (0.05)
As at March 31, 2024 (36.22) (0.16) (36.38)
Profit / (Loss) for the year (78.02) - (78.02)
Other Comprehensive Income 0.17 - 017
Transferred to Statement of profit and loss (Net) - 0.16 0.16
As at March 31, 2025 (114.06) - (114.06)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Statements.

This is Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date

For L B Jha & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as

Firm Registration No.: 301088E "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
D.N.Roy és::Kalra Ganesh Vishwanathan
Partner CEO and Whole time Director Chief Financial Officer
Membership No.: 300389 DIN: 02833715

Place: Kolkata
Date: 23rd April, 2025

Cops o =

Gopal Rathi Jayesh Damle
Director Company Secretary
DIN: 00553066

Date: 23rd April, 2025



Aquapharm Chemical Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

1. Corporate information

Aquapharm Chemical Limited (the Company) is a public limited company domiciled in India and
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The registered office of the Company is
located at 9" and 10t Floor, Amar Synergy, 12B, Sadhu Vaswani Road, Pune, Maharashtra, India. The
Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing and sales of basic and special chemicals
used in detergents, soaps and other chemical industries.

2. Accounting policies

This note provides a list of the Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these standalone
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The standalone financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The standalone Ind AS financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

e Derivative financial instruments
e (ertain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
e Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value

The standalone Ind AS financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in Crores, except when
otherwise indicated.

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current

classification. An asset is current when it is:

* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

* Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

* Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

¢ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
* [t is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
e [t is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
e Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
e Thereis no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle of the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents,
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2.2 Material accounting policies
a) Revenue from contracts with customers

Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers standard deals with revenue recognition and
establishes principles for reporting useful information to users of financial statements about the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s contracts with
customers. Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of a promised good or service and thus
has the ability to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the good or service in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services.

The five-step process that must be applied before revenue can be recognised:
e identify contracts with customers
* identify the separate performance obligation
e determine the transaction price of the contract
¢ allocate the transaction price to each of the separate performance obligations, and
e recognise the revenue as each performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue recognition policy
The Company has following streams of revenue:

(i) Revenue from sale of products

The Company accounts for a coniract when it has approval and commitment from parties involved, the
rights of the parties are identified, payment terms are identified, the contract has commercial substance and
collectability of consideration is probable. The Company assesses for the timing of revenue recognition in
case of each distinct performance obligation. The Company first assesses whether the revenue can be
recognized over time as it performs if any of the following criteria is met:

¢ The customer simultaneously consumes the benefits as the Company performs, or

¢ The customer controls the work-in-progress, or

e The Company’s performance does not create an asset with alternative use to the Company and
the Company has right to payment for performance completed till date.

If none of the criteria above are met, the Company recognizes revenue at a point-in-time. The point-in-time
is determined when the control of the goods or services is transferred which is generally determined based
on when the significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the customer. Apart from this,
the Company also considers its present right to payment, alternative use, the legal title to the goods, the
physical possession and the customer acceptance in determining the point in time when control has been

transferred.

The Company estimates variable consideration using expected value method of probability-weighted
values at an amount to which it expects to be entitled. The Company includes estimated amounts in the
transaction price to the extent it is probable that a significant reversal of cumulative revenue recognized
will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is resolved. The estimates
of variable consideration and determination of whether to include estimated amounts in the transaction

price are based largely on an assessment of the
anticipated performance and all information (historical, current and forecasted) that is reasonably available.

Contracts are modified to account for changes in contract specifications and requirements. The Company
considers contract modifications to exist when the modification either creates new or changes the existing
enforceable rights and obligations. Most of the contract modifications are for goods or services that are not

contract and are accounted for as if they were part of that existing contract.
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Financing components: The Company does not expect to have any material contracts where the period
between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer
exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time
value of money.

Revenue recognised at a point-in-time

For contracts where performance obligation(s) are not satisfied over time, revenue is recognized at a point
in time when control is transferred to the customer ~ based on right to payment, delivery terms, alternative
use of goods, payment terms, customer acceptance and other indicators of control as mentioned above.

b) Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the company operates ("the functional currency'). The financial statements
are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they
relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges or are attributable to part of
the net investment in a forcign operation. A monetary item for which settlement is neither planned nor
likely to occur in the foreseeable future is considered as a part of the entity's net investment in that foreign

operation.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the statement
of profit and loss within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
Statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other gains/(losses).

The Company uses forward contracts to hedge its exposure to movements in foreign exchange rates which
are designated as cash flow hedges. To the extent these hedges are effective, the changes in fair value of the
hedging instrument is recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve. Amounts recognised in cash flow
hedging reserve are reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equity instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non-monetary
assets such as equity investments classified as FVOCI are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was

determined.
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c) Income Taxes
Current income tax and Deferred tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers whether
it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

¢ When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

¢ In respect of taxable temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in subsidiaries, branches, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled by the Company and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it
is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted as at the reporting date and are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled.

Current and Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to income taxes levied by same taxation
authorities on either same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle the current
tax assets and tax liabilities on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

d) Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land and capital work in progress are carried at historical costs. All other items of property, plant
and equipment are stated at historical cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs if the recognition criteria are met. When
parts of the property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the

|
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depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of
profit and loss as incurred. No decommissioning liabilities are expected to be incurred on the assets of plant
and equipment.

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalised. Indirect expenditure incurred during
construction period is capitalised as part of the construction costs to the extent the expenditure can be
attributable to construction activity or is incidental there to. Income earned during the construction period
is deducted from the total of the indirect expenditure.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values,
over their estimated useful lives. The Company, based on technical assessments made by technical experts
and management estimates, depreciates certain items of tangible assets over estimated useful lives which
are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The management
believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over
which the assets are likely to be used. Table below provide the details of the useful lives considered by
Management with comparison with useful lives prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013:

Asset Category Useful Life | Useful life (Schedule II)
considered#

Factory Building (“Buildings”) 30 Years 30 Years

Residential Building (“Buildings”) 60 Years 60 Years

Factory Roads (“Buildings) 10 Years 10 Years

Plant and Machinery (Other than Glass | 10-22 Years * Plant and Machinery for continuous

Lined Reactors and Condenser) process plant- 25 years

Plant and Machinery (Glass Lined |5 Years* Reactors20 Years

Reactors and Condenser)

Furniture and fixtures 10 Years 10 Years

Computers 3 Years 3 Years

Office equipment 5 Years 5 Years

Electrical installations 10 Years 10 Years

Vehicles 3 Years * 8 Years

Windmill (“Plant and Machinery”) 22 Years 22 Years

Laboratory Equipments (“Plant and | 10 Years 10 Years

Machinery”)

* Considered on the basis of management’s estimation, supported by technical advice, of the useful lives of

the respective assets.
# Residual value considered as 5% on the basis of management’s estimation, supported by technical advice.

The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of
the period over which the assets are likely to be used along with consideration of the climate related

matters.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognis
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the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is

derecognised.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in profit or loss within other gains/ (losses).

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

e) Intangible Assets

Goodwill on acquisitions is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired, or is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an
entity include carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash-generating units or group of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or group of units are identified at the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not
capitalised and the expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the

expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation
period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation
expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company does not have any intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Computer software are amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of three years.
Customer-related intangibles are amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of twenty five years.
Product-related intangibles are amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of twenty years.
Research costs are expensed as incurred-

f) Leases

As a Lessee:

The Company leases various land parcels. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 95 to 99

range of different terms and conditions.
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Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the company. Each lease payment is allocated between the principal (liability)
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset
is depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease
incentives receivable.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease.
If that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a
similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions. In case of lease payments made
in advance for the total period of lease, the company does not create any corresponding liability.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
e any initial direct costs, and

e restoration costs.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line
basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property and equipment leases across the
company. These terms are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The
majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the company and not by the
respective lessor.

As a Lessor:

Lease income from operating leases where the company is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight
line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis
as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.
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g) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of raw materials and traded goods comprises cost of purchases. Cost of work-in progress and finished
goods comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed
overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs of
inventories also include all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost includes the reclassification from equity of any gains or losses on qualifying cash flow
hedges relating to purchases of raw material but excludes borrowing costs. Costs are assigned to individual
items of inventory on the basis of weighted average basis. Costs of purchased inventory are determined
after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.
h) Employee benefit obligations

(i) Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service
are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as
current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for privilege leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end
of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the
present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees
up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are
discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating
to the terms of the related obligation. Re-measurements as a result of experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless
of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

(iii) Post-employment obligations
The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
(a) Defined benefit plans in the nature of gratuity, and
(b) Defined contribution plans in the nature of provident fund.

Gratuity obligations

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan
assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit

method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on
government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense=im=the
statement of profit and loss. C hef?,’.
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Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans

The company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local
regulations. The company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

i) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services rendered in the ordinary
course of business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional unless there are significant financing components, when they are recognised at fair value.
The company holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance.

j) Investments and Other Financial assets
i) Classification & Recognition:

The company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss)
e those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows. For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will
depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this
will depend on whether the company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
company commit to purchase or sell the financial asset.

ii) Measurement:

Atinitial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments: Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the company's business
model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three me ement

categories into which the company classifies its debt instruments:
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Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in statement of profit and loss using the effective interest rate method. Impairment losses
are presented as a separate line item in the financial statement.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss.
When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these
financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment expenses are presented as separate lines item in the financial statements.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit
or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other gains/(losses) in the period in
which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Equity instruments: The company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the
company's management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or
loss. Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when the company's
right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain/
(losses) in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Equity investment in subsidiaries are carried at historical cost as per the accounting policy choice given by
Ind AS 27.

iii) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

e Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,  debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance;

e Lease receivables under Ind AS 116

o Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result
from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

e Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
e All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from
its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Comp
that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition.
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not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the
coniract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity considers:

o All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when
the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity uses the
remaining contractual term of the financial instrument;

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the
statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described
below:

e Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those
assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets
write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying
amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on
the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to
enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e.,
financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

iv) Derecognition of financial asset

A financial asset is derecognised only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial asset or retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial
asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is
derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has
not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the
asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.
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v) Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. A fter
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and
financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are
expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations.
Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the
Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the
Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the
change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

k) Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

I) Other Income and other operating revenue

i) Interest income
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of
profit and loss.

ii) Dividends
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss when the right to receive payment is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. This applies even if they are paid out of pre-
acquisition profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment.

iii) Windmill income - wind power generation
Income from wind power generation is recognised when earned on the basis of contractual
arrangement with the buyer.

iv) Export incentives
Export of goods is eligible for incentives from Government as per Import-Export policies declared
by the Government from time to time. Company’s export products are eligible for Duty drawback
and Merchandise Exports from India Scheme (MEIS). Rates for duty drawback vary according to
products and destinations. The Company recognises duty drawback on receipt basis and MEIS on
application basis in the year of export.
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m) Provisions and contingent liabilities

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the company or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made.

n) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in

value.
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash

and cash equivalent, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts if they are considered an integral
part of the Company’s cash management.

o) Financial Guarantee Contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The
liability is initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of (i) the amount determined in
accordance with the expected credit loss model as per Ind AS 109 and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, where appropriate, cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind
AS115.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required under the debt instrument and the payments that would
be without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would be payable to the third party for assuming
the obligations.

Where the guarantees in relation to the loans or other payables of associates are provided for no
compensation, the fair values are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the
investment.

p) Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end
of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless

payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methgd
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Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability
that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit and loss under other
gains/ (losses).

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a
creditor to extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss, which is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of
a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period
with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does
not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the
approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Borrowing Costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

q) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the
counter party.

r) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.




Aquapharm Chemical Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

s) Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The Board of Directors has been identified as being the CODM. Refer
note 41 for segment information presented.

2.3 Other accounting policies
a) Government grants

Grants from the Governiment are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the company will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other
income.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are recognised in books by
deducting the grant from the carrying amount of the asset.

When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an interest rate
below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as a government
grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the government grant is
measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The
loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.

b) Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivatives are only used for economic hedging purposes and not as speculative investments.
However, where derivatives do not meet the hedge accounting criteria, they are classified as ‘held for
trading’ for accounting purposes and are accounted for at FVPL. They are presented as current assets
or liabilities to the extent they are expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The accounting
for subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.

The company designates their derivatives as hedges of foreign exchange risk associated with the cash
flows of assets and liabilities and highly probable forecast transactions (cash flow hedges). The
company documents at the inception of the hedging transaction the economic relationship between
hedging instruments and hedged items including whether the hedging instrument is expected to
offset changes in cash flows of hedged items. The company documents its risk management objective
and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions at the inception of each hedge relationship.
The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the
remaining maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 months; it is classified as a current asset or
liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months.
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(i) Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as
cash flow hedges is recognised in cash flow hedging reserve within equity. The gain or loss relating
to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When forward contracts are used to hedge forecast transactions, the company designates the full
change in fair value of the forward contract as the hedging instrument. The gains and losses relating
to the effective portion of the change in fair value of the entire forward contract are recognised in the
cash flow hedging reserve within equity. The change in the forward element of the contract that
relates to the hedged item (‘aligned forward element’) is recognised within other comprehensive
income in the costs of hedging reserve within equity. In some cases, the entity may designate the full
change in fair value of the forward contract (including forward points) as the hedging instrument. In
such cases, the gains and losses relating to the effective portion of the change in fair value of the entire
forward contract are recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve within equity.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item
affects profit or loss (for example, when the forecast sale that is hedged takes place).

When the hedged forecast transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset (for example
inventory), the amounts accumulated in equity are transferred to profit or loss as follows:

¢ With respect to gain or loss relating to the effective portion of the forward contracts, the deferred
hedging gains and losses are included within the initial cost of the asset. The deferred amounts are
ultimately recognised in profit or loss as the hedged item affects profit or loss (for example, through
cost of sales).

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria
for hedge accounting, any cumulative deferred gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging in equity at that
time remains in equity until the forecast transaction occurs. When the forecast transaction is no longer
expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging that were reported in equity
are immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

If the hedge ratio for risk management purposes is no longer optimal but the risk management objective
remains unchanged and the hedge continues to qualify for hedge accounting, the hedge relationship will
be rebalanced by adjusting either the volume of the hedging instrument or the volume of the hedged item
so that the hedge ratio aligns with the ratio used for risk management purposes. Any hedge ineffectiveness
is calculated and accounted for in profit or loss at the time of the hedge relationship rebalancing.

(ii) Derivatives that are not designated as hedges

The derivative contracts which are not designated as hedges are accounted for at fair value through profit
or loss and are included in statement of profit and loss.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in a host contract that is an asset within the scope of Ind AS 109 are not separated.
Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Derivatives embedded in all other host contract are separated only if the economic characteristics and risks
of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host and
are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives closely related to the host contracts
are not separated.

c¢) Dividends

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the Compa
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Compan
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corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A
corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

d) Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Crores as
per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

e) Exceptional items

When the items of income and expense within profit or loss from ordinary activities are of such size, nature
or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the Company for the period, the
nature and amount of such items are disclosed separately as exceptional item by the Company.

2.4 Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended
March 31, 2025, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards
applicable to the Company.

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates. Management exercises
judgement in applying the company's accounting policies. Estimates and assumptions are continuously
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reliable and relevant under the circumstances. This note provides an overview of the
areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be
materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally
assessed. Management believes that the estimates are the most likely outcome of future events. Detailed
information about each of these estimates and judgements is described below.

Revenue Recognition on Contracts with Customers

The Company’s contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple products to a
customer. The Company assesses the products promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance
obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance obligation involves judgement to
determine the distinct goods and the ability of the customer to benefit independently from such goods.

Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price could
be either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements such as volume
discounts, liquidated damages, penalties, price concessions and incentives. Any consideration payable to
the customer is adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product from the
customer. The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the
extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period. The Company allocates the elements
of variable considerations to all the performance obligations of the contract unless there is observable
evidence that they pertain to one or more distinct performance obligations.

The Company uses judgement to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a performance
obligation (allocation of transaction price). The Company allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on the basis of the relative standalone selling price of each distinct product
promised in the contract. Where standalone selling price is not observable, the Company uses the expected
cost plus reasonable margin approach to allocate the transaction price to each distinct perforna
obligation.
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The Company exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a
point in time or over a period of time. The Company considers indicators such as how customer consumes
benefits as products/services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of
enforceable right to payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer
of significant risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, timing gap
between transfer of control and actual revenue recognition, etc.

Revenue for fixed-price contract is recognised using the input method for measuring progress. The
company uses cost incurred related to total estimated costs to determine the extent of progress towards
completion. Judgement is involved to estimate the future cost to complete the contract and to estimate the
actual cost incurred basis completion of relevant activities towards fulfilment of performance obligations.

Contract fulfilment costs are generally expensed as incurred except for costs that meet the criteria for
capitalisation. Such costs are amortised over the life of the contract .

Uninstalled materials are materials that will be used to satisfy performance obligations in a contract for
which the cost incurred does not depict transfer to the customer. The Company excludes cost of uninstalled
materials for measuring progress towards satisfying a performance obligation if it involves only provision
of a procurement service. In case of uninstalled materials, the Company recognises revenue equal to the
cost of the uninstalled materials if the goods are distinct, the customer is expected to obtain control of the
goods significantly before services related to the goods are rendered, the cost of the transferred goods is
significantly relative to the total expected costs to completely satisfy the performance obligation and the
goods are procured from a third party wherein there is no involvement of the Company in designing and
manufacturing of the products.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plan and the present value of such obligations are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increase,
employee turnover and expected return on planned assets. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at the year end. Details about employee benefit obligations and
related assumptions are given in Note 37.
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Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

5 (a) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the purchase consideration in excess of the Company's interest in the net fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquired entity. When the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired
exceeds purchase consideration, the fair value of net assets acquired is reassessed and the bargain purchase gain is recognized in capital

reserve. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Opening carrying amount 1,161.29 1,161.29
Impairment (554.72) -
606.57 1,161.29

Closing carrying amount

Impairment test of Goodwill

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an

appropriate valuation model is used.

Goodwill of Rs. 1,161.29 Crores had arisen on acquisition of Aquapharm Chemicals Private Limited (“ACPL”) during the year ended 31
March, 2024 (Refer Note 49). The Group assesses the goodwill for any indication of impairment at annual basis.

Pursuant to amalgamation of ACPL into Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
(“ACL") (Refer Note 49) and consequent change in tax base of the assets, deferred tax liability of Rs. 554.20 crores has been reversed
through statement of Profit & Loss and ACL has performed impairment assessment of goodwill arisen on acquisition of ACPL and has
accounied for impairment loss of Rs. 554.72 crores based on calculation of value in use performed by external valuer.

The impairment assessment was triggered by aforesaid reversal of deferred tax liability and consequent increase in carrying amount of
Cash Generating Unit, on account of amalgamation.

Key Assumptions used for value in use calculations are as follows:

Particulars As at
31st March 2025
Earnings before Interest Tax Depreciation, and Amortisation % in forecast period 21% - 24%
Profit before tax % in forecast period 18% - 22%
Growth rate used for extrapolation perpetuity rate 4%
18.50%

Discount rate (post tax)
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Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

INVESTMENTS - NON-CURRENT
Investment in Equity instruments (fully paid up) (measured at cost)
Investment in subsidiaries (Unquoted)

Aquapharm Europe B.V., Netherlands 2.94 294
1,000 (31 March 2024: 1,000) equity shares of Euro 1 each fully paid up
Aquapharm Chemicals LLC, USA 267.05 267.05
18,00,000 (31 March 2024: 18,00,000) equity shares of USD 1 each fully paid up
Unique Solutions for Chemical Industries Co., Saudi Arabia* 25.12 21.21
50,294 (31 March 2024: 45,000) equity shares of SAR 100 each fully paid up
Aquapharm Foundation, India 0.01 0.01
9,999 (31 March 2024: 9,999) equity shares of INR. 10 each fully paid up
295.11 291.21
Carrying value and market value of quoted and unquoted investments are as below:
Aggregate carrying value of quoted investments & market value thereof - -
Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments 273.90 270.00
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments 21.21 21.21
The list of subsidiaries along with the proportion of ownership interest held are disclosed in note 39.
*Gross of impairment provision of INR 21.21 Crores (31 March 2024: INR 21.21 Crores)
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.
Asat As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
LOANS
Non-current
Loans to related parties (refer note 41) 26.93 26.23
Less : Loss allowance (18.79) (18.79)
8.14 7.44
Break-up of security details:
Loans considered good - Secured - -
Loans considered good - Unsecured 8.14 7.44
Loans which have significant increase in credit risk 18.79 18.79
Loans - Credit impaired - -
26.93 26.23
Less : Loss allowance (18.79) (18.79)
8.14 7.44

Total

Details of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel and related parties as at

March 31, 2025:
Percentage to the
. . total Loans and
Type of Borrower Amount Outstanding Advances in the
nature of Loans
Related party:
Unique Solutions for Chemicals Industries Co. 26.93 100%
26.93 100%
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Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")

Notes forming part of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Details of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel and related parties as at

March 31, 2024:

Type of Borrower

Amount Outstanding

Percentage to the
total Loans and
Advances in the
nature of Loans

Related party:
Unique Solutions for Chemicals Industries Co. 26.23 100%
26.23 100%
Asat As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Non-current (Unsecured, considered good)
Deposits with maturity of more than 12 months 0.65 0.09
Security Deposits 510 4.49
5.75 4.58
As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good
Capital Advances 0.82 11.92
Prepaid expenses 0.12 -
0.94 11.92
As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
INVENTORIES
Raw Materials 55.81 3294
(includes packing material of Rs. 2.52 Crores (31 March 2024 : Rs. 1.75 Crores)
In transit 54.06 8.29
109.87 41.23
Work-in-progress 20.96 11.75
20.96 11.75
Finished goods 39.89 45.64
In transit 46.23 50.06
86.12 95.70
Stores and spares 6.56 5.58
223.51 154.26

Write-down of inventories amounted to INR 2.42 Crores (31 March 2024 - INR 0.51 Crores). These were recognised as an expense in

Statement of standalone profit and loss of respective year.

Refer note 23 for information on inventories hypothecated as security by the Company.
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Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
INVESTMENTS
In mutual funds (quoted; at fair value through profit or loss)
Nil (31 March 2024: 14,20,700.9) Units of ABSL Corporate Bond Fund Direct Growth Plan = 14.67
Nil (31 March 2024: 23,04,350.54 ) Units of HDFC Short Term Debt Fund Direct Growth Plan - 6.84
Nil (31 March 2024: 63,773.80} Units of HSBC Cash Fund Direct Growth Plan - 15,34

= 36.85

Additional information:

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value there of* - 36.85
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments - -
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments
*Includes INR Nil pledged in favour of bank to secure SBLC Limits (31 March 2024: INR 36.85 Crores pledged in favour of bank to secure

secure ECB and SBLC Limits)

The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.
Refer note 44 for associated credit and market risk.
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Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
13 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balances with banks:
In Current Accounts 23.04 52.71
In EEFC Accounts 14.53 21.07
Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 0.94 9.70
Cash on Hand 0.03 0.05
38.54 83.53
There are no repatriation restrictions with regards to cash & cash equivalents.
As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
14 OTHER BANK BALANCES
Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months* 7.93 14.00
7.93 14.00
*Includes INR Nil (31 March 2024: INR 14 Crores) lien marked in favour of the bank to secure SBLC Facility.
As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
15 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good
Interest accrued on Bonds and Deposits 0.23 0.44
Others - receivable from related parties (refer note 41) 13.10 9.76
Others 2.80 0.11
16.13 10.31
As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
16 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good
Export incentives receivable # 0.76 -
Prepaid expenses 0.96 1.07
Advances to suppliers 411 9.79
Balances with Government Authorities * 29.72 12.74
Others 0.27 0.36
35.82 23.96

* Balances with Government Authorities primarily includes amounts realisable, if any, from the GST Authorities and customs authorities of
India and the unutilised GST input credits on purchases to be utilised against future GST liabilities. These are generally realised within one
year and hence these balances have been classified as current assets.

# Includes export Benefit Receivables primarily consist of amounts receivable from government authorities of India towards incentives on
export sales made by the Company.




Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Indusiries Limited")
Notes forming part of Standalone Ind AS Financial Stalements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

17 (a) EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized share capital

4,00,00,00,000 {31 March 2024 : 4,00,00,00,000 ) Equity Shares of INR 10 each 4,000.00 4,000.00
Issued share capital

2,85,00,00,000 (31 March 2024 : 10,00,00,000) Equity Shares of INR 10 each fully paid up 2,850.00 100.00
Subscribed & fully paid up share capital

2,85,00,00,000 (31 March 2024 : 10,00,00,000) Equity Shares of INR 10 each fully paid up 2,850,00 100.00
Total issued, subscribed & fully paid up equity share capital 2,850.00 100.00

a Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
31st March 2025 31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2024

(No. of Shares) (INR Crores) (No. of Shares) (INR Crores)
At the beginning of the year 10,00,00,000 100.00 - -
Shares issued during the year 2,75,00,00,000 2,750.00 10,00,00,000 100.00
Al the end of the year 2,85,00,00,000 2,850.00 10,00,00,000 100.00

On 11 January, 2024, the Company has issued and allotted 50,00,000 equity shares of Rs 10 each at an issue price of Rs 10 per equity share to PCBL
Chermical Limited (Holding Company) , being the subscriber to the Memorandum, aggregating to Rs 5.00 Crores . Further on 22nd January 2024, the
Company issued and allotted 7,50,00,000 and 2,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs 10 each at an issue price of Rs 10 per equity share to PCBL Chemical
Limited ( Holding company) and PCBL (TN) Limited (Wholly Owned Subsidiary of PCBL Chemical Limited), aggregating to Rs 75 Crores and Rs 20
Crores respectively. The allotment was made through preferential basis as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with the consent from the
shareholders of the Company obtained at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 19 January 2024 and all other applicable provisions of
Companies Act,2013 (including any statutory modification, or re-enactment thereof or any regulations, rules and guidelines, if any, related thereto for
the time being in force), and the relevant provisions of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Company. Pursuant to the
allotment of equity shares on preferential basis, the paid up share capital of the Company has been increased from Rs 5 Crores compising of
50,00,000 Equity share to Rs 100 Crores comprising of 10,00,00,000 Equity share for the period ending 31st March 2024

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of unlisted optionally and fully convertible debentures ("OCDs"), the Company has converted all 275,00,00,000
OCDs into cne equity shares of Rs. 10 each during the year ended 31st March 2025. Accordingly , the Company has issued 220,00,00,000 and
55,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each to PCBL Chemical Limited and PCBL (TN) Limited respectively.

b Terms and rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/- per share and each shareholder is entitled for one vote per share held.
The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are
entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

¢ Shares held by Holding Company and ils subsidiaries/associales:

As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
No. of Shares held % of Holding No. of Shares held " of Holding,

PCBL Chemical Limited (Immediate Holding Company) 2,28,00,00,000 80.00% 8,00,00,000 80.00%
PCBL '(TN) .Lu.ruled ( Wholly Owned Subsidiary of PCBL 57,00,00,000 20.00% 2,00,00,000 20.00%
Chemical Limited)

d Delails of sharcholders holding more lhan 5% shares in the Company:

As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
No. of Shares held % of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding
PCBL Chemical Limited {Immediate Holding Company) 2,28,00,00,000 80.00% 8,00,00,000 50.00%
PCBL '(TN) _Lu’.mled { Wholly Owned Subsidiary of PCBL 57,00,00,000 20.00% 2,00,00,000 20.00%
Chemical Limited)
e Details of shareholding of promoters:
As at 31st March 2025
No. of Shares held % of Holding % Change
PCBL Chemical Limited (Immediate Holding Company) 2,28,00,00,000 80.00% 0%
PCBL .(TN) ‘Lujmted ( Wholly Owned Subsidiary of PCBL 57,00,00,000 20.00% 0%
Chemical Limited)
As at 31st March 2024
No. of Shares held % of Holding %o Change
PCBL Chemical Limited (Immediate Holding Company) 8,00,00,000 80.00% 0%
PCBL (TN) Limited ( Wholly Owned Subsidiary of PCBL Che 2,00,00,000 20.00% 0%

‘Promolers’ for the purpose of this disclosure means promoters as defined under Section 2(69) of Companies Act, 2013
The Schedule [1I disclosures requirement regarding bonus shares and forfeited shares are nol applicable to the Company.
There are no calls unpaid by Directors / Officers of the Company.
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17 (b) INSTRUMENTS ENTIRELY EQUITY IN NATURE
0.1% Optionally and Fully Convertible Debentures (OCDs")

As at
31st March 2025

As at

Fully paid up
31st March 2024

2,75,00,00,000 ,0.1% optionally and fully convertible debentures ("OCDs") of Z 10/- each fully paid-up . - 2,750.00

(i) During the period 11 January 2024 to 31 March 2024, the Company has issued and allotted 2,20,00,00,000 and 55,00,00,000 OCDs of Rs 10 each at an issue price of Rs

10 per equity share to PCBL Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "PCBL Limited" ) (Holding Company) and PCBL (TN) Limited (Wholly Owned Subsidiarv of
PCBL Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "PCBL Limited" )) aggregating to Rs 2,200.00 Crores and Rs 550 Crores on 29 January 2024.The issue was made
through private placement basis as per provision of the Companies Act, 2013 with the consent from the shareholders of the Company obtained at the
Extraordinary General Meeling held on 19 January 2024 and all applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification, or re-enactment
thereof or any regulations, rules and guidelines, if any, related thereto for the time being in force), the relevant provisions of the Memorandum of Association and

Articles of Association of the Company.
Pursuant to the terms and conditions of unlisted optionally and fully converlible debentures ("OCDs"), the Company has converted all 275,00,00,000 OCDs into one
equity shares of Rs. 10 each during the year ended 31st March 2025. Accordingly , the Company has issued 220,00,00,000 and 55,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10

each lo PCBL Chemical Limited and PCBL (TN) Limited respectively.

(ii) Details of OCDs held by the shareholders holding more than 5% of the As at As at
OCD:s in the Company :- 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Number of OCDs  Number of OCDs
(Holding %) (Holding %)
PCBL Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "PCBL Limited" ) - Holding - 2,20,00,00,000
Company
(80%)
PCBL (TN) Limited ( Wholly Owned Subsidiary of PCBL Chemuical Limited - 55,00,00,000
{Formerly known as "PCBL Limited" })
- (20%)
(iii) | Reconciliation of number of optionally and fully convertible debentures
{OCDs") outstanding Number of OCDs Amount
As at January 11, 2024 = =
Add: OCDs issue during the period | Refer Note (i) | 2,75,00,00,000 2,750.00
As at 31st March 2024 2,75,00.00,000 2,750.00
Less: OCDs coverted to equity shares in the ratio 1:1 (2,75,00,00,000) (2,750.00)

As at 31st March 2025

(iv) Details of OCDs held by
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
S.No Name No.of OCD % of total OCD No.of OCD Y% of total OCD
1 PCBL Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "PCBL Limited" ) - - - 2,20,00,00,000 80%
Ultimate Holding Company
2 PCBL (TN) Limited ( Wholly Owned Subsidiary of PCBL Chemical - - 55,00,00,000 20%
Limited (Formerlv known as "PCBL Limited" ))

(v) Terms/ Rights attached to OCDs
Unlisled optionally and fully convertible debentures ("OCDs") will be Convertible only at the option of the issuer at any time within 10 years from the date of

allotment. The conversion ratio of each OCD shall be 1:1 (i.e. one OCD shall be converted into 1 equity share of the Company). The conversion ratio of the OCDs
shall be suitably modified in case of any split and / or bonus issuance and / or any other restructuring, including but not limited to merger / demerger, involving
the Issuer. No partial redemption of OCDs is permitted Maturity Period is 10 years.The right to redeem the OCD will be solely at the option and discretion of the
Issuer. If the OCDs are not converted by the Issuer into equity shares by the 10th anniversary of the date of allotment, the Company will have an option either to
redeem at par or convert in 1:1 ratio. No investor shall have a right to exercise the option to seek redemption of OCDs.The fixed interest rate at 0.1% per annum on
each OCD (“Coupon”), shall be applicable if and only if the Company exercises the option of redemption in relation to the OCDs.No Coupon shall accrue on the
OCDs until the option of redemption is exercised by the Company and such Coupon shall become due and payable on from the date of redemption.
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OTHER EQUITY
As at As at

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Retained Earnings®
Opening Balance (36.22) -
Profit for the period (78.02) (36.33)
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations (net of tax) 017 0.11

(114.06) (36.22)

*Retained earnings include an amount of INR 0.28 Crores (31 March 2024 : INR 0.28 Crores) which is restricted for distribution of
dividend.

Cash flow hedge reserve

Opening balance (0.16) -
Transferred during the period (net of tax) 0.16 -
Created during the period (net of tax) - (0.16)
- (0.16)
Total Other equity (114.06) (36.38)

Nature & purpose of reserves, other than retained earnings:

Cash flow hedge reserve - The Company uses forward contracts to hedge its exposure to movements in foreign exchange rates
which are designated as cash flow hedges. To the extent these hedges are effective, the changes in fair value of the hedging
instruments are recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve. Amounts recognised in cash flow hedging reserve are reclassified to
profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit or loss.
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As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
19 BORROWINGS
Non-current borrewings (secured)
Term Loans*
Indian rupee loan from banks 146.20 -
Term loan from Non-Banking Financial Company ("NBFC") 381.10 447.89
Non-Convertible Debentures ("NCD") 467.50 550.00
994.80 997.89

The above amount includes:
Secured borrowings 994.80 997.89
Unsecured borrowings - -

Total Non-current borrowings 994.80 997.89

Less: Clllrrent maturites of long term borrowings disclosed under the head- Current (171.16) (149.60)
borrowings (refer note 23)

Net Amount 823.64 848.29

*The amount is net of fees and charges paid upfront of INR 3.19 Crores (31 March 2024: INR 2.11 Crores).

Notes:

a) Indian rupee term loan from bank of INR 146.2 Crores (31 March 2024: INR Nil ) carries fixed interest rate. Loan amount is repayable in
22 quarterly instalments of INR 6.73 Crores starting from Jul'25. The term loan is secured by way of first charge on movable fixed assets
of the Company, both present and future.

b) Loan from NBFC Rs 211.73 Crore (31 March 2024 : INR 248.83 Crores) is secured by way of 1st ranking pari-paasu charge on all
movable fixeds and current assets, negative lien on immovable properties of the Company, Hypothecation on investments/loans and
advances made in foreign subsidiaries by the Company and Non-Disposal Undertaking on equity shares of the foreign subsidiaries to the
lenders of the Company to the extent of the security cover of 1x in terms of the Deed of Hypothecation dated 20th March 2025. Loan
amount is repayable in a bullet repayment of INR 37.50 Crores in Jan'25, 8 quarterly instalments of INR 9.38 Crores starting from Apr'25
and 8 quarterly installments of 17.19 Cr starting from Apr'27. The term loan carries fixed interest rate.

c) Loan from NBFC Rs 169.37 Crore (31 March 2024 : INR 199.06 Crores) is secured by way of Ist ranking pari-paasu charge on all
movable fixed and current assets, negative lien on immovable properties of the Company, Hypothecation on investments/loans and
advances made in foreign subsidiaries by the Company and Non-Disposal Undertaking on equity shares of the foreign subsidiaries to the
lenders of the Company to the extent of the security cover of 1x in terms of the Deed of Hypothecation dated 20th March 2025. Loan
amount is repayable in a bullet repayment of INR 30.00 Crores in Jan'25, 8 quarterly instalments of INR 7.50 Crores starting from Apr'25
and 8 quarterly installments of 13.75 Cr starting from Apr'27. The term loan carries floating interest rate.

d) The Non-Convertible Debentures of INR 467.50 Crores (31 March 2025 : INR 550 Crores) are secured by way of 1st ranking pari-paasu
charge on all movable fixed and current assets, negative lien on immovable properties of the Company, Hypothecation on
investments/loans and advances made in foreign subsidiaries by the Company and Non-Disposal Undertaking on equity shares of the
foreign subsidiaries to the lenders of the Company to the extent of the security cover of 1x in terms of the Deed of Hypothecation dated
20th March 2025 executed with the debenture trustee. NCD carries fixed interest rate and is repayable in 3 annual instalments of INR
82.50 Crores starting from Jan'25 and 2 annual installments of INR 151.25 Crores starting from Jan'28.

As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
20 PROVISIONS
Non-current
Employee benefit obligations
Provision for Gratuity (refer note 37) 1.35 1.79
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As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
21 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES / (ASSETS) (NET)
Deferred Tax Liabilities (A)
Property, plant & equipment (including ROU) and intangible assets : Impact of 199.62 592.88
difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/amortization for financial
reporting
Impact of fair valuation of mutual fund and bonds - 1.61
Total (A) 199.62 594.49
Deferred Tax Assets (B)
Expected credit loss 0.10 0.13
Provision for impairment of investiment made and loans given 10.07 10.07
Expenditure allowed for tax purposes on payment basis 2.03 2.01
Brought forward losses and depreciation 184.50 64.83
Lease liability 0.13 -
Others 0.23 (60.10)
Total (B) 197.06 16.94
Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) (A-B) 2.56 577.55
Reconciliation of deferred tax liability
Asat As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Opening deferred tax liability, net 577.55 -
On account of scheme of amalgamation (refer note 49) - 584.92
Deferred tax (credit) / charge recorded in Statement of profit and loss (20.91) (7.35)
Reversal of deferred tax liability pursuant to restructuring (554.20) -
Deferred tax (credit) / charge recorded in OCI 0.11 (0.03)
Closing deferred tax liability, net 2.56 577.55
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 are:
As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Profit and loss section
Current tax - 512
Deferred Tax (20.91) (7.35)
Income tax expenses reported in the Statement of profit and loss (20.91) (2:23)
OCI Section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year:
Net movement on cash flow hedges 0.06 (0.06)
Re-measurements of post employment benefits 0.05 0.03
Income tax charge / (credit) through OCI 0.11 (0.02)
Reconciliation of tax expense
As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Accounting profit before income tax (98.41) (38.56)
Tax at India’s statutory income tax rate of 25.17% (31 March 2024: 25.17%) (24.77) (9.70)
Corporate social responsibility 0.95 0.17
Subscriptions and donations 239 2.52
Other adjustments 0.52 4.79
Income tax expense (20.91) (2.23)
Income fax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss (20.91) (2.23)
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As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
22 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES/(ASSETS)

Opening Current tax liabilities/ (assets) 216 -
Add: Current tax - 5.12
Less: Tax paid (7.14) (2.96)

(4.98) 216
Disclosed as Current Tax Liabilities - 234
Disclosed as Income Tax Assets (4.98) (0.18)
TAX EXPENSES
Current tax = 5.12
Deferred tax (20.91) (7.35)
Total tax expenses (20.91) (2.23)

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
23 BORROWINGS
Current borrowings
Working capital loans from Banks (secured) 40.00 29.18
Working capital loans from Banks (unsecured) 68.46 -
Current maturities of long term borrowings (secured) 20.60 -
Current maturities of long term debts from NBFC (secured) 68.06 67.10
Current maturities of Non-Convertible Debentures (secured) 82.50 82.50
279.62 178.78
The above amount includes:
Secured borrowings 211.16 178.78
Unsecured borrowings 68.46 -

a Working capital loans from banks are secured by:
(i) Pari passu first charge by way of hypothecation of stocks of inventories and book debts/receivables of the Company, both present and
future.

(i) Pari passu first charge on movable properties and immovable properties forming part of the property, plant and equipment of the
Company (both present and future) related to Pirangut plant of the Company.

(iii) Pari passu second charge on movable properties and immovable properties forming part of the property, plant and equipment of the
Company (both present and future) related to Mahad plant of the Company.

(iv) Repayment & intercst rate- Working capital loans are repayable on demand and carry variable interest rate.

b The Company has borrowings from banks secured against current assets. The Monthly/ quarterly statements of current assets filed by the
Company with banks are in agreement with the books of accounts.

¢ The borrowings obtained by the Company from banks have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were taken.

d The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

e There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the Statutory period.
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Net debt reconciliation
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the periods presented.

Calculation of net debt

As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Cash and cash equivalents 38.54 83.53
Liquid investments 7.93 50.85
Current Borrowings (including interest accrued but not due) (115.34) (37.30)
Non-current borrowings (including interest accrued but not due ) (994.80) (997.89)
(1,063.67) (900.81)

Liquid investments include current investments that are traded in an active market and aiso include bank deposits classified as other
bank balances.

Movement of non-current borrowings

As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Opening balance 997.89 -
Cash flows (3.93) 997.89
Interest expense 95.30 16.36
Interest paid (94.46) (16.36)
Forex adjustment - -
994.80 997.89
Movement of current borrowings
As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Opening balance 37.30 33.23
Cash flows 79.55 (4.14)
Interest expense 7.39 224
Interest paid (8.63) 5.88
Forex adjustment (0.27) 0.09
115.34 37.30
Movement of cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Opening balance 83.53 -
Cash flows (45.27) 83.24
Forex adjustment 0.28 0.29
Closing balance 38.54 83.53
Movement of liquid investments
As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Opening balance 50.85 50.45
Net Cash flows from investments (46.10) (0.23)
Net gain on sale of investments 3.18 -
Nel fair value gains/(loss) on financial assets measured at FV through profit or loss - 0.63
7.93 50.85

Closing balance




ST'ss S0°0 65°8T 2599
66'8L 500 7891 €029 paindstpun - sosudiaus (et pue onIA uey BWO (1)
919 - LLT (%2 pandstpun - sasudiajua |jews pue oad1A (1)
sapqeAeg SIR3A ¢ Uey) 210N 1A [ uey sso]
aped] [e3o juawfed jo ajep anp woiy sporrad Suimo[[og ayj 105 Surpuelsing ndioN stemonItd
$20Z ‘1€ UDIEIA U0 SE SUIIDC Sa[qLAE, peL
TZ°0sT - LETL °5'8L
LE9P1 - JARVA 897 paimdsrpun - s3s1IdIB)ug [[WS PuE ONA TE B0 (1)
e - = 8¢ payndsipun - sastrdiajua [[ews pue ory (1)
sajqedeq SIESA ¢ Uel]) 210 1eak T ueyy sso]
apeay [ejoL juswAed jo a3ep snp woiy sporrad Furmorioy ays 10y Surpurising MaioN SIE[mONIE]
SZ0Z ‘1€ Y21eAl uo se Fuiale sajquir, apea]
ST°G8 12°0ST
6682 £LE9%T 535 19)U [[RWS PUE 01N ey 190 SIOJIPaId Jo Sanp SWIPUeIsino [eyo
919 8¢ {9¢ a30u 13)31) sastrd194UB [[ews puE O 0) SaNP JO SuTpURISINO (B0
SHI4VAVd HAVUL 2
0T UPIBIA ISTE S20T Y2IeIA ISTE
jesy jesy

(Paye1s dSIMIBPO SSI[UN ‘S2I0ID) YN]] U 2TE Sjunowe |py)

20T ‘I€ Y2TRIAl POPUB 1eak 1) 10] SJUSLULIE)S [eIduCUL] GV PUJ dUo[epue)g jo jud Bururioy sajoN

(ypa31wur] S3LYSNpU] [ednwaYD) eAeApy, SB UMOWY Aprauniog) pajnury resnuan) waeydenby



Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")

Notes forming part of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
25 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Non-current
Purchase consideration payable (refer note 49) - 36.41
= 36.41
Current
Derivative instruments
Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts (refer note 44) - 0.05
Others -
Deposits from customers 0.53 0.43
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 6.88 8.12
Employee benefits payable 6.43 3.79
Payables for purchase of property, plant & equipment 9217 13.89
Amount payable to Holding Company (refer note 41) 28.56 24.23
Purchase consideration payable (refer note 49) 44.29 4.62
Others (0.00) 0.08
178.86 55.21
As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
26 PROVISIONS
Current
Provision for Gratuity (refer note 37) 0.78 0.31
Provision for Compensated absences (refer note 37) 5.01 4.92
5.79 5.23
As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
27 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Statutory dues payable 5.28 4.58
Advance from customers (contract liabilities)* 4.36 3.72
Others 0.17 0.14
9.81 8.44

*Contract liabilities have increase in the current year mainly on account of advances received from customers during the year against

invoices raised.
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(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

11th January, 2024 to

31st March 2025 31st March, 2024
28 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of products
Finished goods 755.57 111.84
755.57 111.84
Sale of services
Income from Windmill 2.82 0.24
Material Handling Services 540 1.00
8.22 1.24
Other operating revenue
Scrap sales 0.16 0.03
Export incentives 3.04 0.08
3.20 0.11
766.99 113.19

Revenue disaggregation in terms of nature and products has been included above. The Company has only one segment (refer note 40).

Refer note 2 and 3 for accounting policy and significant judgements, respectively.

The total contract price of INR 755.57 Crores (31 March 2024: INR 111.84 Crores) is reduced by consideration of INR Nil (31 March

2024: INR Nil) towards variable components.

For the year ended

11th January, 2024 to

31st March 2025 31st March, 2024
29 OTHER INCOME
Interest Income
Bank Deposits 1.10 0.21
On Financial assets carried at cost 2,02 0.24
Net gain on sale of Investments 3.18 -
Net fair value gains on financial assets measured at FV through profit or loss - 0.63
Profit on sale of assets (net) 0.09 013
Management Fees 1345 1.55
Miscellaneous income 6.40 0.81
26.24 3.56
For the year ended  11th January, 2024 to
31st March 2025 31st March, 2024
30 COST OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED*
Raw material at the beginning of the year 41.23 50.52
Add : Purchases 527.37 63.70
568.60 114.21
Less : Raw material at the end of the year (109.87) (41.23)
458.73 72.98
*Includes packing materials of INR 29.82 Crores (31 March 2024: INR 5.09 Crores).
For the year ended  11th January, 2024 to
31st March 2025 31st March, 2024
31 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS & WORK-IN-PROGRESS
Inventories at the end of the year
Work-in-progress 20.96 1175
Finished goods 86.12 95.70
107.08 107.45
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Work-in-progress 11.75 12.52
Finished goods 95.70 83.38
107.44 95.90
0.36 (11.55)
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For the year ended  11th January, 2024 to
31st March 2025 31st March, 2024
32 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE
Salaries, Wages & Bonus 59.22 8.73
Contribution to Provident & other funds* 3.56 0.60
Staff welfare expenses 2,01 0.18
64.79 9.51

* This includes contribution of INR 1.68 Crores (31 March 2024: INR 0.11 Crores) towards provident fund (Defined contribution plan) in
current year. The Company has a provident fund plan which is a defined contribution plan. Contributions are made to provident fund
administered by the Government of India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per local regulations. The obligation of the
Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation.

For the year ended  11th January, 2024 to
31st March 2025 31st March, 2024
33 FINANCE COSTS
Interest 102.69 18.60
Interest on lease liabilities 0.02 -
Other borrowing costs 1.32 0.86
Total 104.03 19.46
For the year ended  11th January, 2024 to
31st March 2025 31st March, 2024
34 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE
Depreciation of property, plant & equipment 21.39 3.54
Amortization of intangible assets 91.92 1545
Depreciation of right of use assets 0.80 0.11
114.11 19.10
For the year ended  11th January, 2024 to

31st March 2025

31st March, 2024

35 OTHER EXPENSES

Consumption of stores and spares 5.40 0.62
Power & fuel 42.78 6.41
Water charges 1.24 0.22
Repairs and Maintenance- Building 0.32 0.05
Repairs and Maintenance- Plant and Machinery 273 0.46
Repairs and Maintenance- Others 1.20 0.15
Insurance 2.44 0.52
Rates and taxes 0.48 3,06
Payment to Auditor (refer note below) 0.29 0.11
Legal and professional fees 1147 0.03
Subscriptions and donations (refer note 51) 9.50 10.00
Marketing expenses 355 0.99
Travelling and conveyance expenses 434 0.74
Clearing and forwarding expenses 59.64 7.87
Sales commission 0.08 0.08
Bank charges 0.77 0.18
Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure (refer note 43) 3.77 0.67
Security charges 218 0.38
Miscellaneous expenses 7.35 14.55
Less : Net gain on foreign currency transactions 9.91 1.30
149.62 45.79
For the year ended  11th January, 2024 to
31st March 2025 31st March, 2024
PAYMENT TO AUDITOR
As Auditor:
Audit fee 0.23 0.07
Tax Audit fee 0.02 0.00
In other capacity:
Other Services (including certification fees) 0.03
Reimbursement of expenses 0.01
Total 0.29
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Details of Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006:
The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘MSMED

Act’). The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows:

As at As at
31st March 2025  31st March 2024

(a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end
of each accounting year

Principal amount due to supplier# 3.94 8.61
Interest amount due to supplier " =
(b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium - -
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
(c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period (where the principal has been paid but 0.06 0.04
interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not paid);
(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 0.27 0.21
(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until 0.27 0.21

such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance of a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Amount due to Micro and Small enterprises are disclosed on the basis of information available with the Company regarding status of the
suppliers as Micro and Small enterprises.

#Includes INR 0.10 Crores (31st March 2024: INR 2.45 Crores) with respect to Payables for purchase of property, plant & equipment.
Refer Note 44 for market risk on trade payables
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Employee Benefit Obligation

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Non Current
Provision for Gratuity 135 1.79
Total non-current employee benefit obligations 1.35 1.79
Current
Provision for Gratuity 0.78 0.31
Provision for Compensated absences 5.01 4.92

5.79 5.23

Total current employee benefit obligations

i) Compensated Absences
The compensated absences cover the Company's liability for privilege leave. The entire amount of provision is classified as current since
Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these obligations. The expense of INR 1.02 Crores (March 31, 2024 :

INR 0.10 Crores) is included under employee benefit expense in the Statement of profit & loss account.

ii) Post employment benefit - Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (amended). Employees who are in
continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees
last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan
is a funded plan and the Company makes contributions to fund managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India. The Company does not fully
fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time based on estimate of expected gratuity

payments.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 5.89 -
On Acquistion of Business Combination = 6.17
Current service cost 0.41 0.14
Interest cost 0.70 0.08
Actuarial (gain)/loss (0.18) (0.08)
Benefits paid (0.50) (0.42)
Defined benefit obligation, at the end of the year 6.33 5.89
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 3.79 -
On Acquistion of Business Combination - 3.60
Expected return on plan assets 0.28 0.06
Contribution by employer 0.53 -
Benefits paid (0.43) (0.11)
Actuarial gain / (loss) 0.03 0.24
Fair value of plan assets, at the end of the year 4.20 3.79

The Company expects to contribute INR 0.78 Crores (Actual contribution for year ended March 31, 2025: INR 0.53 Crores) to its gratuity plan in
FY 2024-25.

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Yo Yo

Insurance Fund with Life Insurance Corporation of India 100
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The fair value of planned assets represents the amount as confirmed by the fund.

Details of defined benefit obligation

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation 6.33 5.89
Fair value of plan assets (4.20) (3.79)
Benefit Hability (net) 213 2.10
The net liability disclosed above relates to funded plans are as follows:
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Present value of funded obligations 6.33 5.89
Fair value of plan assets (4.20) (3.79)
Deficit of funded plan (A) 213 2.10
Unfunded plans (B) < ,
213 210

Total net obligation (A+B)

The Company has no legal obligation to settle the deficit in the funded plans with an immediate contribution or additional one off contributions.
The Company intends to continue to contribute the defined benefit plans as per the demand from LIC of India. Refer note above for details on

expected contribution for FY 2025-26.

Net employee benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current service cost 0.41 0.14
Interest cost on benefit obligation 0.43 0.02
Net benefit expense 0.84 0.16
Net employee benefit expense recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI):
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Actuarial (gain)/loss on Obligation For the Period (0.18) (0.08)
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income (0.04) (0.06)
Net {income)/expense for the period recognized in OCI (0.22) (0.14)
Amounts for the current and previous periods are as follows:
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Defined benefit obligation 6.33 5.89 5.52 4.84 3.68
Plan assets (4.20) (3.79) (3.40) (2.93) (2.33)
(Surplus) / deficit 213 210 212 1.91 1.34
Experience adjustments on plan (0.35) (0.03) 0.12 0.39 (0.34)
liabilities
Experience adjustments on plan (0.04) 0.01 (0.01) (0.05) (0.04)
assets
The principal assumptions used in determining defined benefit obligation are shown below:
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate 6.70% 7.20%
Expected rate of return on plan asset 7.20% 7.40%
Expected rate of salary increase 10.00% 10.00%
9.00% 9.00%

Employee turnover

The estimated future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account the effect of inflation, seniority, promotion and other

relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.
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Sensitivity Analysis:
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
+1% Change in discount rate (0:32) (0.29)
-1% Change in discount rate 0.35 032
+1% Change in rate of salary increase 0.27 024
-1% Change in rate of salary increase (0.25) (0.23)
+1% Change in rate of employee turnover (0.04) (0.04)
0.05 0.04

-1% Change in rate of employee turnover

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to
occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant
actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the
end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

Risk exposure:
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below :

Asset volatility:
The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields; if plan assets underperform this yield, this will create a

deficit. Plan assets are maintained with fund manager, LIC of India.

Changes in bond yields:

A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities.

Future salary escalation and inflation risk:

Rising salaries will often result in higher future defined benefit payments resulting in a higher present value of liabilities especially unexpected
salary increases provided at management's discretion may lead to uncertainties in estimating this risk.

Life expectancy:

Increases in life expectancy of employee will result in an increase in the plan liabilities. This is particularly significant where inflationary
increases result in higher sensitivity to changes in life expectancy.

The Company's assets are maintained in a trust fund managed by public sector insurance Company via LIC of India. LIC has a sovereign
guarantee and has been providing consistent and competitive returns over the years. The plan asset mix is in compliance with the requirements
of the respective local regulations.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 7.55 years (March 31, 2024 - 7.51 years). The expected maturity analysis of
undiscounted gratuity is as follows:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(Funded) {(Funded)

Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the
Date of Reporting
Less than 1 year 1.33 1.24
Between 1 to 2 years 111 0.66
Between 2 to 3 years 0.79 1.04
Between 3 to 4 years 0.73 0.76
Between 4 to 5 years 0.77 0.74

4.25 4.26

Over 5 years
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38 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
A) Contingent Liabilities-

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1. Disputed liabilities
a) Service Tax 5.90 597
b) Excise Duty 0.20 0.20
c) Goods and Services Tax 1.05 0.99
d) Income Tax 5.60 7.30
) Customs - MEIS 48.66 48.66
61.40 63.12
2. Guarantees given* 56.51 55.06
117.91 118.18

a) Service Tax - Disallowance mainly for service tax credit taken on services rendered overseas and ocean freight.

b) Excise Duty - Demand on inter unit stock transfer from EOU unit to DTA unit.

¢) Goods and Services Tax - Demand of GST on sale of leasehold land.

d) Income Tax - Disallowance mainly of expenses under section 14A and disallowance of expense due to non-deduction of TDS on payment

made to non-residents.

) Customs - MEIS - Dispute over classification of the product.

Contingent liability disclosed above includes an amount of INR 61.26 crores (31 March 2024: INR 62.98 crores) which is jointly and severally
indemnified by the erstwhile promoters as per the Share Purchase Agreement dated November 28, 2023 (refer note 49).

The Company has not provided for disputed liabilities disclosed above arising from disallowances made in assessments which are pending
with different appellate authorities for its decision. The Company is contesting the demands and the management, including its tax
advisors, believe that its position will likely be upheld in the appellate process. No liability has been accrued in the financial statements for
the demands raised. The management believes that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company's financial position. It is not practicle to indicate the uncertainties which may affect the future outcome and estimate the financial
effect of the above liabilities.

*The Company has issued financial guarantees to banks in respect of loan facilities availed by its subsidiary.
B) Capital Commitments
Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital account and not recognised for {net of advances) is INR 19.27 Crores

(31 March 2024 : INR 49.52 Crores).

39 The Company’s interest in Subsidiaries:

Name of the Subsidiaries Principal place of Proportion of interest held by the Company as at
business
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Aquapharm Europe B.V. Netherlands 100% 100%
Aquapharm Chemicals LLC USA 100% 100%
Aquapharm PChem LLC USA 100% 100%
Aquapharm Specialty Chemicals LLC USA 100% 100%
Unique Solutions for Chemical Industries Co. Saudi Arabia 95% 85%
USCILLC UAE 95% 85%

Aquapharm Foundation India 100% 100%
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Segment reporting
Description of segments and principal activities
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.

Board of Directors have been identified as the chief operating decision maker.

The Company has only one operating segment which is 'Chemical' and does not operate in any other reportable segment as per Ind AS
108 : Operating segments. Accordingly, separate segment information is not required to be disclosed.

Information about revenue from operations and geographical distribution of revenue

The Company has only one business segment. Hence, the segment revenue, segment results, segment assets and segment liabilities are
derived from this segment only.

Revenue from two customers (Export) amounted to INR 154.22 Crores for the year ended March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: two
customers (Export) amounted to INR 28.01 Crores).

i) Revenue from operations
The Company is domiciled in India. The amount of its revenue broken down by location of the customers is in the table below :

11th January, 2024

For the year ended 31st to
March 2025 31st March, 2024

Revenue from customers

Within India 226.87 35.15

Qutside India 540.12 78.04
Total Revenue as per Statement of 766.99 113.19
profit and loss
ii) Non Current operating assets
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Within India 2,771.71 2,647.60

Qutside India 0.00 0.00
Total 2,771.71 2,647.60

Non-current assets for this purpose consist of property, plant and equipment, right of use assets, capital work-in-progress, intangible
assets and capital advances.

iii) Total assets

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within India 4,188.29 4,612.81
Qutside India 0.00 0.00

Total 4,188.29 4,612.81
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41 Particulars of the related parties covered under the IND-AS 24:
Name of related party and nature of its relationship:

(a) Ultimate holding company - under de facto control as defined in IND-AS 110:
Rainbow Investments Limited

(b) Holding Company
PCBL Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "PCBL Limited" )

(c) Related parties where control exists:
Subsidiaries

Aquapharm Europe B.V., Netherlands
Aquapharm Chemicals LLC, USA
Aquapharm Speciality Chemicals LLC, USA
Aquapharm PChem LLC, USA
Unique Solutions for Chemicals Industries Co., Saudi Arabia
USCILLC, UAE
Aquapharm Foundation, India

(d) Key management personnel (KMP) of the Company :

Suresh Kalra Chief Executive Officer and Whole time director (With effect from 05 March 2025)
Ganesh Vishwanathan Chief Financial Officer (With effect from 06 February 2025)

Jayesh Damle Company Secretary and Compliance Officer (With effect from 06 February 2025)

[ram Hassan Non Executive Independent Directors (With effect from 17 December 2024)

Tharavanat Chandrasekharan Non-executive independent directors (With effect from 02 May 2024)

Kusum Dadoo Non-executive independent directors (With effect from 02 May 2024)

Mr. Gopal Rathi Additional Director (from 17 December 2024)

Mr. Kaushik Roy Additional Non-Executive Non-Independent Director (With effect from 27 March 2025)
Mr. Kaushik Mukherjee Additional Director (from 11 January 2024 to 27 March 2025)

Mr. Raj Kumar Gupta Additional Director (from 11 January 2024 to 27 March 2025)

(e) Other related parties under IND AS-24 "Related party disclosures" with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

PCBL (TN) Limited Company under common control
RPSG Resources Private Limited Company under common control
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(f) Transactions during the year with the related parties:-

Nature of Transaction Subsidiaries Holding Company KMP Other related
parties
CSR Conltribution 0.33 = = =
(0.15) - - s
Remuneration to Key Managerial person - - 0.79 -
Reimbursement of expenses paid - 433 = -
- (24.23) - -
License fees - - = 10.00
Sale of services - - - 3.00
= - ) (L.00)
Interest received - 0.00 - -
Loan given - 2.00 - -
Loan recovered - 2.00 - -
Interest on Loans to Subsidiaries 2.02 - - -
(0.24) - - -
Revenue (Sale of goods) 139.78 - - -
(11.70) i - :
Guarantee Commission 0.24 - - -
(0.06) = - -
Services Rendered (Management Fees) 19.23 - - -
(1.55) - a =
Purchase of services 0.02 - - -
Issue of equity shares - 2,200.00 - 550.00
= (80.00) - (20.00)
Issue of fully optionally covertible debentures - - - -
- (2,200.00) - (550.00)
Sitting fees - - 0.02 -
Closing balances Subsidiaries Holding Company KMP Other related
parties
Other payable - 28.56 - -
- (24.23) - -
Share capital - 2,280.00 - 570.00
- (80.00) - (20.00)
Optionally and Fully Convertible Debentures - - - -
(OCDs") - (2,200.00) - (550.00)
Trade Receivables 64.15 - - -
(61.07) - - -
Loan given 26.93 - - S
(26.23) - - -
Interest teceivable 6.70 - - -
(4.65) - - -
Other receivable 6.40 - - -
(5.14) - - -

*Amount below rounding off norms followed by the Company
Notes
1. Previous year numbers are disclosed in brackets.
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(g) Disclosure in respect of material related party transactions during the year:

Relationship For the year ended  For the period 11
31 March 2025 January, 2024 to
31 March, 2024

CSR contributions
Aquapharm Foundation, India Subsidiary 0.33 0.15
Reimbursement of expenses paid
PCBL Chemical Limited Holding company 433 24.23
License fees
RPSG Resources Private Limited Other related parties 10.00 -
Sale of services
PCBL (TN) Limited Other related parties 3.00 1.00
Interest received .
PCBL Chemical Limited Holding company 0.00 -
Loan given
PCBL Chemical Limited Holding company 2.00 -
Loan recovered
PCBL Chemical Limited Holding company 2.00 -
Interest on loans to subsidiaries
Unique Solutions for Chemicals Industries Co. Subsidiary 2.02 0.24
Revenue (sale of goods)
Aquapharm PChem LLC Subsidiary 21.04 -
Aquapharm Europe B.V. Subsidiary 37.57 -
Unique Solutions for Chemicals Industries Co. Subsidiary 110 -
Aquapharm Speciality Chemicals LLC Subsidiary 80.07 11.70
Guarantee commission
Unique Solutions for Chemicals Industries Co. Subsidiary 0.24 0.06
Services rendered (management fees)
Aquapharm PChem LLC Subsidiary 16.07 140
Aquapharm Speciality Chemicals LLC Subsidiary 222 0.13
Aquapharm Europe B.V. Subsidiary 0.93 0.02
Purchase of services
Aquapharm PChem LLC Subsidiary 0.02
Issue of equity shares
PCBL Chemical Limited Holding company 2,200 80
PCBL (TN) Limited Other related parties 550 20
Issue of fully optionally covertible debentures
PCBL Chemical Limited Holding company 2,200
PCBL (TN) Limited Other related parties - 550
Director's sitting fees 0y
Iram Hassan KMP / A\ 0.01
Tharavanat Chandrasekharan KMP f 0.01 -

*Amount below rounding off norms followed by the Company
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42 Earnings Per Share :
The following table shows the computation of basic and diluted EPS.
For the year 11th January, 2024

ended 31st March to
2025 31st March, 2024
a) Profit for the year (in INR Crores) (78.02) (36.33)
b) Weighted average number of equity shares (units) 41,64,38,356 8,70,98,765
¢) Basic and Diluted Earnings per share (INR) (a/b) (1.87) 4.17)

43 Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company has spent an amount of INR 5.11 Crores (March 31, 2024: INR 0.63 Crores) during the year as required under section 135 of the
Companies Acl, 2013. The amount was spent by way of Donation to Aquapharm Foundation of INR 0.33 Crores (March 31, 2024: INR 0.15 Crores) for
senior citizens communily center, INR 4.78 Crores (March 31, 2024 : Nil) towards construction of School Building and other CSR activities INR Nil
(March 31, 2024: INR 0.48 Crores) towards constructing village roads.

(a) Details of CSR expenditure:

Particulars For the year 11th January, 2024
ended 31st March to
2025 31st March, 2024
Amount required to be spent during the year 3.77 0.67

Amount spent during the year on:
(i) Construction / acquisition of an asset - -
(if) On purposes other than (i) above

Brought forward from last period (4.78) (4.74)
Short fall for pervious year spent now 4.78 -
Spent during the vear for current year 0.33 0.63
Carried forward to next year (short)/excess (3.44) (4.78)
Amount of cumulative shortfall at the end of the (3.44) (4.78)
vear

(b) Details of ongoing CSR projecls under Section 135(6) of the Act:

Balance as at April 01, 2024 Amount spent during the year Balance as at 31 March 2025
With the Company In separate CSR | Amount required From the From Separate With the  In Separate CSR
Account to be spent during  Company’s CSR Unspent | Company* Unspent
the year bank account account Account
= 4.78 3.77 0.33 478 3.4 -

*The Company has subsequently transferred the amount to a separate Unspent CSR Bank account on 29th April 2025.

(c) Details of CSR expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act in respect of other than ongoing projects:

Amount

Amount deposited in Specified Fund ired to be A 5 i Balance
Balance unspent as at 1st April 2024 of Schedule VII of the Act within 6 reqm:i b d rrfour:hspen unspenl as at
months spentauring  curing (A€ Year 31 March 2025
the year
N.A.
(d) Details of excess/(short) CSK expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act
Balance
Balance excess/(short) spent as at 1 April 2024 Amount required to be spent during Am'ount spent  (short)/excess
the year during the year  spent as at
31 March 2025

(4.78) 3.77 5.11 (3.44)




44

Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Financial Risk Management

Financial risk factors
The Company's activities exposes it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company,

derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts, Exchange Earners' Foreign Currency Account are used to hedge certain foreign currency
exposures. Derivatives are used exclusively for hedging purposes and not as trading or speculative instruments. This note explains the sources of risk which the Company is

exposed to and how the Company manages the risk and the impact of hedge accounting on the financial statements.

The Company's risk management is carried out by the Company's treasury department under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Treasury department identifies,
evaluates and hedges financial risk. The Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivalive financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

This note explains the Company's exposure to financial risks and how these risks could affect the Company's future financial performance.

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types

of risks: interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk mainly includes loans given
and borrowings, financial assets and liabilities in foreign currency, investments in quoted instruments and derivative financial instruments.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt and derivatives and the proportion of
financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant and on the basis of hedge designations in place as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

i. Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in interest rates. The Company's exposure to

the risk of changes in interest rate primarily relates to the Company's debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company is exposed to the interest rate fluctuation in domestic as well as foreign currency borrowing. The Company's main interest rate risk arises from borrowings with
variable interest rates, which exposes the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The Company tries to manage its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed
and variable rate borrowings to the highest extent possible. The Company may enter into borrowings at variable interest rates and swap them into fixed rates that are lower
than those available if the Company borrowed at fixed rate directly. During year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 the Company's borrowings at variable rates were

mainly denominated in INR, USD and EUR.

The exposure of the Company's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Variable rate 277.83 228.24
borrowings
Fixed rate borrowings 825.43 798.83
Total borrowings 1,103.26 1,027.07

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the interest rates on borrowings at variable interest rate. With all the other variables held

constant, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Increase/ Decrease  Effect on profit before
in Basis Points tax - Decrease
/ (increase)

March 31, 2025

Base Rate +50 1.39
Base Rate -50 (1.39)
March 31, 2024

Base Rate +50 1.14
Base Rate -50 (1.14)

ii.Foreign Exchange Risk (Currency risk)
The Company has international operations and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily with respect to the USD, EUR and

SAR. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised financial assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Company’s
functional currency (INR). The Company measures its risk through a forecast of highly probable foreign currency cash flows. The Company hedges its foreign exchange risk
using forward exchange contracts and Exchange Eamers' Foreign Currency Account. The objective of the hedges are to minimise the volatility of the INR cash flows of highly

probable forecast transactions.

The Company has a policy to keep minimum forex exposure on the books that are likely to occur within a 12-month period for hedges of forecasted sales. As per the risk
management policy, foreign exchange forward contracts are taken to hedge its exposure in the foreign currency risk, During the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,
the Company did not have any hedging instruments with terms which were not aligned with those of the hedged items.

When a derivative is entered into for the purpose of hedge, the Company negotiates the terms of those derivatives to match the terms of the underlying exposure. For hedges
of forecast transactions, the derivatives cover the period of exposure from the point the cash flows of the transactions are forecasted to the point of settiement of the resulting

receivable that is denominated in the foreign currency,
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The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the vear expressed in INR Crores are as follows:

March 31, 2025

Financial Assets UsD EURO SAR
Trade Receivables 100.98 36.68

Cash and cash equivalents 10.70 3.83 .
Loans . - 814
Other Financial Assets 2.19 0.91 9.99
Derivative Assets

Foreign exchange forward contracts - - .
Net Exposure to foreign currency risk 113.86 41.42 18.13
(Assets)

March 31, 2025

Financial Liabilities UsD EURO SAR
Borrowings 68.47 - -
Trade Payables (Including Payables for 63.98 6.83 -
purchase of property, plant & equipment)

Net Exposure to foreign currency risk 132.45 6.83 *
(Liabilities}

Net Exposure to foreign currency risk (18.59) 34.59 18.13
March 31, 2024

Financial Assets USD EURO SAR
Trade Receivables 12511 2345 -
Cash and cash equivalents 10.27 10.80 -
Loans - - 7.44
Other Financial Assets 2.53 0.02 7.20
Derivative Assets

Foreign exchange forward contracls (41.69) (9.02) =
Net Exposure to foreign currency risk 96.22 25.25 14.64
(Assets)

March 31, 2024

Financial Liabilities USD EURO SAR
Borrowings 29.18 - -
Trade Payables (Including Payables for 18.23 4.00 -
purchase of property, plant & equipment)

Net Exposure to foreign currency risk 47.41 4.00 -
{Liabilities)

Net Exposure to foreign currency risk 48.81 21.25 14.64

(Assets (-} Liabilities)

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD, EUR and SAR exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on

the Company's profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. The impact on the Company’s pre-tax equity is due to changes in the fair
value of forward exchange contracts designated as cash flow hedges. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material. With all the
other variables held constant, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on change of foreign currency rate as follows-

i Effect on profit . Effect on profit
Change in USD rate Efect on profit be.fore Change in Euro rate  before tax / pre- Change in before tax/ pre-
tax/ pre-tax equity ) SAR rate .
tax equity tax equity
March 31, 2025 +5% (0.93)/(0.93) +5% 1.73/1.73 +5% 0.91/0.91
-5% 0.93/0.93 -5% (1.73)/(1.73) 5% (0.91)/(0.91)
March 31, 2024 +5% 2.44/4.52 +5% 1.06/1.51 +5% 0.73/0.73
-5% (2.44)/(4.52) -5% (1.06)/(1.51) -5% (0.73)/(0.73)

iii. Security Price risk
Securities price risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market traded prices.

The Company invests its surplus funds in various debt instruments and equity instruments. These comprise of mairdy liquid schemes of mutual funds, short term debt funds
& income funds (duration investments), certain quoted equity instruments and bank fixed deposits. To manage its price risk arising from investments in mutual funds and
equity instruments, the Company diversifies its portfolio. Mutual fund and equity investments are susceptible to market price risk, mainly arising from changes in the interest
rates or market yields which may impact the return and value of such investiments.

The Company’s exposure to securities price risk arises from investments in mutual funds and equity instruments held by the Company and classified in the,
fair value through profit or loss is disclosed under Note 11.
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Financial Risk Management

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from

its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its investing activities, including deposits with banks, foreign exchange transactions and other

financial instruments.

i. Trade receivables

Credit risk arises from the possibility that customer will not be able to sell their obligations as and when agreed. To manage this, the Company periodically
assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, analysis of historical bad debts, ageing of
accounts receivable and forward looking information. Individual credit limits are set accordingly. General payment terms include advances and payments
with a credit period ranging from 60 to 90 days. The Company has a detailed review mechanism of overdue customer receivables at various levels within the
organisation. The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on provision matrix.
The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward looking information. During the period, the Company
made write-offs of INR Nil (31 March 2024 : Nil) with respect to trade receivables and it does not expect to receive future cash flows or recoveries from
collecton of cash flows previously written off. For expected credit loss, refer note 12.

The Company's customer profile for customer contracts include large private corporates. Accordingly, the Company’s customer credit risk is low. General
payment terms include advances and payments with a credit period ranging from 30 to 180 days.

The Company has a detailed review mechanism of overdue customer receivables at various levels within the organisation to ensure proper attention and
focus for realisation and based on assessment performed management has concluded that impact of expected credit loss is not material and current provision
made against trade receivable is adequate to cover the provision on account of expected credit loss (Refer note 12 for further details).

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Trade receivables is as follows :

Particulars March 31, 2025 |March 31, 2024
Opening balance 0.38 -
Loss allowance addition on account of scheme of - 0.38
Charge / (reversal) in allowance during the period (net) (0.06) -
Loss allowance at the end of the period 0.32 0.38

ii. Financial assets and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s Treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy.
Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits
are reviewed by the Company on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and

therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

Other financial assets that are potentially subject to credit risk consists of inter corporate loans. The Company assesses the recoverability from these financial
assets on regular basis. Factors such as business and financial performance of counterparty, their ability to repay, regulatory changes and overall economic
conditions are considered to assess future recoverability. The Company charges interest on such loans at arms length rate considering counterparty's credit
rating. Based on the assessment performed, the Company considers all the outstanding balances of such financial assets to be recoverable as on balance sheet
date and no provision for impairment is considered necessary.

The Company’s maximum exposute to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 is the carrying amounts of
each class of financial assets.

(c) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may encounter difficulty in meeting its present and future obligations associated with financial liabilities that are
required to be settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's objective is to, at all times, maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its
cash and collateral obligations. The Company requires funds both for short term operational needs as well as for long term investment programs mainly in
growth projects, The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It aims to minimise these risks by
gencrating sufficient cash flows from its current operations, which in addition to the available cash and cash equivalents, liquid investments and sufficient
committed fund facilities which will provide liquidity.

The liquidity risk is managed on the basis of expected maturity dates of the financial liabilities. The average credit period taken to settle trade payables is
about 30 - 180 days. The other payables are with short term durations. The carrying amounts are assumed to be reasonable approximation of fair value.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Within 1 year 1-3 vears 3-5 years More than 5 years Total

As at 31st March 2025

Borrowings 279.62 47541 328.18 20.05 1,103.26
Trade Payables 150.21 - - - 150.21
Lease Liabilities 0.22 0.34 0.56
Other Financial Liabilities 178.86 - - - 178.86
Total 608.91 475.75 328.18 20.05 1,432.89
As at 31st March 2024

Borrowings 178.78 298.67 549.62 - 1,027.07
Trade Payables 85.15 - - - 85.15
Other Financial Liabilities 55.21 36.41 -

Total 319.14 335.08 549.62 -
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Financial Risk Management

Hedge Accounting:

Foreign exchange forward contracts are designated as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges of highly probable forecast transactions for sales in EURO
and USD. The foreign exchange forward contract balances vary with the level of expected foreign currency sales and changes in foreign exchange

forward rates.

The terms of the foreign currency forward contracts match the terms of the expected highly probable forecast transactions. As a result, no hedge
neffectiveness arose requiring recognition through profit or loss as on 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

The cash flow hedges for such derivative contracts as at March 31, 2024 were assessed to be highly effective and a net unrealised loss of INR INR 0.23
Crores, with a deferred tax asset of INR 0.05 Crores relating to the hedging instruments, is included in OCL.

Impact of hedging activities
(a) Disclosure of effects of hedge accounting on financial position:

March 31, 2025
Types of hedge and Nominal Carrying Amount of ~ Maturity date Hedge ratio* Weighted Changes in  Change in the value
risks Value Hedging Instruments Average Strike fair value of of hedged item used
Price/Rate hedging as the basis for
instrument  recognising hedge
effectiveness
Assets / (Liabilities)

Cash flow hedge

Foreign exchange risk

(i) Foreign exchange - - - - - 0.22 0.22)

forward contracts

March 31, 2024

Types of hedge and Nominal Carrying Amount of  Maturity date Hedge ratio* Weighted Changes in  Change in the value
risks Value Hedging Instruments Average Strike fair value of of hedged item used
Price/Rate hedging as the basis for
instrument recognising hedge
effectiveness
Assets / (Liabilities)

Cash flow hedge

Foreign exchange risk

(i) Foreign exchange 41.69 (0.07y  Apr2024- 11 USD:INR- (0.24) 0.24

forward contracts Oct 2024 83.3739

(ii) Foreign exchange 9.02 0.02 Apr2024- Aug 11 EUR:INR- 0.02 (0.02)

forward contracts 2024 90.2178

*The foreign exchange forward contracts are denominated in the same currency as the highly probable future sales therefore the hedge ratio is 1:1.
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(b) Disclosure of effects of hedge accounting on financial performance
March 31, 2025

Type of hedge Change in the Value of Hedge ineffectiveness Amount reclassified from cash Line item affected in
hedging instrument recognised in profit orloss  flow hedging reserve to profit statement of profit
recognised in other or loss and loss because of

comprehensive income the reclassification

Cash flow hedge

Foreign exchange risk - - 0.16 Other income

March 31, 2024
Type of hedge Change in the Value of Hedge ineffectiveness Amount reclassified from cash Line item affected in
hedging instrument recognised in profit orloss  flow hedging reserve to profit statement of profit
recognised in other or loss and loss because of
comprehensive income the reclassification
Cash flow hedge
Foreign exchange risk (0.06) - - Other income

The Company’s hedging policy requires for effective hedge relationships to be established, Hedge effectiveness is determined at the inception of the
hedge relationship and through periodic prospective effectiveness assessments to ensure that an economic relationship exists between the hedged item
and hedging instrument. The Company enters into hedge relationships where the critical terms of the hedging instrument match exactly with the terms
of the hedged item, and so a qualitative assessment of effectiveness is performed. If changes in circumstances affect the terms of the hedged item such
that the critical terms no longer match exactly with the critical terms of the hedging instrument, the Company uses the hypothetical derivative method to
assess effectiveness.

Ineffectiveness is recognised on a cash flow hedge where the cumulative change in the designated component value of the hedging instrument exceeds
on an absolute basis the change in value of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk. In hedges of foreign currency forecast sale may arise if:

- the critical terms of the hedging instrument and the hedged item differ (i.e. nominal amounts, timing of the forecast transaction, interest resets changes
from what was originally estimated), or

- differences arise between the credit risk inherent within the hedged item and the hedging instrument.

Refer Statement of changes in equity for the details related to movement in cash flow hedging reserve.

Fair value measurements

a) Financial Instruments by Category

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values as of the year end.

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

FVTPL FVOCI Amortized FVTPL FVOCI Amortized Cost

Cost

Financial Assets
Investments - - 273.90 36.85 - 270.00
Trade receivables - - 195.18 - - 198.81
Loans - - 8.14 - - 7.44
Cash and cash equivalents (including - - 46.47 - - 97.53
other bank balances)
Other financials assets (including - - 21.88 - - 14.89
derivative instruments)
Total financial assets - - 545.57 36.85 - 588.67
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 1,103.26 - - 1,027.07
Trade Payables - - 150.21 - - 85.15
Other financial liabilities (including - - 178.86 - 0.05 91.57
derivative intruments)
Total Financial Liabilities - - 1,432.33 - 0.05 1,203.78

b} Fair Value Hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are recognised and measured at
fair value. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments
into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.
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There are no financial instruments which are remeasured at fair value as on 31st March 2025. Accordingly, fair value
measurement hierarchy is not disclosed.

The following table presents the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities as at
March 31, 2024:

Fair value measurement

Quoted prices in active Significant Significant Total
markets observable inputs  unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)
Financial Assets
Investments 36.85 - - 36.85
Financial Liabilities
0.05 = 0.05

Derivative Instruments-Foreign -
Exchange Forward Contracts

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

There have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3.

c) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the quoted mutual funds and bonds are based on quoted price at the reporting date.

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments with financial institutions with investment grade credit ratings. Foreign
exchange forward contracts are valued using valuation techniques, which employs the use of market observable inputs. The most
frequently applied valuation techniques include forward pricing model, using present value calculations. The models incorporate
various inputs including the credit quality counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates, yield curves of the respective
currencies, currency basis spread between the respective currencies, interest rate curves etc. The changes in counterparty credit risk had
no material effect on the hedge effectiveness assessment for derivatives designated in hedge relationships and other financial
instruments recognised at fair value.

d) Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, other investments, trade receivables, trade
payables, other financial assets and liabilites approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments. The management has further assessed that borrowings availed and loans given approximate their carrying amounts largely
due to the interest rates being variable or in case of fixed rate borrowings/loans, movements in interest rates from the recognition of
such financial instrument till period end not being material.
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Capital Management
a) Risk Management:
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, issued optionally convertible debentures and all other equity
reserves attributable to the shareholders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a
strong credit rating, healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value and optimal capital structure to reduce cost of
capital.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants, To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares, The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital. The Company's policy is to keep the
gearing ratio optimum. The Company includes within net debt interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents excluding
discontinued operations.
The net debt to equity ratio for the current year increased from 33% to 39% as a result of increase in the working capital borrowing which has resulted in
increase in borrowings as at year end.
Asat Asat

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
LLong Term Borrowings (including current maturities of long term debt) 1,001.68 1,006.01
Short Term Borrowings 108.46 2918
Less: Cash and Cash equivalents and other bank balances (46.47) (97.53)
Net Debt 1,063.67 937.66
Equity share capital 2,850.00 100.00
Instruments entirely equity in nature - 2,750.00
Other equity (114.06) (36.38)
Total equity 2,735.94 2,813.62

Net debt to equity ratio 39% 33%
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Financial Performance Ratios
Ratio Numerator Denominator March 31,  March 31, Yo Reason for
2025 2024 Variance variance for change in ratio by
more than 25%
Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Total Equity 040 037  8.11%
Debt Service Coverage Ratio Earnings available for Debt Service ( Interest+ 0.50 0.08  525.00% Refer note 52 to the S
debt service Principal Loan repayment)
Interest Service Coverage Ralio EBIT (Profit Before Tax  Finance Costs (0.04) (1.12)  -96.31% Refer note 52 to the FS
+Finance Costs)
Net Worth (Rs Crore) NA NA 2,735.94 281362  -2.76%
Net Profit after tax ( Rs Crore) NA NA (78.02) (36.32) 114.83% Refer note 52 to the FS
Earnings per share NA NA (1.87) 4.17) -55.07% Refer note 52 to the 'S
(Basic and Diluted)
Current Ratio Total Current Assets Total Current Liabilities 0.83 156 -46.81% Increase in current liabilities
Current Liability Ratio Total Current Liabilities Total Liabilities 043 0.19 130.83% mainly Payables for purchase of
Long Term Debt to Working Non current borrowings Current Assets (-) Current 15.60 297 42552% property, plant & equipment
Capital including current Liabilities excluding current and purchase consideration
maturities of long-term  maturities of long term debt payable
debt
Bad Debts to Account Bad Debt ( including Trade Receivables NA NA NA
receivable Ratio Provision for Bad Debts)
Total Debts to Total Assets Total Debt Total Assets 0.26 022 1831%
Debtor Turnover-Days Sales( Sales of Finished ~ Trade Receivables 92.88 14241 -34.78% Refer note 52 to the FS
Goods and Traded
Goods)
Inventory Turnover-Days Sales( Sales of Finished ~ Inventories 106,37 11049  -3,73%
Goods and Traded
Goods)
Operating Margin (%) Operating Profit Revenue from Operations 10.90% (4.40%) -347.76% Refer note 52 to the FS
Net Profit Margin (%) Net Profit ( Profit after ~ Revenue from Operations (10.17%) (32.11%) -68.33% Refer note 52 to the ['S
Tax)
Return on Equity Ratio Profit after tax Average Equity (2.81%) (258%) 8.86%
Trade Payables turnover ratio  Total Purchases Average Trade Payables 448 185 -7.57%
Net capital turnover ratio Total Sales Closing Working Capital (7.04) 0.60 -1273.67% Refer note 52 to the FS
Return on Capital Employed ~ Earning before interest ~ Closing Capital Employed 0.15% (043%) -134.12% Refer note 52 to the FS
and tax
Return on investment Earning before interest  Closing Total Assets 0.13% (0.41%) -132.41% Refer note 52 to the FS

and tax

Earnings available for debt service = Net profit after tax+ Depreciation and amortization expense + Finance costs excluding interest on lease liabilities+net
loss/{gain) on foreign currency transaction+loss/(gain) on disposal of property,plant and equipment

Finance costs = Interest expenses on debts and borrowings+Other borrowing costs+net loss/ (gain) on foreign currency transaction/ translation-interest on Lease

rent

Inventories = Raw Materials + Finished Goods + Stores and spares parts (including packing material)

Operating Profit = (Profit Before Tax +Depreciation and amortization expenses+Finance Costs-Payment of Lease Liability+Net loss / (gain) on foreign currency
transaction+Loss/ (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment -Other Income)

Closing Capital Employed = Total Equity + Total borrowings + Deferred tax liabilities

Code on Social Security, 2020
The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the Company towards Provident Fund and
Gratuity. The draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 have been released by the Ministry of Labour and Employment on November 13, 2020. The
Company is in the process of assessing the additional impact on Provident Fund contributions and on Gratuity Hability contributions and will complete their
evaluation and give appropriate impact in the financial statements in the period in which the rules are notified become effective.
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Scheme of Amalgamation

The Board of Directors of Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited") (“Transferee
Company”) and the Board of Directors of Aquapharm Chemicals Private Limited (“ACPL” or “Transferor Company”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of ACL, at their respective meetings held on 1st August 2024 approved the Scheme of Amalgamation of ACPL
with the Company and their respective shareholders under Section 233 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(“Scheme”). Since, ACPL was a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company no consideration was issued pursuant to the Scheme.

The Central Government through the Regional Director, Western Region, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“Regional Director”) vide
order dated 06th December 2024 approved the Scheme. The Order was filed with ROC on 1st January 2025, which was also
considered as the effective date in terms of the Scheme (“Effective Date”) and consequently ACPL stands amalgamated with the
Company and ACPL ceased to exist as a separate entity.

Post amalgamation, the name of Transferee Company has been changed from 'Advaya Chemical Industries Limited' to
'Aquapharm Chemical Limited'".

The aforesaid amalgamation had been accounted in the books of accounts of the Company pursuant to the ‘pooling of interests
method’ in accordance with Appendix C of Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations, read with Ind AS 10 - Events after the reporting
period and comparative figures have been restated for the said amalgamation from the Appointed Date ie. 1st February 2024.
Accordingly, the impact of the Scheme has been included in the standalone financial statements of the Company for the previous
period, The effect of the amalgamation on the amount of Revenue and Profit reported in the respective previous period is as shown
in the below table.

Particulars Period Ended
(INR crores) 31st Mar 2024
Revenue from Operations :

As reported in the previous period 1.00
As restated for the effect of amalgamation 113.19

Profit/(loss) before tax:
As reported in the previous period (35.00)
As restated for the effect of amalgamation (38.56)

Pursuant to aforesaid amalgamation and consequent change in tax base of the assets, deferred tax liability of INR 554.20 crores is
reversed through statement of profit and loss.

The Company has further performed impairment assessment of goodwill arisen on acquisition of ACPL and has accounted for
impairment loss of INR 554.72 crores based on valuation done by external valuer (refer note 5a). The impairment assessment was
triggered by aforesaid reversal of deferred tax liability and consequent increase in Cash Generating Unit, on account of

amalgamation.

The aforesaid reversal of deferred tax liabilities and impairment of goodwill have been recognised as Exceptional items in the
standalone financial statements during the year ended 31 March 2025.

Business Combinations

The Board of Directors of Holding Company (PCBL Chemical Limited), at it's meeting held on 28 November 2023, in-principle
approved the acquisition of 212,172 shares of Aquapharm Chemicals Private Limited. Post approval, the Company, Aquapharm
Chemical Limited, formerly known as Advaya Chemical Industries Limited (“ACL” or " the Company") had made acquisition of
212,172 shares of Aquapharm Chemicals Private Limited (“ACPL"), for an aggregate consideration of INR 3,851.49 crores (subject
to agreed adjustments) representing 100% of the issued and paid-up share capital of ACPL (“Transaction”). In furtherance of such
approval, the Holding Company executed a share purchase agreement dated 28 November 2023 (“SPA”) with ACPL, and
shareholders of ACPL, for undertaking the Transaction, subject to inter alia obtaining all necessary approvals and fulfilment of
other customary conditions, as per the terms and conditions specified in the SPA.

The transaction was financed through a mix of internal accruals and external funds raised by the Holding Company and/or its
affiliates.The Holding Company along with its Wholly Owned Subsidiary [ PCBL (TN) Limited ] invested INR 2,850.00 crores,
comprising of Optionally Convertible Debenture of INR 2,750.00 crores and Equity Shares of INR 100.00 crores in the Company.
The Company has also obtained external funding to the extent of INR 1,000.00 crores which includes non-convertible debenture of
INR 550.00 crores. The proceeds of the non-convertible debenture have been fully utilised before 31 March 2024, for acquisition of
shares of ACPL. Moreover, the funds received from Holding Company and its Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company have been
fully utilised for acquisition of shares of ACPL. The acquisition of ACPL was completed on 31 January 2024. Pursuant to the
acquisition, the Company has provisionally recognised identifiable assets (tangible and intangible) acquired and liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date at fair value amounting to INR 3,260.12 crores, deferred tax liabilities of INR 569.92 crores on fair
value gain on assets acquired and consequent goodwill amounting to INR 1,161.29 crores in accordance with Ind AS 103 “Business

Combination”.
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Business Combinations - continued

(a) Purchase consideralion
As per the SPA, the Company owns 100% stake in ACPL. The total purchase consideration of INR 3,851.49 Crores has been recorded in the standalone financial

statements as at period end.

Identified Assets acquired and liabilities assumed
The fair value of the identilied assets acquired and liabilities assumed as at dale of aciquistion, 31 January 2024, were:

Assels Amounis|
Property, plant & equipment 305.35
Computer software 1.05
Customer-related intangibles (Refer Note a below) 1,710.80
Product-related intangibles (Refer Note a below) 467.80
Capital work in progress 89.67
Right of use assets 54.10
Investments in subsidiaries 270,00
Investments 36.34
Loans 7.35
Other non-current financial assets 4.50
Non current tax assets (net} 272
Other non-current assets 12.09
Inventories 153.24
Trade receivables (Refer Note b below) 197.40
Cash and cash equivalents 80.89
Other bank balances 14.11
Other current financial assets 15.19
Other current assets 24.56
Total (A) 3,447.16
Liabilities
Borrowings 33.23
Lease liabilities -
Defered tax liabilities (net) (Refer Note ¢ below) 584.92
Trade payables 109.32
Other current financial liabilities 11.05
Provisions 8.60
Other current liabilities 9.83
Tolal (B) 756.96
Non-controlling interests (C) -
Fair value of net assels acquired (D) =(A) - (B) + (C) 2,690.20
Tolal purchase consideration (E) 3,851.49
Goodwill arising oul of business combination (F) = (E-D) 1,161.29
Purchase consideration Amounts
Purchase consideration 3,851.49
Less : Purchase consideration payable [ Refer Note 24 ] 41.03
Less : Discounting impact on purchase consideration (0.52)
Total purchase consideration paid 3.810.98
Purchase consideration - cash outflow Amounis
Total purchase consideration paicd 3,810.98
Less: balance acquired

Cash and cash equivalents 80.89
Net cash outflows- payment towards acquisition of a subsidiary 3,730.09
acquired in a busi combination

Notes:
a  The determination of the fair value of customers related intangible assets and product-related intangible assets is based on discounted cash flow method. Kev

assumptions on which the management has based fair valuation includes estimated long-term growth rates, weighted average cost of capital, estimated operating
margin and customer churn. The Cash flow projections take into account past experience and represent the management’s best estimate about future
developments. Useful life taken by the management for depreciation of customers related intangible is 25 years and product-related intangibles is 20 years,

b Represents net of provision for doubtful debts of INR 0.38 Crores.
¢ Includes impact of deferred tax adjustment amounting to INR 569.92 Crores on fair value gain, arising on business combination adjusted in Goodwill as per Ind

AS- 12 Income Taxes.
d  The goodwill comprises the value of expected synergies arising from the acquistion which is not separately recognised.
e Refer Note 38 for Contingent Liabilities
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Additional regulatory information required by Schedule 111

Relationship with Struck off Companies
The Company has no transaction with the Companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium
The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person or entity, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that

the Intermediary shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries), or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries;
The Company has not received any fund from any person or entity, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in

writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
i. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries), or

ii. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,

The Company have used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same
has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with was noted

in respect of the accounting software.
Additionally, the audit trail of prior year has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention to the extent it was enabled

and recorded in the respective years.

Subscriptions and donations
The Company has contributed INR 9.50 Crores (31 March 2024 : INR 10.00 Crores) to an electoral trust under section 182 of the Companies Act, 2013,

The Company was incorporated on 11th January, 2024 and hence the comparative information relevant to previous year has been furnished for the period from
11th January 2024 to 31st March 2024. Accordingly, the figures of the comparative period ended 31st March 2024 are not comparable to the current year ended

31st March 2025.

For L B Jha & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as
Firm Registration No.: 301088E "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
D.N.Roy Suresh Kalra Ganesh Vishwanathan
Partner CEO and Whole time Director Chief Financial Officer
Membership No.: 300389 DIN: 02833715
Place: Kolkata
Date: 23rd April, 2025 /
ARV
Gopal Rathi “* Jayesh Damle
Director Company Secretary

DIN: 00553066
Date: 23rd April, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF
AQUAPHARM CHEMICAL LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS “ADVAYA CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED”)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Aquapharm
Chemical Limited (formerly known as “Advaya Chemical Industries Limited”)
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31% March, 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss including other comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and notes to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended on that date including a summary of material accounting
policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as “Consolidated Financial
Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial
statements of the subsidiary the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2025, of
consolidated loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), consolidated changes in equity
and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained along with the consideration of
audit reports of the other auditors referred, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters
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3.  Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined that the matter described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in

our report:

Key Audit Matter

Procedures Performed

Impairment Testing of Goodwill

The Group has Goodwill of Rs 606.76
crores as at March 31, 2025, arising out of
acquisition of Aquapharm Chemicals
Private Limited (ACPL), which has been
amalgamated with Aquapharm Chemical
Limited (formerly known as Advaya
Chemical Industries Limited) (ACIL)
during the current year. The said Goodwill
has an indefinite useful life and as required
by Ind AS 36 “Impairment of Assets”, are
tested for impairment annually.

For assessment, the Group has engaged a
valuer to determine the recoverable value of
related goodwill based on discounted cash
flow method which is complex and is
sensitive  to  underlying  assumptions
especially those relating to cash flow
forecasts including future business growth
and the application of an appropriate
discount rate, which are inherently
subjective.

Accordingly, impairment testing of
Goodwill is determined to be a key audit
matter in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements.

Our audit procedures included, among others the
following:

e Obtained and read the report of the
management’s  expert to evaluate the
reasonableness of the methodology and key
assumptions used by management and its expert
used for impairment testing of Goodwill.
Evaluated the competence and objectivity of the
management’s expert.

e Obtained suitable management representations
on projections of future cash flows and the
various assumptions used in the valuation.

e Assessed the disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

4.  We draw attention to the following emphasis of matter paragraph included in the Audit Report
of a step-down subsidiary of the Holding Company, who issued an unmodified opinion vide

audit report dated April 22, 2025:

“The Group of Companies incurred cumulative losses amounted to SR. 23,326,821 which
exceeded 50% of its capital. Accordingly, the Article 182 of the Company Laws is applicable.
The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements were prepared on the basis of going

concern.”
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Other Information

5. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
The aforesaid documents are expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor’s report.

6.  Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

7. In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

8. When we read the aforesaid documents, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

9.  The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013
(hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income,
consolidated cash flows and statement of changes in equity of the Group in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rules issued thereunder. The
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group is responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Group for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.

10.  In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group is responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

11.  The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group is responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.
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12.  Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

13.  As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtained an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i)
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Group have adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For
the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been
audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

4



LB)bneCo

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

14. We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such
other entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

15.  We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

16.  From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matters or
when we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

17.  Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

18.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub —section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the Annexure-A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

19.  Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Holding
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books,

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31% March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the other statutory auditors of its subsidiary company, none of the
directors is disqualified as on 31* March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) This report does not include Report on the internal financial controls under clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Report on internal financial
controls’), since in our opinion and information and explanation given to us, the said report
on internal financial controls is not applicable to the foreign subsidiaries (including step down
subsidiaries) of the Company .With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls of the Holding
Company, refer to report in “Annexure B” attached with our report on the Standalone
Financial Statements.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Group
examined by us, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 has been
paid / provided by the Holding Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act,

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group — Refer Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary
company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in Note 51 to the Consolidated financial Statements, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in Note 51 of the Consolidated financial Statements , no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received
by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v. The dividend declared and paid during the year by the Holding Company is in
compliance with Section 123 of the Act.

Vi, Based on our examination which included test checks, the Holding Company
has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of
audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved
by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For L. B. Jha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 301088E

(D.N. Roy)
Place: Kolkata Partner
Date: 23.04.2025 Membership No. 300389

UDIN: 25300389 BMHWLW8023
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ANNEXURE -A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of Aquapharm Chemical Limited

(Formerly known as “Advaya Chemical Industries Limited”)

[Referred to in paragraph 18 of the Auditors’ Report of even date]

Based on the information and explanations sought by us and provided by the Holding
Company, and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of
audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, the subsidiaries (including step-down
subsidiaries) are foreign companies. Accordingly, the requirement to report under clause
3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Holding Company.

For L. B. Jha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 301088E

(D. N. Roy)
Place: Kolkata Partner
Date: 23.04.2025 Membership No. 300389

UDIN: 25300389 BMHWLW8023



Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")

Consolidated Ind AS Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note As at As at
No. 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
ASSETS
Non-current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 4a 508.12 450.18
Capital work-in-progress 4b 317.95 131.78
Goodwill 5a 606.76 1,161.37
Intangible assets 5b 2,072.28 2,164.21
Right of use assets 4c 67.37 70,67
Financial assets
Investments 6 0.01 0.01
Other financial assets 7 5.75 4.58
Non current tax assets (net) 21 8.88 2,98
Other non-current assets 8 3.25 14.39
Total Non-current Assets 3,590.37 4,000.16
Current Assets
Inventories 9 354.93 28745
Financial assets
Investmenls 10 - 36.85
Trade receivables 11 31147 262.08
Cash and cash equivalents 12 64.88 117.37
Other Bank balances 13 9.65 15.27
Other financial assets 14 3.03 0.55
Other current assets 15 4211 30.21
Total Current Assets 786.07 749.78
Total Assets 4,376.44 4,749.94
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 16a 2,850.00 100.00
Instruments entirely equity in nature 16b . 2,750.00
Other equity 17 (55.33) (26.96)
Equity attributable to owners of the parent company 2,794.67 2,523.04
Non-controlling interests 49 (2.03) (5.60)
Total Equity 2,792.62 2,817.44
Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 18 823.64 848.29
Lease Liabilities 4d 7.88 11.05
Other financial Habililies 24 - 36.41
Provisions 19 4.16 435
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 20 5.71 590.72
Total Non-current Liabilities 841.39 1,490.82
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 22 311.64 212,72
Lease Liabilities 4d 3.84 3.50
Trade Payables
(i) Micro enterprises & small enterprises 23 3.84 6.16
(ii) Other than micro enterprises & small enterprises 23 22312 138.43
Other financial liabilities 24 181.70 65.60
Provisions 25 5.79 523
Current tax liabilities (net) 21 0.73 -
Other current liabilities 26 11.77 10.04
Total Current Liabilities 742.43 441.68
Total Liabilities 1,583.82 1,932.50
Total Equity & Liabilities 4,376.44 4,749.94
2

Summary of material accounting policy information

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Consolidated Financial Statements,

This is Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date
ForL B Jha & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 301088E

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as
"Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")

Ganesh Vishwanathan
Chief Financial Officer

D.N.Roy uresh Kalra
Partner CEQO and Whole time Director
Membership No.: 300389 DIN: 02833715

Place: Kolkata _\}V
: h\l
Q o0 Q_a.o % o

Date: 23rd April, 2025
Gopal Rathi = Jayesh Damle
Director Company Secretary
DIN: 00553066
Date: 23rd April, 2025



Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")

Consolidated Ind AS Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

. For the year ended 11th January, 2024 to
il parie o S1st March 2075 3lsIt March, 2024
Revenue from operations 27 1,419.80 240.07
Other income 28 11.27 1.99
Total income 1,431.07 242.06
Expenses
Cost of raw materials consumed 29 882,45 165.34
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 3.49 1.74
Changes in inventories of finished goods & work-in-progress 30 6.08 (17.41)
Employee benefit expense 31 143.68 24.75
Finance costs 32 107.51 20.01
Depreciation and amortization expense 33 128.09 2122
Other expenses 34 201.69 54.32
Total expenses 1,472.99 269.97
Profit/ (Loss) before tax and exceptional items (41.92) (27.91)
Exceptional items (refer note 47) :

Impairment of Goodwill 554.72 -
Reversal of deferred tax liability pursuant to restructuring (554.20) -
Total exceptional items 0.52 -
Profit / (Loss) before tax (42.44) (27.91)
Income tax expense:

Current tax 21 17.59 6.47
Deferred tax 20 (30.89) (6.02)
Total tax expense / (gain) (13.30) 0.45
Profit/ (Loss) for the year (29.14) (28.36)
Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) (OCI

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (A)

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 0.02 0.08
Income tax relating to above (0.05) 0.03
Total (A) (0.03) 0.11
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss (B)

Net movement on cash flow hedges 0.22 (0.22)
Income tax relating to above (0.06) 0.06
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 8.10 1.01
Total (B) 8.26 0.85
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year, net of tax (A+B) 8.23 0.96
Total comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the year (20.91) (27.40)




Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Consolidated Ind AS Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

. For the year ended 11th January, 2024 to
e Dot I 31st March 2025 31st March, 2024
Profit/ (Loss) for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Parent (28.79) (27.94)
Non-controfling interests (0.35) (0.42)
Total (C) (29.14) (28.36)
Other comprehensive Income / (Loss) attributable to:

Owners of the Parent 8.38 0.98
Non-controlling interests (0.15) (0.02)
Total (D) 8.23 0.96
Total comprehensive Income / (Loss) attributable to :

Owners of the Parent (20.41) (26.96)
Non-controlling interests (0.50) (0.44)
Total Comprehensive Income, net of tax (C+D) (20.91) (27.40)
Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) (in INR) 41 (0.69) (3.26)
Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) (in INR) 41 (0.69) (3.26)
{Nominal value per share: INR 10)

Summary of material accounting policy information 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Consolidated Financial Statements.

This is Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For L BJha & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as

Firm Registration No.: 301088E "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited"}

D.N.Roy %.:e\sh Kalra Ganesh Vishwanathan
Partner CEO and Whole time Director Chief Financial Officer
Membership No.: 300389 DIN: 02833715

Place: Kolkata
Date: 23rd April, 2025

_/

o\t oD
Gopal Rathi - Jayesh Damle
Director Company Secretary
DIN: 00553066

Date: 23rd April, 2025



Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Consolidated Ind AS Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended 11th January, 2024 to
31st March 2025 31st March, 2024
A. Operating activities
Profit/ (Loss) before tax (42.44) (27.91)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortization expense 128.09 21.22
Net movement in exceptional items (refer note 47) 0.52 -
(Profit) / Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (0.09) (0.13)
(Profit) / Loss on sale of investments (3.18) -
Change in fair value of investments - (0.63)
Finance costs 107.51 20.01
Interest income (1.17) 0.23)
Unrealized foreign exchange difference (net) 0.54 (0.10)
Operating profit before working capital changes 189.78 12.23
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease/ (Increase) in trade receivable (46.10) 11.26
Decrease/ (Increase) in inventories (63.83) (8.27)
Decrease/(Increase) in other financial assets (3.87) -
Decrease/ (Increase) in other current assets (11.68) 10.03
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables 79.09 (19.61)
Increase/ (Decrease) in employee benefit obligations 0.33 -
Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial liabilities (0.63) 2522
Increase/ (Decrease) in other current liabilities 1.69 -
Cash generated from operating activities 144.77 30.86
Income tax paid (net of refunds) (22.81) (5.19)
Net cash flows generated from operating activities (A) 121.96 25.67
B. Investing activities®
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (179.49) (23.17)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1.4 0.61
Payment towards acquisition of a subsidiary acquired in a business combination = (3,707.97)
Purchase of current investments (191.19) (24.88)
Proceeds from sale of current investments 231.23 24.99
Net movement in other bank balance 5.65 0.24)
Interest Received 1.39 0.08
Net cash flows used in from investing activities (B) (130.97) (3,730.58)
C. Financing activities®
Proceeds from current borrowings 375.66 21.02
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 148.00 997.89
Repayment of current borrowings (291.19) (3.38)
Repayment of non-current borrowings (160.32) (28.36)
Payment to non-controlling interest for acquisition (3.91) =
Proceeds from Issue of Equity Shares = 100.00
Proceeds from Issue of Optional Convertible Debenture (OCD) - 2,750.00
Interest paid (109.43) (11.79)
Payment of prinicipal portion of lease liabilities (3.44) (3.51)
Net cash flows (used in) / generated from financing activities (C) (44.63) 3,821.87
I.Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (53.64) 116.96
11.Effect of exchange rate change in cash and cash equivalents 1.15 0.41
1I1.Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year (refer note 12) 117.37 .
64.88 117.37

IV.Cash and cash equivalents as at year end (refer note 12) (I+I1I+III)

*There are no non cash investing and financing activities during the year. For additions to Right of use of assets, refer note 4(c).

Refer note 22 for changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.




Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Consolidated Ind AS Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Components of cash and cash equivalents:

As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Balances with banks 64.85 117.32
Cash on hand 0.03 0.05
Total cash and cash equivalents 64.88 117.37
The accompanying notes are an integral part of Consolidated Financial Statements,
This is Consolidated Statement of Cash flows referred to in our report of even date
For L B Jha & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as
Firm Registration No.: 301088E "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
D.N.Roy %ui’fﬁ.?/ Ganesh Vishwanathan
Partner CEO and Whole time Director Chief Financial Officer
Membership No.: 300389 DIN: 02833715
Place: Kolkata .
Date: 23rd April, 2025 W

Coo Lo

Gopal Rathi ‘ Jayesh Damle

Director Company Secretary

DIN: 00553066
Date: 23rd April, 2025
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Aquapharm Chemical Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

1. Corporate information

The consolidated Ind AS financial statements comprise financial statements of Aquapharm Chemical
Limited (the Parent Company) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the Group) for the year ended 31
March 2025. The Parent Company is a public limited company domiciled in India and incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The registered office of the Parent Company is located
at 9 and 10t Floor, Amar Synergy, 12B, Sadhu Vaswani Road, Pune, Maharashtra, India. The Group is
primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of basic and special chemicals used in
detergents, soaps and other chemical industries.

2. Accounting policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

e Derivative financial instruments
e Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
e Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value

The consolidated Ind AS financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees Crores, except when
otherwise indicated.

Current versus non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification.

An asset is current when it is:

e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

¢ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
e Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
o Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
e Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle of the Group is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing ar
realisation in cash and cash equivalents.



Aquapharm Chemical Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

2.2 Principles of consolidation

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement

with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

= Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee);

= Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

= The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this
presumption, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

= The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;

= Rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

= The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights;

= The size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of
the other voting rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when
the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions
and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than
those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that group member’'s financial statements in
preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the group’s accounting

policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same
reporting date as that of the parent Group, i.e., year ended on 31 March 2025. When the end of the
reporting period of the parent company is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for
consolidation purposes, additional financial information as of the same date as the financial statements of
. the parent company to enable the parent company to consolidate the financial information of the
subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation procedure:

Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those
of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of
the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

Eliminate the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of
equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how goodwill is accounted.

Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses relating to transactions
between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised




Aquapharm Chemical Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from

intragroup transactions.

Non-controlling interest in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss, consolidated statement of changes in equity and balance sheet respectively.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity
holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

= Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;

= Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests;

= Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;

= Recognises the fair value of the consideration received;

= Recognises the fair value of any investment retained;

= Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss;

= Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained
earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets

or liabilities.

2.3 Material accounting policy information
a) Revenue from contracts with customers

Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers standard deals with revenue recognition and
establishes principles for reporting useful information to users of financial statements about the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s contracts with
customers. Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of a promised good or service and
thus has the ability to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the good or service in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and

services.

The five-step process that must be applied before revenue can be recognised:
e identify contracts with customers
e identify the separate performance obligation
e determine the transaction price of the contract
¢ allocate the transaction price to each of the separate performance obligations, and
= recognise the revenue as each performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue recognition policy
The Group has following streams of revenue:
(i) Revenue from sale of goods / products

The Group accounts for a contract when it has approval and commitment from parties involved, the
rights of the parties are identified, payment terms are identified, the contract has commercial substance
and collectability of consideration is probable.

The Group assesses for the timing of revenue recognition in case of each dlstmct performance obhgatlon

following criteria is met:
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e The customer simultaneously consumes the benefits as the Group performs, or

o The customer controls the work-in-progress, or

¢ The Group’s performance does not create an asset with alternative use to the Group and the
Group has right to payment for performance completed till date

If none of the criteria above are met, the Group recognizes revenue at a point-in-time. The point-in-time is
determined when the control of the goods or services is transferred which is generally determined based
on when the significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the customer. Apart from this,
the Group also considers its present right to payment, the legal title to the goods, the physical possession
and the customer acceptance in determining the point in time when control has been transferred.

The Group estimates variable consideration using expected value method of probability-weighted values
at an amount to which it expects to be entitled. The Group includes estimated amounts in the transaction
price to the extent it is probable that a significant reversal of cumulative revenue recognized will not
occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is resolved. The estimates of
variable consideration and determination of whether to include estimated amounts in the transaction
price are based largely on an assessment of the anticipated performance and all information (historical,
current and forecasted) that is reasonably available.

Contracts are modified to account for changes in contract specifications and requirements. The Group
considers contract modifications to exist when the modification either creates new or changes the existing
enforceable rights and obligations. Most of the contract modifications are for goods or services that are
not distinct from the existing contract due to the significant integration service provided in the context of
the contract and are accounted for as if they were part of that existing contract.

Financing components: The Group does not expect to have any material contracts where the period
between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer
exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time

value of money.
Revenue recognised at a point-in-time

For contracts where performance obligation(s) are not satisfied over time, revenue is recognized at a point
in time when control is transferred to the customer - based on delivery terms, payment terms, customer
acceptance and other indicators of control as mentioned above.

b) Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Group operates ("the functional currency'). The financial statements
are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Aquapharm Chemical Limited’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they
relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges or are attributable to part of
the net investment in a foreign operation. A monetary item for which settlement is neither planned nor

foreign operation.
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Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the
statement of profit and loss within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the Statement of profit and loss on the basis of underlying transactions.

The Group uses forward contracts to hedge its exposure to movements in foreign exchange rates which
are designated as cash flow hedges. To the extent these hedges are effective, the changes in fair value of
the hedging instrument is recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve. Amounts recognised in cash flow
hedging reserve are reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation
differences on non-monetary assets such as equity investments classified as FVOCI are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial fransactions.

The results and financial position of foreign operations that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

¢ Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet.

¢ Income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates

e All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income or profit and
loss account.

On consolidation, exchange difference arising from the translation of any net investment in foreign
entities, and of borrowing and other financial instruments designated as hedges of such investments are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold, the associated exchange
difference are classified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operations are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operations and translated at the closing rate.

¢) Income Taxes
Current income tax and Deferred tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

o When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an .\ :
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the trgfida
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; o

£

Q

©

6




Aquapharm Chemical Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

e In respect of taxable temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in subsidiaries when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it
is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date and are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled.

Current and Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to income taxes levied by
same taxation authorities on either same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to
settle the current tax assets and tax liabilities on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

d) Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land and Capital work in progress are carried at historical costs. All other items of property,
plant and equipment are stated at historical cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items of property, plant and equipment. Such historical cost also includes the cost of
replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs if the recognition criteria are
met.

When significant parts of the property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection
is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if
the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of
profit or loss as incurred. No decommissioning liabilities are expected to be incurred on the assets of
plant and equipment.

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalised. Indirect expenditure incurred during
construction period is capitalised as part of the construction costs to the extent the expenditure can be
attributable to construction activity or is incidental there to. Income earned during the construction
period is deducted from the total of the indirect expenditure.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
over their estimated useful lives. The Group, based on technical assessments made by technic
and management estimates, depreciates the certain items of tangible assets over éstimaed
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which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The
management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the
period over which the assets are likely to be used. Table below provide the details of the useful lives
considered by Management with comparison with useful lives prescribed under Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013:

Asset Category Useful Life | Useful life (Schedule II)
considered#

Factory Building (“Buildings”) 15-39 Years * 30 Years

Residential Building (“Buildings”) 60 Years 60 Years

Factory Roads (“Buildings) 10 Years 10 Years

Plant and Machinery (Other than Glass | 5-22 Years * Plant and Machinery for continuous

Lined Reactors and Condenser) process plant- 25 years

Plant and Machinery (Glass Lined |5 Years* Reactors - 20 Years

Reactors and Condenser)

Furniture and fixtures 4-10 Years * 10 Years

Computers 3-5 Years * 3 Years

Office equipment 5 Years 5 Years

Electrical installations 10 Years 10 Years

Vehicles 3-4 Years * 8 Years

Windmill (“Plant and Machinery”) 22 Years 22 Years

Laboratory Equipments (“Plant and | 10 Years 10 Years

Machinery”)

* Considered on the basis of management’s estimation, supported by technical advice, of the useful lives

of the respective assets.
# Residual value considered as 5% on the basis of management’s estimation, supported by technical

advice.

The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of
the period over which the assets are likely to be used along with consideration of the climate related
matters.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is

derecognised.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in profit or loss within other gains/ (losses).

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

e) Intangible Assets

Goodwill on acquisitions is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired, or is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an
entity include carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.
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the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or group of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are
not capitalised and the expenditure is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

The Group does not have any intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Computer software are amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of three years.
Customer-related intangibles are amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of twenty five years.
Product-related intangibles are amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of twenty years.

Research costs are expensed as incurred.

f) Leases
As a Lessee:

The Group leases various land parcels and plant & machinery. Rental contracts are typically made for
fixed periods, but have extension options. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different terms and conditions.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group. Each lease payment is allocated between the principal (liability)
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset
is depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being
rate that the lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of simila
a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions. In case of lease
made in advance for the total period of lease, the Group does not create any corresponding K
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Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following;:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
¢ any initial direct costs, and

e restoration costs.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-
line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less.

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property and equipment leases across the
Group. These terms are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The
majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.

As a Lessor:

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight line
basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis
as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

g) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of raw materials and traded goods comprises cost of purchases. Cost of work-in progress and
finished goods comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and
fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs of
inventories also include all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost includes the reclassification from equity of any gains or losses on qualifying cash flow
hedges relating to purchases of raw material but excludes borrowing costs. Costs are assigned to
individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted average basis. Costs of purchased inventory are
determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

h) Employee benefits obligations

(i) Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations
The liabilities for privilege leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end
of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the
present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees
up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are
discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approxja®
to the terms of the related obligation. Re-measurements as a result of experience adjust
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss. '
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The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period,
regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

(iii) Post-employment obligations
The Group operates the following post-employment schemes:
(a) Defined benefit plans in the nature of gratuity, and
(b) Defined contribution plans in the nature of provident fund.

Gratuity obligations

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan
assets. The defined Dbenefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit

method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on
government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
statement of profit and loss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans

The Group pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local
regulations. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

i) Trade receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary

course of business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional unless there are significant financing components, when they are recognised at fair value.
The Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance.

j) Investments and Other Financial assets
i) Classification & Recognition:

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss)
e those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
contractual terms of the cash flows. For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will gf
recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instrument#/ |
depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity ij
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this will depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commit to purchase or sell the financial asset.

ii) Measurement:

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments: Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship
is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in statement of profit and loss using the effective interest rate method.
Impairment losses are presented as a separate line item in the financial statements.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised
in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other income/ (expenses).
Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment expenses are presented as separate lines item
in the financial statements.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other income/ (expenses) in the
period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Equity instruments: The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the
Group's management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or
loss. Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group's
right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other
income / (expenses) in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment

value.
Equity investment in subsidiaries are carried at historical cost.
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iii) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

e Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance;

e Lease receivables under Ind AS 116

e Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result
from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115.

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

e Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
e Alllease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS116

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather,
it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its
initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has
not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity considers:

o All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when
the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is
required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument;

¢ Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in
the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is
described below:

e Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of
those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset
meets write-off criteria, the Group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross
carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Group combines financial instrumen

to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.
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The Group does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e.,
financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

iv) Derecognition of financial asset

A financial asset is derecognised only when the Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial asset or retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset,
but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Group evaluates whether it has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is
derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Group has not
retained control of the financial asset. Where the Group retains control of the financial asset, the asset
is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

v) Reclassification of financial assets

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and
financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model
are expected to be infrequent. The Group’s senior management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Group’s operations.
Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the
Group either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Group
reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business
model. The Group does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment
gains or losses) or interest.

k) Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

1) Other Income and other operating revenue
i) Interest income
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable. Interest income is included in other income in the Statement of

Profit and Loss.

ii) Dividends
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acquisition profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment.

iii) Windmill income - wind power generation
Income from wind power generation is recognised when earned on the basis of contractual
arrangement with the buyer.

iv) Export incentives
Export of goods is eligible for incentives from Government as per Import-Export policies
declared by the Government from time to time. Parent Company’s export products are eligible
for Duty drawback and Merchandise Exports from India Scheme (MEIS). Rates for duty
drawback vary according to products and destinations. The Group recognises duty drawback on
receipt basis and MEIS on application basis in the year of export.

v) Material handling services
This involves charging customers for inventory handling and freight services. These are based on

agreement with the customers.
m) Provisions and contingent liabilities

General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset,
but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in
the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement. Provisions are not recognised for future

operating losses.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made.

n) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash
and cash equivalent, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts if they are considered an

integral part of the Group’s cash management.
o) Financial Guarantee Contracts
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The

liability is initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of (i) the amount determined in
accordance with the expected credit loss model as per Ind AS 109 and (ii) the amount initially recognised

Ind AS115.
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The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on the present value of the difference between
the cash flows between the contractual payments required under the debt instrument and the payments
that would be without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would be payable to the third party
for assuming the obligations.

Where the guarantees in relation to the loans or other payables of associates are provided for no
compensation, the fair values are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the
investment.

p) Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at
their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability
that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other
income/ (expenses).

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a
creditor to extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss, which is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach
of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period
with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does
not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the
approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the
breach.

Borrowing Costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
the Group incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes ex '
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs,




Aquapharm Chemical Limited
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

q) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the
counter party.

r) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Group by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have
been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

s) Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The Board of Directors has been identified as being the CODM.

Refer note 41 for segment information presented.
t) Business Combination

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets include an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The acquired process is considered substantive if it
is critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, and the inputs acquired include an organised
workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to perform that process or it significantly
contributes to the ability to continue producing outputs and is considered unique or scarce or cannot be
replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to continue producing outputs.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities
representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the
fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. When the Group acquires a
business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions
as at the acquisition date. However, Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax
and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively. Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in accordance with Ind AS
109. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance
with the appropriate Ind AS and shall be recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is
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assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and
reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the
reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate
consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital
reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly
in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI. After initial recognition, goodwill is
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that it may be
impaired. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods. If the initial accounting for a business
combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group
reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional
amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that date. These
adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed
one year from the acquisition date.

2.4 Other accounting policies
a) Government grants

Grants from the Government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other
income.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are recognised in books by
deducting the grant from the carrying amount of the asset.

When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an interest
rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as a
government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the
government grant is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the
proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy applicable to financial
liabilities.

b) Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivatives are only used for economic hedging purposes and not as speculative investments.
However, where derivatives do not meet the hedge accounting criteria, they are classified as “held
for trading’ for accounting purposes and are accounted for at FVPL. They are presented as current
assets or liabilities to the extent they are expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The accounting
for subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.

The Group designates their derivatives as hedges of foreign exchange risk associated with the cash
flows of assets and liabilities and highly probable forecast transactions (cash flow hedges

offset changes in cash flows of hedged items. The Group documents its risk man
and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions at the inception of each he
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The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the
remaining maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 months; it is classified as a current asset or
liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months.

(i) Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as
cash flow hedges is recognised in cash flow hedging reserve within equity. The gain or loss relating
to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When forward contracts are used to hedge forecast transactions, the Group designate the full
change in fair value of the forward contract as the hedging instrument. The gains and losses relating
to the effective portion of the change in fair value of the entire forward contract are recognised in
the cash flow hedging reserve within equity.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged
item affects profit or loss (for example, when the forecast sale that is hedged takes place).

When the hedged forecast transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset (for example
inventory), the amounts accumulated in equity are transferred to profit or loss as follows:

e With respect to gain or loss relating to the effective portion of the forward contracts, the deferred
hedging gains and losses are included within the initial cost of the asset. The deferred amounts
are ultimately recognised in profit or loss as the hedged item affects profit or loss (for example,
through cost of sales).

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative deferred gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging in
equity at that time remains in equity until the forecast transaction occurs. When the forecast transaction is
no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging that were reported
in equity are immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

If the hedge ratio for risk management purposes is no longer optimal but the risk management objective
remains unchanged and the hedge continues to qualify for hedge accounting, the hedge relationship will
be rebalanced by adjusting either the volume of the hedging instrument or the volume of the hedged item
so that the hedge ratio aligns with the ratio used for risk management purposes. Any hedge
ineffectiveness is calculated and accounted for in profit or loss at the time of the hedge relationship
rebalancing.

(ii) Derivatives that are not designated as hedges

The derivative contracts which are not designated as hedges are accounted for at fair value through profit
or loss and are included in statement of profit and loss.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in a host contract that is an asset within the scope of Ind AS 109 are not separated.
Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Derivatives embedded in all other host contract are separated only if the economic characteristics and
risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the
host and are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives closely related to the
host contracts are not separated.
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c) Dividends

The Group recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the Group when the
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Group. As per the
corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A
corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

d) Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Crores

as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

e) Exceptional items

When the items of income and expense within profit or loss from ordinary activities are of such size,
nature or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the Group for the
period, the nature and amount of such items are disclosed separately as exceptional item by the Group.

2.5 Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended
March 31, 2025, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards
applicable to the Group.

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates. Management also needs
to exercise judgement in applying the Group's accounting policies. Estimates and assumptions are
continuously evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reliable and relevant under the circumstances. This note provides an
overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are
more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than
those originally assessed. Management believes that the estimates are the most likely outcome of future
events. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is described below.

Revenue Recognition on Contracts with Customers

The Group’s contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple products to a
customer. The Groups assesses the products promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance
obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance obligation involves judgement to
determine the distinct goods and the ability of the customer to benefit independently from such goods.
Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price could
be either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements such as
volume discounts, liquidated damages, penalties, price concessions and incentives. Any consideration
payable to the customer is adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product
from the customer. The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price
only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period. The Group allocates the
elements of variable considerations to all the performance obligations of the contract unless there is
observable evidence that they pertain to one or more distinct performance obligations.

The Group uses judgement to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a performance
obligation (allocation of transaction price). The Group allocates the transaction price to each performance
obligation on the basis of the relative standalone selling price of each distinct product promised in the
confract. Where standalone selling price is not observable, the Group uses the expected cgo
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The Group exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point
in time or over a period of time. The Group considers indicators such as how customer consumes benefits
as products/services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of
enforceable right to payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service,
transfer of significant risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, timing
gap between transfer of control and actual revenue recognition, etc.

Revenue for fixed-price contract is recognised using the input method for measuring progress. The Group
uses cost incurred related to total estimated costs to determine the extent of progress towards completion.
Judgement is involved to estimate the future cost to complete the contract and to estimate the actual cost
incurred basis completion of relevant activities towards fulfilment of performance obligations.

Contract fulfilment costs are generally expensed as incurred except for costs that meet the criteria for
capitalisation. Such costs are amortised over the life of the contract.

Uninstalled materials are materials that will be used to satisfy performance obligations in a contract for
which the cost incurred does not depict transfer to the customer. The Group excludes cost of uninstalled
materials for measuring progress towards satisfying a performance obligation if it involves only
provision of a procurement service. In case of uninstalled materials, the Group recognises revenue equal
to the cost of the uninstalled materials if the goods are distinct, the customer is expected to obtain control
of the goods significantly before services related to the goods are rendered, the cost of the transferred
goods is significantly relative to the total expected costs to completely satisfy the performance obligation
and the goods are procured from a third party wherein there is no involvement of the Group in designing
and manufacturing of the good.

Ind AS 116 - Leases

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise an extension option or not to exercise a termination option. Extension options (or
periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to
be extended (or not terminated).

For leases, the following factors are normally the most relevant:

e If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the Group is typically
reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate).

e If any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value, the Group
is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate).

e Otherwise, the Group considers other factors including historical lease durations and the
costs and business disruption required to replace the leased asset. Most extension options in
offices and equipment leases have not been included in the lease liability, because the Group
could replace the assets without significant cost or business disruption.

The lease term is reassessed periodically whether an option is actually exercised (or not exercised) or the
Group becomes obliged to exercise (or not exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only
revised if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs, which affects this
assessment, and that is within the control of the lessee.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment
with similar terms, security and conditions.

Defined benefit plans
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increase, employee turnover and expected return on planned assets. Due to the complexities involved in
the valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at the year end. Details about employee benefit obligations
and related assumptions are given in Note 36.




“Anpaey Bulanpeynuew mau o dn-jes 01 Buigejaa siayo puv uonejeIsul [eII123]3 ‘A1auiyaew puejueld o) Sutureisad su nowre jo sastdwod Ljuiew ssasBoad ur yaom jended

18T 206 ssa1301d-ur->om fejrded jo yred Surwio) asueeg
- - juawidinba 2 querd ‘Spadoad oy 1eak ayy Buinp pasijenden issa
66T 18T 1eak snojaasd woiy preamioy 13noaq adueeq :ppy
92’0 12’9 [eloL
oL'o 9t sasuadxa 1ay10)
= 69°¢ 1502 15313]U]
910 160 asuadxa jyauaq safo|d gy
YZ-1eN-1E SC-IRA-LE S1E[NINIE ]
1ss2301d-ul-y1om [ended 01 sasuadxa Jurmol[oy o) pasijended sey dnoio) ayy ‘ponad 9y duing

L 910N

84'LET S6°LLE aduereq Juiso)D
(es) (5c'28) pouad ays Bunnp siajsuuay,
09°ce st (1 a10u 13431) poysad ayy Burinp suonippy
0£°001 - (£v 910N 13§33) voneuIquod ssauisng ydnonp uonsinboy
. - 8/'LEL aduefeq JuiuadQ
YZ-IRPAN-1E ST-1RN-1E ssarford-ui-srom eyrdes ur juawaaop (4q)

"19pun 213y dpewW SIMY pue 8861 12y suopdesuel], Luuados ] 1weuag jo uoniqryosd ayi 1apun Kiadosd jweuag Lue Burpioy soy dnoisy ayy jsure8e Suipuad ase Jo pajeniui uasq aaey s3uipaanold oN
“AuedwoD ayy £q L1andas se padieys juawdinba pue jueid ‘S1adoad uo uonewliojul 1oy 7z pue g1 sjou BETEN

quawidinba  yueyd “Auadoid yo uonisinboe ay) 10 siusunWIWOD [e1rded JO 21NSOJISIpP 40) /¢ 10U 1343y

[siresap 10j € 10N 13)2y] 55077 pue 1101 JO JUBWAR)S 3y3 uf sasuadxa uoyezioWe pue uoHAIdap 1apun papnidul usaq sey uonerIdap Jo Junowe 3)ederSdy

"dnoso aya o awreu oy ul pray 21v (93853 3y3 Jo JNoALY uf PANIIXS A|Np 31¥ SJudWaBUELIL 35¥3] 3y} Pue 39553 3y 51 dnour) ayy a13ym sansadord uew 1ay30) sopsadoid dqeACW W] AU [Je JO SPIIP 1L

“puen
ployaseay uo s3uiping jo 1adsas ut A|aandadsas (sa1010 680 *$3 - $20T YdIRIA 1E) S0 169 “SY PUP (52101 [€°£0L ‘S - $TOT YMEIN LE) SA1047 88'p/ L "SH sapn[aus uopealdap pajejnuwinade pue junowe Juifiies) ssoio 4
8105 j2 44 L86 4 A% 62°€ {444 LV'691 09°00T 409 $Z0Z "YdIe A ISTE 18 se anjea Surhired oN
£0°8 S0'0 82°0 £L0°0 PED ST'0 1244 £€9'1 = FZOT "YU ISLE 1E SE UDIEIIaId(] PRy
0 100 > ] 0070 100 800 roo 2 spuawnsnlpe uonesuel
- - - - - - - - - sjuawisnlpy /sjesodsiq
60°S 00 820 2000 PE0 rL0 €T 65'L - poad ayy 10y 231wy
- - - - - - - - - $0g ‘Arenuef q3pT e se uonenarda( pajemunddy
OFESh 6E°0) STOL 87’1 Z9°¢ 65F 8L TLL £EE0T 74709 PTOZ YT I51E 1¢ SE IUNOWe FuIA1Ies 5018 Guis0])
590 100 - 000 000 00 120 or'0 100 SJUIERIPE uoRlSUPL],
(80 (z0'0) = . (V240)) . - - - sjuaunsnipy /sesodsiq
5T > - 100 - 200 1Tl 8Tl = suonIppy
TLTSH 50 ST'0L Vi oLy S5 947041 §5°00T €409 (¢ 210N 13533) uonreuIquIod ssauisnq yBnoayy uonsinbay
E - - . - . - - - $20z ‘Arenue[ yiTr 1o se junowre Jurkies sso10
uone[[eIsuy uawdinba SAIMIXT] ATDunpry
[eI0L ssndwo) e »HI0 SIPIYIA lamiising puE B #suipring pue sIe[noONIE]
cL'80S (441} £7'8 90'T 160 e LT'E9L £L'69¢ 6.'09 SZOT "YU ISTE 1B ST anjes Jurdine N
BHL'SE 920 96'L 540 240 060 gL 88'ZL - SZOZ “Yarepy 1SLE 1w st uonepaxdop parenwnisy
800 o0 J = * (80°0) 00 2000 = siuaunsnipe uoneisuel]
(e'T) . J (00°0) (16°0) (v0°0) (zy°0) - - siawisnpy /sjesodsiq
SELE 020 891 650 621 £8°0 sT9L LULL - 1eaf ayy 10j 2wy
ra) S0'0 82°0 00 vEo ST0 ¥4 £€9'T = $z0T ‘14dv 1T 18 se uonerdaidap pajenwnddy
La'ERS 84°0 6£°0T 15°1 £€9°'T 9t 8L1I8T 19°28C 64709 STOT "Y2aey 1STE Je Se Junowe Juikiied s5048 quiso))
s86'¢c 000 - = = (€0°0) 9670 66'C S0°0 sjuauysnipe uonesues]
(127) - * (00°0) (0072) ($0'0) (£9°0) - ¥ sjuawisnlpy /spesodsiq
ST'L8 8L0 Yo €00 - or'e 1E'6 6€°24 = suontppy
6£°6SH 6£°0 ST'OL 871 29'¢ (%4 8L'TLL £2°20C .09 #20Z ‘111d v 15T e se junowe SurAues ssoin
suone[jeisu]  juawdinba SIMX1] K1aunydey

T)0 d - )

®oL s1ndwo) o il SAPIYI A BTN, o #sGurpyimg pue] sIe[nonueJ

LNIWJAINDT ¥ INV1d ‘ALIII0Ud (¥)

(pate)s as1mIa0 SSAJUN ‘S2104D) YN Ul 1T SJUNOWE [|v/)
SZ0Z ‘1€ Y2IRJAl PapUa 1eaf 2] 10 SJUWI) LIS [ELUEUT] SV PUT PaJePI{OSU0D) JO 1ed Sunwuioy sajon
(\pAITI] SaINSNpU] [EdWAYD) eARApPY, ST UMOWY A[IDULIO) PajIUI] [ESIWOYD) wireydenby

<

-



29°0Z $Z0T 'Y2ITIAl ISTE B SE INJeA SUIALIED 1N

LL'0 $20Z YMBA 1S1E 18 se uonenaidag paje[nunidy
€00 sjuauysnipe uonesuviy,
- sjuawisn(py /sjesodsiq
89°0 pouad ayy 10y aBiey)
* $20z ‘Arenuef qiry je se uoperdrdag parenunddy
8€'TL $20T ‘Y21eIA 1STE 3 Se junowe Jurfised sso1d Jursofd
800 sjuauwisnlpe uonejsuel ],
- syuawysn(py /sjesodsiq
06°C sUoIppY
0¥'89 (£ 10N 19J3y) uoneUIqoD ssautsnq ydnoay uoriisinboy
$z0z ‘Arenuef W1 je se junowe Jurdued sso1n
Flosse s1e[nanaeJ
as[] 30 1431y
LELY G70T ‘Y2IeIA] ISLE B ST an[EA SUTANIED JaN
80'S §70T ‘Y2IeJA ISTE 1B Se UOHe1da1dap paje[nunady
S0°0 sjuawisn[pe uone[suLl],
- sjuaunsnipy /sjesodsiq
(44 1eaf ayy a0y a81eyd
140 320z ‘1ad vy 18T e se uonenaidap pajenuny
SH'2L ST0T ‘Y2se A 1S1E Je se junowe Jurfues sso1d Juisod
8€0 sjuawisnipe uonejsuvsy,
- sjuswisnipy /s[esodsiq
69°0 SUOINPPY
8E'TL $20T ‘112d v 35T 3E se Junoure Jurfired sso019)
BEE
as1 3o 1 dn sIe[nONIE ]

193Ys douefeq uf pasiuToda1 sany[Iqel] pue s)assy (1)

‘suoido uojsuarxa

2wy 1nq ‘sponiad paxiy 10j apew Ajjeatd &) are s15e13u00 |eyuay “A1surydew 3 jueld pue sSuipjing ‘sposed pue) snoea sa5e3] dnouD Ay, "39s53] ¥ 5T dNoIo) 3y 213y m Sasea| 10 uoNeWLIOU) s3p1aoid ajou sy,
: s1asse asn Jo 1ySny (9) ¢

'ST0T Y24PIN LE papua popad ayy Buninp papuadsns Sjueiodway usaq sey yey spaload ou uaaq sey asay],

'siseq Suio8uo

ue uo paiojpuow are yrym ‘ueld jeurBuo sit uo paseq sidafod jo uonajdwion ai sarenfeas dnois syl pzog ‘1g YLy Puw SZOZ ‘L Ya4ey uo se suejd [euidlio 0y pasedwod Sanpiano [RLIAIEW OU 31 AL |

papuadsns Ajaesodwsay spafos g

8L1EL 2 SEL SL'8¢ 8CC6 ssasBoud uj s303(0ag
€10 saval ¢ s1val ¢- sival avas |
®el uey) 310 h e Al uey) 597

$20T ‘T€ Y2Ie JE 5T JIMD

Jo ponad B a0 J1mD u1 junowy

papuadsns Ajuesodway spafolg

S6'LLE L] Po'LL Lg'se £0°69¢ ssa1801d uy sp2afo1g
’S . ’
1eI01 et € sivad ¢-g sivad g-1 aeak
uey asoly uey) sso7] 5202 ‘1€ WIEA J€ SE JTMD

Jo poiaad e 103 JIMD ur Junowy

((dIMD) ssa18o1d-ur->a0m fendes yo Jurady



~10s53] 2A112adsas ayy Aq j0u pue dnossy auyy £q Ljuo aqesiaiaxa are pjay suondo

UOIIBU[WIS) PUP UOISUAIX3 JO Ajofew 3y, ‘sideajuod BuiBeurw jo swiay ul AIIqIxa)y puoielado dSIWIXEW 0] PAsN 1P SWIA) S ], *SJUSWIITP 35PI] Ul PapN|IU] I suoRdo UCHPUILL] puP UOISUIXT

: uondo uoneUIWIa | pUE UOISUIIXY

9A0qP 210U 1353y “pred uasq Apeasje sey pue pjoyasea] 0y 10adsas yim asea) ayj jo poriad ayj 10§ Juawiked ases) [LI01 AL,

(sasuadxa 1310

Lo 590 ¥€ uJ JU3I SB PAPN|dUI) $}ISSE AN[RA MO| ‘SaSL3| WIS 1JOYS 0) paje[as sasuadxyg

920°0 LE0 € L(1502 3dURUY UL papndur) sasuadxa Jsalaju]

YC-TeN-1E SC-TeN-1E ‘ON 910N sIE[IdIe ]
890 (4% 4

120 €8l Alduiydeur i jue|J

9€0 08'L Burpjing pioyasea
(A1) 69°0

pueT pjoyasea]
s)asse asn Jo 1S uo adrey> vonyrenddag

Ye-TeN-LE ST-1CN-TE

sIe[NdNIL]

1$S07] PUE J1JO1] JO JUdWAIeIS§ AY) Ul pasruFodas junowry (11)

porrad ai) Jo pua ayny

51034 3Al) 0] U
1034 auo uey) ssa]

SSHL 06'LL

¥O'LL 90°8

0E'E 8
YT-IRA-1E ST-1RN-IE

SIV|NITME]

1seq parunodsipun ue uo pus pouad ay) 1e se sanifiq

asva] Jo saNiInew [enidenuod ay) Juipiedas sjreiap sapraoid mojaq ajqel oYL

SSPL LI poriad ayy jo pua ayr 1y

(o0 (18'¢) SATI|I 2] 5B JO SIUAIUIENIPE /JUa AT,

90°0 LE°0 (€ 310U 13Ja1) 35213U] JO UOLAIIIY

= 190 1eaf auy Buninp Aupqer| aseaj 01 uonippy

o1'sL 2 (2 910N 13)33]) uoleUIqWOD ssauisny yZnoay uonisinboy

= SSyl porad sy jo duiumiing sy 1y

PC-1eN-IE CE-ICN-LE Sie[mIIT]

SINI[IQeI] ASEJ] JO JUIWIA0A

SSP1 0S'E S'EL TLIT ja:1 HE'L 18I0l

629 15l 8Ly 8y £L8'1 8TE ALdutyary 3 uelg

97’8 66'L 29 489 LTT 09t Buiping pjoyasea
1¥101 JuaunD  JUMMIUDN e101, JUalnD)  JUILINILON

YZ-1eA-IE GZ-IEN-TE sonIqery asea]

*asa| uo uayy) Azsuiyoeuw 2 jueld pue sSuipnng oy suensad Anjiqer sseay

YL 'pu¥( proyasea| sy 10) Apiqul| Burpuodsaiion Sue aeald 03 asnbas jou saop dnosny ay ‘a10jatay ] puey pjoyasea| au 01 1adsas yiram asea| Jo poprad a1a1dwod ayy 10j yuswied auy apew sey .n_.:EU ayL

sanniqery asea] (p)

£9°0L LE'LY 8E°1L SP'TL
18'S [444 0€'9 91’9 Arounydey 3 juelg
98¢ 98’9 80'8 66'8 Buip|ng pjoyasea
00°28 6295 0048 0049

pueT pjoyasea]
sjasse asp Jo

PL-aeN-1€ ST-1eN-TE FTICIN-1E ST-IeNRLE

sIe[nonieJ

2014 19N Haug) sS015)

i(onpe A Soog 12N) 2sea] 03 Sunear yunowre Furmorroy ay) SMOYs 199ys adue[Eq SYL



5a

Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the purchase consideration in excess of the Company's interest in the net fair value of identifiable assets, liabilides and

contingent liabilities of the acquired entity. When the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired
exceeds purchase consideration, the fair value of net assets acquired is reassessed and the bargain purchase gain is recognized in capital reserve.
Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Opening carrying amount 1,161.37 1,161.29
Impairment (554.72) -
Translation adjustments 0.11 0.08
606.76 1,161.37

Closing carrying amount

Impairment test of Goodwill
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when

annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to
its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price,
recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Goodwill of Rs. 1,161.29 Crores had arisen on acquisition of Aquapharm Chemicals Private Limited (“ACPL") during the year ended 31 March,
2024 (Refer Note 47). The Group assesses thie goodwill for any indication of impairment at annual basis.

Pursuant to amalgamation of ACPL into Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited") (“ACL")
(Refer Note 47) and consequent change in tax base of the assets, deferred tax liability of Rs. 554.20 crores has been reversed through statement of
Profit & Loss and ACL has performed impairment assessment of goodwill arisen on acquisition of ACPL and has accounted for impairment loss
of Rs. 554.72 crores based on calculation of value in use performed by external valuer.

The impairment assessment was triggered by aforesaid reversal of deferred tax liability and consequent increase in carrying amount of Cash

Generating Unit, on account of amalgamation.

Key Assumptions used for value in use calculations are as follows:

Particulars As at
31st March 2025
Eamings before Interest Tax Depreciation, and Amortisation % in forecast period 21% - 24%
Profit before tax % in forecast period 18% -22%
Growth rate used for extrapolation perpetuity rate 4%
18.50%

Discount rate (post tax)
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Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

(b) INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Particulars Computer software Cu§tome_r Knowhow and IP Total
relationship
Gross carrying amount as at 1st April, 2024 1.05 1,710.80 467.80 2,179.65
Additions - - - -
Disposals/ Adjustments - - - =
Impairment - - . .
Translation adjustments - - - -
Closing gross carrying amount as at 31st March, 2025 1.05 1,710.80 467.50 2,179.65
Accumulated amortization as at 1st April, 2024 0.07 1148 3.90 15.45
Amotisation during the year 0.42 68.17 23.33 91.92
Disposals/ Adjustments - - - -
Translation adjustments - > - -
Accumulated amortization as at 31st March, 2025 0.49 79.65 27.23 107.37
Net carrying value as at 31st March, 2025 0,56 1,631.15 440.57 2,072.29
Particulars Computer software Cuftome.r Knowhow and IP Total
relationship
Gross carrying amount as at 11th January, 2024 - - - -
Additions - - - -
Acquisition through business combination (Refer Note 47) 1.05 1,710.80 467.80 2,179.65
Disposals/ Adjustments - - - -
Translation adjustments - - - -
Closing gross carrying amount as at 31st March, 2024 1.05 1,710.80 467.80 2,179.66
Accumulated amortization as at T1th January, 2024 - - = -
Amotisation during the period 0.07 1148 3.90 1545
Disposals/ Adjustments = 1 = :
Translation adjustments - - - -
Accumulated amortization as at 31st March, 2024 0.07 11.48 3.90 15.45
Net carrying vatlue as at 31st March, 2024 0.98 1,699.32 463.90 2164.21

Aggregate amount of amortization has been included under depreciation and amortization expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss [Refer Note 33 for details]




Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

INVESTMENTS - NON-CURRENT
Investment in Equity instrument (measured at cost)
Investment in subsidiaries (Unquoted, fully paid up)

Aquapharm Foundation, India* 0.01 0.01
9,999 (31 March 2024: 9,999) equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up
0.01 0.01
Carrying value and market value of quoted and unquoted investments are as below:
Aggregate carrying value of quoted investments & market value thereof - -
Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments 0.01 0.01
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments - -
The Group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.
* Aquapharm Foundation is a Section 8 company not considered for consolidation since it can apply its income for charitable purposes only.
As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Non-current (Unsecured, considered good)
Deposits with maturity of more than 12 months 0.65 0.09
Security Deposits 510 4.49
5.75 4.58
As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good
Capital Advances 313 14.39
Prepaid expenses 0.12 -
3.25 14.39
Asat As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
INVENTORIES
Raw Materials 116.09 §9.27
(includes packing material of Rs. 3.24 Crores (31 March 2024 : Rs. 3.94 Crores)
In transit 54.06 8.29
170.14 97.56
Work-in-progress 20.96 11.75
20.96 11.75
Finished goods 118.08 140.74
In transit 38.17 30.80
156.25 171.54
Stores and spares 7.58 6.60
354.93 287.45

Write-down of inventories amounted to INR 7.28 Crores (31 March 2024: INR 10.65 Crores). These were recognised as an expense in Statement of

Profit and Loss of respective year.

Refer note 22 for information on inventories hypothecated as security by the Group.
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Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

As at
31st March 2025

As at
31st March 2024

INVESTMENTS - CURRENT
In mutual funds (quoted; at fair value through profit or loss)

Nil (31 March 2024: 14,20,700.9) Units of ABSL Corporate Bond Fund Direct Growth Plan 14.67
Nil (31 March 2024: 23,04,350.54 } Units of HDFC Short Term Debt Fund Direct Growth Plan 6.84
Nil (31 March 2024: 63,773.80) Units of HSBC Cash Fund Direct Growth Plan 15.34
36.85

Additional information:
36.85

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof*

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments

*Includes INR Nil (31 March 2024: INR 36.85 Crores) pledged in favour of bank to secure ECB and SBLC Limits.

The Group has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.
Refer note 43 for associated market and credit risk.
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Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Asat As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balances with banks:
In Current Accounts 49.39 86.55
In EEFC Accounts 14.52 21.07
Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 0.94 9.70
Cash on Hand 0.03 0.05
64.88 117.37
There are no repatriation restrictions with regards to cash & cash equivalents.
As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
13 OTHER BANK BALANCES
Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months* 9.65 15.27
9.65 15.27

*Includes INR Nil (31 March 2024: INR 14 Crores) lien marked in favour of the bank to secure SBLC Facility.

As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
14 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good
Interest accrued on Bonds and Deposits 0.23 0.44
Others 2.80 0.11
3.03 0.55
As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
15 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Unsecured, considered good
Export incentives receivable# 0.76 =
Prepaid expenses 233 3.99
Advances to suppliers 551 11.25
Balances with Government Authorities** 31.32 14.33
Contract Assets* 1.68 -
Others 0.51 0.64
42,11 30.21

*There is no impairment allowance of the contract assets for current year.

** Balances with Government Authorities primarily includes amounts realisable, if any, from the GST Authorities and customs authorities of India and
the unutilised GST input credits on purchases to be utilised against future GST liabilities. These are generally realised within one year and hence these

balances have been classified as current assets.

# Includes export Benefit Receivables primarily consist of amounts receivable from government authorities of India towards incentives on export sales

made by the Company.




Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

16 (a) EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized share capital

4,00,00,00,000 (31 March 2024 : 4,00,00,00,000 ) Equity Shares of INR 10 each 4,000.00 4,000.00

Issued share capital

2,85,00,00,000 (31 March 2024 : 10,00,00,000) Equity Shares of INR 10 each fully paid up 2,850.00 100.00

Subscribed & fully paid up share capital

2,85,00,00,000 (31 March 2024 : 10,00,00,000) Equity Shares of INR 10 each fully paid up 2,850.00 100.00
2,850.00 100.00

Total issued, subscribed & fully paid up equity share capital

a Reconcilialion of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
31st March 2025 (No.  31st March 2025 31st March 2024 (No.  31st March 2024

of Shares) (INR Crores) of Shares) (INR Crores)
At the beginning of the year 10,00,00,000 100.00 - -
Shares issued during the year 2,75,00,00,000 2,750.00 10,00,00,000 100.00
At the end of the year 2,85,00,00,000 2,850.00 10,00,00,000 100.00

On 11 January, 2024, the Parent Company has issued and allotted 50,00,000 equity shares of Rs 10 each at an issue price of Rs 10 per equity share to PCBL Chemical
Limited (Holding Parent Company) , being the subscriber to the Memorandum , aggregating to Rs 5,00 Crores . Further on 22nd January 2024, the Parent Company
issued and allotted 7,50,00,000 and 2,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs 10 each at an issue price of Rs 10 per equity share to PCBL Chemical Limited { Holding Parent
Company) and PCBL (TN) Limited (Wholly Owned Subsidiary of PCBL Chemical Limited), aggregating to Rs 75 Crores and Rs 20 Crores respectively. The
allotment was made through preferential basis as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with the consent from the shareholders of the Parent Company
obtained at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 19 January 2024 and all other applicable provisions of Companies Act,2013 (including any statutory
modification, or re-enactment thereof or any regulations, rules and guidelines, if any, related thereto for the time being in force), and the relevant provisions of the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Parent Company. Pursuant to the allotment of equity shares on preferential basis, the paid up share
capital of the Parent Company has been increased from Rs 5 Crores comprising of 50,00,000 Equity share to Rs 100 Crores comprising of 10,00,00,000 Equity share
for the period ending 31st March 2024,

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of unlisted optionally and fully convertible debentures ("OCDs"), the Parent Company has converted all 275,00,00,000 OCDs
into one equity shares of Rs. 10 each during the year ended 31st March 2025. Accordingly , the Parent Company has issued 220,00,00,000 and 55,00,00,000 equity
shares of Rs. 10 each to PCBL Chemical Limited and PCBL (TN) Limited respectively.

b Terms and rights attached to equity shares:
The Parent Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/- per share and each shareholder is entitled for one vote per share held. The
Parent Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in
the ensuing Annual General Meeting except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are entitled to receive the remaining
assets of the Parent Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

¢ Shares held by Holding Parent Company and its subsidiaries/associates:

As at 31st March 2025 As al 31st March 2024

No. of Shares held % of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding
PCBL Chemical Limited (Immediate Holding Parent Company) 2,28,00,00,000 80.00% 8,00,00,000 80.00%
P.CB.L (TN} Limited ( Wholly Owned Subsidiary of PCBL Chemical 57,00,00,000 20.00% 2,00,00,000 20.00%
Limited)

d Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Parent Company:
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

No. of Shares held Yo of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding
PCBL Chemical Limited (Immediate Holding Parent Company) 2,28,00,00,000 80.00% 8,00,00,000 80.00%
I’.CB.L (TN) Limited ( Wholly Owned Subsidiary of PCBL Chemical 57,00,00,000 20.00% 2,00,00,000 20.00%
Limited)

e Details of shareholding of pr fers:
As at 31st March 2025

No. of Shares held % of Holding % Change
PCBL Chemical Limited (Immediate Holding Parent Company) 2,28,00,00,000 80% 0%
P.CB'L (TN) Limited ( Wholly Owned Subsidiary of PCBL Chemical 57,00,00,000 20% 0%
Limited)

As at 31st March 2024

No. of Shares held % of Holding % Change
PCBL Chemical Limited (Immediate Holding Parent Company) 8,00,00,000 80% 0%
E(K::i[;egr)N) Limited ( Wholly Owned Subsidiary of PCBL Chemical 2,00,00,000 20% 0%

‘Promoters’ for the purpose of this disclosure means promoters as defined under Section 2(69) of Companies Act, 2013.
The Schedule III disclosures requirement regarding bonus shares and forfeited shares are not applicable to the Parent Company.
There are no calls unpaid by Directors / Officers of the Parent Company.




Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming parl of Consolidaled Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

16 (b) INSTRUMENTS ENTIRELY EQUITY IN NATURE
0.1% Optionally and Fully Convertible Debentures {OCDs")

(i

(iii

(iv

{v

)

)

)

As at As at

Fully paid up
31st March 2025 31sl March 2024

2,75,00,00,000 ,0.1% optionally and fully convertible debentures ("OCDs") of % 10/- each fully paid-up - 2,750.00

During the period 11 January 2024 to 31 March 2024, the Parent Company has issued and allotted 2,20,00,00,000 and 55,00,00,000 OCDs of Rs 10 each at an issue
price of Rs 10 per equity share to PCBL Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "PCBL Limited" ) (Holding Parent Company) and PCBL (TN) Limited (Wholly
Owned Subsidiary of PCBL Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "PCBL Limited” )) aggregating to Rs 2,200.00 Crores and Rs 550 Crores on 29 January 2024.The
issue was made through private placement basis as per provision of the Companies Act, 2013 with the consenl from the shareholders of the Parent Company
obtained at the Extraordinary Ceneral Meeting held on 19 January 2024 and all applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory
modification, or re-enaciment thereaf or any regulations, rutes and guidelines, 1f any, related thereto for the time being in force), the relevant provisions of the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Parent Company:

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of unlisled optionally and fully convertible debentures ("OCDs"), the Parent Company has converted all 275,00,00,000 OCDs
into one equity shares of Rs. 10 each during the year ended 31st March 2025. Accordingly , the Parent Company has issued 220,00,00,000 and 55,00,00,000 equity
shares of Rs. 10 each to PCBL Chemical Limited and PCBL (TN} Limited respectively

Details of OCDs held by the sharcholders holding more lhan 5% of the As at As at
OCD:s in the Parent Company :- 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Number of OCDs _ Number of OCDs
(Holding %) {Holding %)
PCBL Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "PCBL Limited" ) - Holding - 2,20,00,00,000
Parent Company

. (80%)
PCBL (TN) Limited ( Wholly Owned Subsidiary of PCBL Chemical Limited - 55,00,00,000
(Formerly known as "PCBL Limited" }}
(20%)
:{(;E(};lzlt;lztltosraz;?:;ber of optionally and fully converiible debentures Number of OCDs Amount
As at January 11, 2024 - -
Add: OCDs issue during the period [ Refer Note (i) | 2.75,00,00.000 2,750.00
As at 31s1 March 2024 2,75,00,00.000 2.750.00
Less: OCDs coverted to equitv shares in the ratio 1:1 {2,75,00.00.000) (2.750.00)
As al 31st March 2025 - -
Details of OCDs held by
As al 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
S.No Name No.of OCD % of tatal OCD No.of OCD % of Lotal OCD
1 PCBL Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "PCBL Limited" ) - - - 2,20,00,00,000 80%
Ultimate Holding Parent Company
2 PCBL (TN) Limited ( Wholly Owned Subsidiary of PCBL - - 55,00,00,000 20%
Chemical Limited {(Formerlv known as "PCBL Limited" }}

Terms/ Rights attached o OCDs
Unlisted optionally and fully convertible debentures ("OCDs") will be Convertible only at the option of the issuer at any time within 10 years from the date of

allotmenl. The conversion ralio of each OCD shall be 1:1 {i.e. one OCD shall be converted into 1 equity share of the Parent Company). The conversion ratio of the
OCDs shall be suitably modified in case of any split and / or bonus issuance and / or any other restructuring, including but not limited to merger / demerger,
involving the Issuer. No partial redemption of OCDs is permitted.Maturity Period is 10 years.The right ta redeem the OCD will be solely at the option and
discretion of the [ssuer. If the OCDs are not converted by the Issuer into equity shares by the 10th anniversary of the date of allotment, the Parent Company will
have an option either to redeem at par or convert in 1:1 ratio. No investor shall have a right to exervise the option to seek redemption of OCDs The fixed interest
rate at 0.1% per annum on each OCD (“Coupon”), shall be applicable if and only if the Parent Company exercises the option of redemption in relation to the
OCDs,No Coupon shall accrue on the OCDs until the option of redemption is exercised by the Parent Company and such Coupon shall become due and payable

on from the date of redemption




Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

17 OTHER EQUITY

As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Opening balance 1.01 -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations for the period 8.10 1.01
Closing Balance# 9.11 1.01

#This also includes allocation to Non controlling interests. Refer Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for further details.

Retained Earnings*

Opening Balance (28.25) -
Profit for the period (29.14) (28.36)
Payment to non-controlling interest for acquisition* (3.90) -
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations, net of tax (0.03) 0.11
Total Retained earnings (61.33) (28.25)

*Retained earnings include an amount of INR 0.28 Crores (31 March 2024: INR 0.28 Crores) which is restricted for distribution of
dividend.

The total retained earnings also includes allocation to Non controlling interests. Refer Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for further details.

Cash flow hedge reserve

Opening balance 0.16) -

Transferred during the period to Statement of Profit and Loss 0.16 -

Created during the period - (0.16)
Closing Balance - (0.16)
Total Other equity (52.22) (27.40)
Less: Allocation to Non-controlling interests 3.11 (0.44)
Other equity attributable to owners (55.33) (26.96)
Non-controlling interests (2.05) (5.60)
Total Other equity (57.38) (32.56)

Nature & purpose of reserves, other than retained earnings:

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve - Exchange differences arising on translation of the foreign operations are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate reserve in equity. The cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss
when the net investment is disposed off.

Cash flow hedge reserve - The Group uses forward contracts to hedge its exposure to movements in foreign exchange rates which
are designated as cash flow hedges. To the extent these hedges are effective, the changes in fair value of the hedging instruments are
recognised in the cash flow hedging reserve. Amounts recognised in cash flow hedging reserve are reclassified to profit or loss when
the hedged item affects profit or loss.
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Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
BORROWINGS
Non-current borrowings
Term Loans*
Indian rupee loan from banks (secured) 146.20 -
Term loan from Non-Banking Financial Company ("NBFC") (secured) 381,10 447.89
Non-Convertible Debentures ("NCD!) (secured) 467.50 550.00
Foreign currency loans from banks (secured) - 7.52
994.80 1,005.41
The above amount includes:
Secured borrowings 994.80 1,005.41
Unsecured borrowings s -
Total Non-current borrowings 994.80 1,005.41
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings disclosed under the head Current Borrowing (171.16) (157.12)
(refer note 22)
823.64 848.29

Net Amount

*The amount is net of fees and charges paid upfront of INR 3.19 Crores (31 March 2024: INR 2.11 Crores).

Notes:

Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited") (Parent Company):

a) Indian rupee term loan from bank of INR 146.2 Crores (31 March 2024: INR Nil ) carries fixed interest rate. Loan amount is repayable in 22
quarterly instalments of INR 6.73 Crores starting from Jul'25. The term loan is secured by way of first charge on movable fixed assets of the

Company, both present and future.

b) Loan from NBFC Rs 211.73 Crore (31 March 2024 : INR 248.83 Crores) is secured by way of 1st ranking pari-paasu charge on all movable
fixed and current assets, negative lien on immovable properties of the Company, Hypothecation on investments/loans and advances made in
foreign subsidiaries by the Company and Non-Disposal Undertaking on equity shares of the foreign subsidiaries to the lenders of the Company
to the extent of the security cover of 1x in terms of the Deed of Hypothecation dated 20th March 2025. Loan amount is repayable in a bullet
repayment of INR 37.50 Crores in Jan'25, 8 quarterly instalments of INR 9.38 Crores starting from Apr'25 and 8 quarterly installments of 17.19
Cr starting from Apr'27. The term loan carries fixed interest rate.

c) Loan from NBFC Rs 169.37 Crore (31 March 2024 : INR 199.06 Crores) is secured by way of 1st ranking pari-paasu charge on all movable
fixed and current assets, negative lien on immovable properties of the Company, Hypothecation on investments/loans and advances made in
foreign subsidiaries by the Company and Non-Disposal Undertaking on equity shares of the foreign subsidiaries to the lenders of the Company
to the extent of the security cover of 1x in terms of the Deed of Hypothecation dated 20th March 2025. Loan amount is repayable in a bullet
repayment of INR 30.00 Crores in Jan25, 8 quarterly instalments of INR 7.50 Crores starting from Apr'25 and 8 quarterly installments of 13.75
Cr starting from Apr'27. The term loan carries floating interest rate.

d) The Non-Convertible Debentures of INR 467.50 Crores (31 March 2025 : INR 550.00 Crores) are secured by way of 1st ranking pari-paasu
charge on all movable fixed and current assets, negative lien on immovable properties of the Company, Hypothecation on investments/loans
and advances made in foreign subsidiaries by the Company and Non-Disposal Undertaking on equity shares of the foreign subsidiaries to the
lenders of the Company to the extent of the security cover of 1x in terms of the Deed of Hypothecation dated 20th March 2025 executed with
the debenture trustee. NCD carries fixed interest rate and is repayable in 3 annual instalments of INR 82.50 Crores starting from Jan'25 and 2
annual installments of INR 151.25 Crores starting from Jan'28.

Unique Solutions For Chemical Industries Co., Saudi Arabia:
a) Term loan of INR Nil (31 March 2024: INR 7.52 Crores) is repaid during the year ended 31st March 2025. The term loan was secured by
Corporate guarantee issued by the Parent Company.

As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

PROVISIONS

Non-current

Provision for Gratuity (refer note 36) 1.35 1.79
Provision for Employee benefit obligations of Unique Solutions for Chemical Industries Co., 2.82 2.56
Saudi Arabia (refer note 36)

4.16 4.35




Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
20 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES / (ASSETS) (NET)
Deferred Tax Liabilities (A)
197.09 594.35
Property, plant & equipment (including ROU and Intangible assets) : Impact of difference
between tax depreciation and depreciation/amortization for financial reporting
Right of use assets - 8.75
Impact of fair valuation of mutual funds and bonds - 1.61
Total (A) 197.09 604.71
Deferred Tax Assets (B)
Expected credit loss 0.10 0.13
Expenditure allowed for tax purposes on payment basis 2.03 2.01
Brought forward losses and depreciation 184.50 -
Lease liabilities 0.28 291
Expenses deductible for tax purposes in future period 4.25 4.30
Others 0.22 4.63
Total (B) 191.38 13.99
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) (A-B) 5.71 590.72
Reconciliation of deferred tax liability
As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Opening deferred tax liability, net 590.72 -
Addition on account of Business Combination - 596.80
Reversal of deferred tax liability pursuant to restructuring (554.20) -
Deferred tax (credit) / charge recorded in statement of profit and loss (30.89) (6.02)
Deferred tax (credit) / charge recorded in OCI 0.11 (0.09)
Others (0.03) 0.03
Closing deferred tax liability, net 5.71 590.72
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024 are:
As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Profit and loss section
Current tax 17.59 6.47
Deferred Tax (30.89) (6.02)
Income tax expenses reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss (13.30) 0.45
OCI Section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year:
Net movement on cash flow hedges 0.06 (0.06)
Re-measurement of post employement benefit plans 0.05 (0.03)
Income tax charge / (credit) through OCI 0.11 (0.09)
Reconciliation of tax expense
As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Accounting profit before income tax (41.92) (27.91)
Tax at India’s statutory income tax rate of 25.17% (31 March 2024: 25.17%) (10.55) (7.03)
Tax rate difference (7.26) (1.90)
Corporate social responsibility 0.95 0.17
Subscriptions and donations 239 2.52
Deferred tax assets not recognised on losses 0.58 0.69
Other adjustments 0.60 6.00
Income tax expense (13.30) 0.45

Income tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss (13.30) 0.45




Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
21 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES

Opening Current tax liabilities/ (assets) (2.98) .
Addition on account of Business Combination liabilities / (assets) ] (4.26)
Add: Current tax charge for the year 17.59 6.47
Less: Tax paid 22.76 5.19
Total Current Tax Liabilities / (Assets) (8.15) (2.98)
Disclosed as Current Tax Liabilities 0.73 -
Disclosed as Income Tax Assets (8.88) (2.98)
TAX EXPENSES
Current tax 17.59 6.47
Deferred tax (30.89) (6.02)
Total tax expenses (13.30) 0.45

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised 3.10 8.67
Potential tax benefit @ 25.17% (31 March 2024: 25.17%) 0.78 218
As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

22 BORROWINGS
Current borrowings

Working capital loans from Banks (secured) 72,01 55.60
Working capital loans from Banks (unsecured) 68.47 -
Current maturities of long term borrowings (secured) 20.60 7.52
Current maturities of long term debts from NBFC (secured) 68.06 67.10
Current maturities of Non-Convertible Debentures (secured) 82.50 82.50
311.64 212.72

The above amount includes:
Secured borrowings
Unsecured borrowings

243.17 212.72
68.47 -

a Working capital loans from banks are secured by:
Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited") (Parent Company):
(i) Pari passu first charge by way of hypothecation of stocks of inventories and book debts/receivables of the Company, both present and
future.
(ii) Pari passu first charge on movable properties and immovable properties forming part of the property, plant and equipment of the
Company (both present and future) related to Pirangut plant of the Parent company.

(i) Pari passu second charge on movable properties and immovable properties forming part of the property, plant and equipment of the
Paremt Company (both present and future) related to Mahad plant of the Parent company.

(iv) Repayment & interest rate- Working capital loans are repayable on demand and carry variable interest rate.

Unique Solutions for Chemical Industries Co., Saudi Arabia:
(v) SBLC issued by the Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, India. The Loan is repayable on demand and carries variable

interest rate.

b The Group has borrowings from banks secured against current assets. The Monthly/quarterly statements of current assets filed by the
company with banks are in agreement with the books of account.

¢ The borrowings obtained by the Group from banks have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were taken.
d The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

e There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the Statutory period.




Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")

Notes forming part of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Net debt reconciliation

This section sets oul an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the periods presented.

Calculation of net debt

As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Cash and cash equivalents 64.88 117.37
Liquid investments 9.65 52.12
Lease Liabilities (11.72) (14.55)
Current Borrowings (including interest accrued but not due) (147.55) (64.05)
Non-current borrowings (including interest accrued but not due) (994.80) (1,005.50)
(1,079.55) (914.61)

Liquid investments include current investments that are traded in an active market and also include bank deposits classified as other bank

balances.

Movement of non-current borrowings

As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Opening balance 1,005.50 -
Cash flows (11.56) 1,005.38
Interest expense 95.35 16.36
Interest paid (94.51) (16.36)
Forex adjustment 0.02 0.12
994.80 1,005.50
Movement of current borrowings
As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Opening balance 64.05 62.93
Cash flows 84.47 (7.33)
Interest expense 9.96 2.66
Interest paid (11.43) 5.88
Forex adjustment 0.50 (0.09)
147.55 64.05
Movement of Jease liabilities
As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Opening balance 14.55 -
Acquisition through business combination (Refer Note 47) - 15.10
Addition to lease liability during the year 0.61 -
Accretion of interest 0.37 0.06
Payment/adjustments of lease liabilities (3.81) (0.62)
11.72 14.55
Movement of cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Opening balance 117.37 -
Cash flows (53.64) 116.96
Forex adjustment 1.15 0.41
Closing balance 64.88 117.37
Movement of liquid investments
As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Opening balance 5212 51.37
Net Cash flows from investments (45.64) 0.12
Net gain on sale of investments 3.18 -
Net fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets measured at FV through profit or loss - 0.63
9.65 52.12

Closing balance
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Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
24 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Non-current
Purchase consideration payable (refer note 47) - 36.41
- 36.41
Current
Derivative instruments
Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts (refer note 43) - 0.05
Others
Deposits from customers 0.53 043
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 7.07 8.5¢
Employee benefits payable 9.08 13.76
Payables for purchase of property, plant & equipment 9217 13.89
Amount payable to Holding Company (refer note 40) 28.56 24.23
Purchase consideration payable (refer note 47) 44.29 4.62
Others - 0.08
181.70 65.60
As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
25 PROVISIONS
Current
Provision for Gratuity (refer note 36) 0.78 0.31
Provision for Compensated absences (refer note 36) 5.01 4.92
5.79 5.23
As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
26 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Statutory dues payable 7.24 6.18
Advance from customers (contract liabilities)* 4.36 372
Others 0.17 0.14
11.77 10.04

*Contract liabilities have increase in the current year mainly on account of advances received from customers during the year against invoices

raised.




Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31st  11th January, 2024 to
March 2025 31st March, 2024
27 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of products
Finished goods 1,394.42 234.99
Traded goods 5.90 220
1,400.31 237.19
Sale of services
Income from Windmill 2.82 0.24
Material handling services 13.47 2.53
16.29 2.77
Other operating revenue
Scrap sales 0.16 0.03
Export incentives 3.04 0.08
3.20 0.11
1,419.80 240.07

Revenue disaggregation in terms of nature and products has been included above. The Group has only one segment (refer note 39).

Refer note 2 and 3 for accounting policy and significant judgements, respectively.

The total contract price of INR 1,400.31 Crores (31 March 2024: INR 237.19 Crores) is reduced by consideration of INR Nil (31 March 2024:

INR Nil) towards variable components.

For the year ended 31st  11th January, 2024 to
March 2025 31st March, 2024
28 OTHER INCOME
Interest Income
Bank Deposits 117 0.23
Net gain on sale of Investments 3.18 -
Net fair value gains on financial assets measured at FV through profit or loss - 0.63
Profit on sale of assets (net) 0.09 0.13
Miscellaneous Income 6.82 1.00
11.27 1.99
For the year ended 31st  11th January, 2024 to
March 2025 31st March, 2024
29 COST OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED*
Raw material at the beginning of the year 97.56 110.25
Add : Purchases 955.03 152.66
1,052.59 262,91
Less : Raw material at the end of the year (170.14) (97.56)
882.45 165.34

*Includes packing materials of INR 49.75 Crores (31 March 2024: INR 9.50 Crores)

For the year ended 31st

11th January, 2024 to

March 2025 31st March, 2024
30 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS & WORK-IN-PROGRESS
Inventories at the end of the year
Work-in-progress 20.96 11.75
Finished goods 156.25 171.54
177.21 183.29
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Work-in-progress 11.75 1252
Finished goods 171.54 153.36
183.29 165.88

6.08




Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Allamounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended 31st

11th January, 2024 to

March 2025 31st March, 2024
31 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE
Salaries, Wages & Bonus 136.16 2233
Contribution to Provident & other funds* 3.74 0.63
Staff welfare expenses 3.78 1.79
143.68 24.75

*This includes contribution of INR 1.68 Crores (31 March 2024: INR 0.11 Crores) towards provident fund (Defined contribution plan) in
current year. The Parent Company has a provident fund plan which is a defined contribution plan. Contributions are made to provident
fund administered by the Government of India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per local regulations. The obligation of the
Parent Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation.

For the year ended 31st  11th January, 2024 to
March 2025 31st March, 2024
32 FINANCE COSTS
Interest 10531 19.02
Interest on lease liabilities 0.37 0.06
Other borrowing costs 1.83 0.93
Total 107.51 20.01
For the year ended 31st 11th January, 2024 to
March 2025 31st March, 2024
33 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE
Depreciation of property, plant & equipment 31.85 5.09
Amortization of intangible assets 91.92 1545
Depreciation of right of use assets 4.32 0.68
Total 128.09 21.22
For the year ended 31st  11th January, 2024 to
March 2025 31st March, 2024
34 OTHER EXPENSES
Consumption of stores and spares 540 0.62
Power & fuel 47.07 716
Water charges 1.26 0.22
Rent 0.65 0.11
Repairs and Maintenance- Building 041 0.05
Repairs and Maintenance- Plant and Machinery 7.80 1.65
Repairs and Maintenance- Others 424 0.67
Insurance 844 1.54
Rates and taxes 2.79 349
Payment to Auditor 0.22 0.11
Legal and professional fees 22.06 1.28
Subscriptions and donations (refer note 51) 9.50 10.00
Marketing expenses 4.85 1.16
Travelling and conveyance expenses 7.39 1.39
Clearing and forwarding expenses 66.85 8.25
Sales commission 0.08 0.08
Bank charges 112 0.28
Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure (refer note 42) 3.77 0.67
Security charges 2.50 0.42
Miscellaneous expenses 15.29 16.46
Less : Net gain on foreign currency transactions 9.98 1.29
201.69 54.32
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Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Details of Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006:
The Parent Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
(‘MSMED Act’). The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows:

As at As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

(a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end
of each accounting year

Principal amount due to supplier# 3.9 8.61
Interest amount due to supplier - =
(b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and - -
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 along with the amount of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year
(c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period (where the principal has been paid but 0.06 0.04
interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not paid);
(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 0.27 0.21
(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until 0.27 0.21

such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance of a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Amount due to Micro and Small enterprises are disclosed on the basis of information available with the Parent Company regarding
status of the suppliers as Micro and Small enterprises.

#Includes INR 0.10 Crores (31st March 2024: INR 2.45 Crores) with respect to Payables for purchase of property, plant & equipment.

Refer Note 43 for market risk on trade payables
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Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Employee Benefit Obligation

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Non Current
Provision for Gratuity 1.35 1.79
Provision for Employee benefit obligation of Unique Solutions for Chemical Industries Co., Saudi 2.82 2.56
Arabia
Total non-current employee benefit obligations 416 4.35
Current
Provision for Gratuity 0.78 0.31
Provision for Compensated absences 5.01 4.92
Total current employee benefit obligations 5.79 5.23

i) Compensated Absences

The compensated absences cover the Parent Company's liability for privilege leave. The entire amount of provision is classified as current since
Parent Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these obligations. The expense of INR 1.02 Crores (March
31, 2024 : INR 0.10 Crores) is included under employee benefit expense in the Statement of profit & loss account.

ii) Post employment benefit - End of Service Benefits (Saudi Arabia)
The Group provides for End of Service (EOS) benefit for it employees in Saudi Arabia. The End of Service Benefit Scheme is a defined benefit
scheme with benefits based on last drawn salary. Employees having service period of less than 2 years are not eligible for the benefit.

iii) Post employment benefit - Gratuity

The Parent Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (amended). Employees who are in
continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees
last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan
is a funded plan and the Parent Company makes contributions to fund managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India. The Parent Company
does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time based on estimate of expected
gratuity payments.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 5.89 -
On Acquistion of Business Combination - 6.17
Current service cost 0.41 0.14
Interest cost 0.70 0.08
Actuarial (gain)/loss (0.18) (0.08)
Benefits paid (0.50) (0.42)
Defined benefit obligation, at the end of the year 6.33 5.89
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 3.79 -
On Acquistion of Business Combination - 3.60
Expected return on plan assets 0.28 0.06
Contribution by employer 0.53 -
Benefits paid (0.43) (0.11)
Actuarial gain / (loss) 0.03 0.24
4.20 3.79

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

The Parent Company expects to contribute INR 0.78 Crores (Actual contribution for year ended March 31, 2025: INR 0.53 Crores) to its gratuity

plan in FY 2024-25.




Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Yo Yo
Insurance Fund with Life Insurance Corporation of India 100 100
The fair value of planned assets represents the amount as confirmed by the fund.
Details of defined benefit obligation
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation 6.33 5.89
Fair value of plan assets (4.20) (3.79)
Benefit liability net 2.13 210
The net liability disclosed above relates to funded plans are as follows:
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Present value of funded obligations 6.33 5.89
Fair value of plan assets (4.20) (3.79)
Deficit of funded plan (A) 213 210
Unfunded plans (B) - -
213 2.10

Total net obligation (A+B)

The Parent Company has no legal obligation to settle the deficit in the funded plans with an immediate contribution or additional one off
contributions. The Parent Company intends to continue to contribute the defined benefit plans as per the demand from LIC of India. Refer

note above for details on expected contribution for FY 2025-26.

Net employee benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current service cost 0.41 0.14
Interest cost on benefit obligation 0.43 0.02
Net benefit expense 0.84 0.16
Net employee benefit expense recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI):

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Actuarial (gains)/losses on Obligation For the Period* 0.01 0.02)
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income (0.04) (0.06)
Net (income)/expense For the Period Recognized in OCI (0.02) (0.08)

*Includes loss of INR 0.20 Crores (March 31, 2024: gain of INR 0.06 Crores) pertaining to Employee benefit obligations of Unique Solutions for

Chemical Industries Co., Saudi Arabia.

Amounts for the current and previous periods are as follows:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Defined benefit obligation 6.33 5.89 5.52 4.84 3.68
Plan assets (4.20) (3.79) (3.40) (2.93) (2.35)
(Surplus) / deficit 213 2.10 212 1.91 1.34
Experience adjustments on (0.35) (0.03) 0.12 0.39 (0.34)
plan liabilities
Experience adjustments on (0.04) 0.01 0.01) (0.05) (0.04)
plan assets
The principal assumptions used in determining defined benefit obligation are shown below:
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate 6.70% 7.20%
Expected rate of return on plan asset 7.20% 7.40%
Expected rate of salary increase 10.00% 10.00%
9.00% 9.00%

Employee turnover




Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

The estimated future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account the effect of inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Sensitivity Analysis
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
+1% Change in discount rate (0.32) (0.29)
-1% Change in discount rate 0.35 0.32
+1% Change in rate of salary increase 0.27 0.24
-1% Change in rate of salary increase (0.25) (0.23)
+1% Change in rate of employee turnover 0.04) (0.04)
0.05 0.04

-1% Change in rate of employee turnover

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely
to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to
significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit
method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

Risk exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the Group is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below :

Asset volatility:
The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields; if plan assets underperform this yield, this will create

a deficit. Plan assets are maintained with fund manager LIC of India.

Changes in bond yields:

A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities.

Future salary escalation and inflation risk:

Rising salaries will often result in higher future defined benefit payments resulting in a higher present value of liabilities especially unexpected
salary increases provided at managements discretion may lead to uncertainties in estimating this risk.

Life expectancy:

Increases in life expectancy of employee will result in an increase in the plan liabilities. This is particularly significant where inflationary
increases result in higher sensitivity to changes in life expectancy.

The Company's assets are maintained in a trust fund managed by public sector insurance company via LIC of India. LIC has a sovereign
guarantee and has been providing consistent and competitive returns over the years. The plan asset mix is in compliance with the
requirements of the respective local regulations.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 7.55 years (March 31, 2024 - 7.51 years). The expected maturity analysis of
undiscounted gratuity is as follows:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Funded Funded

Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the

Date of Reporting

Less than 1 year 1.33 1.24
Between 1 to 2 years 1.11 0.66
Between 2 to 3 years 0.79 1.04
Between 3 to 4 years 0.73 0.76
Between 4 to 5 years 0.77 0.74

Over 5 years 4.25 4.26




Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

37 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

38

a] Contingent Liabilities-

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1. Disputed liabilities

a) Service tax 5.90 5.97
b) Excise Duty 0.20 0.20
¢) Goods and Services Tax 1.05 0.99
d) Income Tax 5.60 7.30
e) Customs - MEIS 48.66 48.66

61.40 63.13

a) Service Tax - Disallowance mainly for service tax credit taken on services rendered overseas and ocean freight.

b) Excise Duty - Demand on inter unit stock transfer from EOU unit to DTA unit.

c) Goods and Services Tax - Demand of GST on sale of leasehold land.

d) Income Tax - Disallowance mainly of expenses under section 14A and disallowance of expense due to non-deduction of TDS on payment

made to non-residents.

) Customs - MEIS - Dispute over classification of the product.

Contingent liability disclosed above includes an amount of INR 61.26 crores (31 March 2024: INR 62.98 crores) which is jointly and severally
indemnified by the erstwhile promoters as per the Share Purchase Agreement dated November 28, 2023 (refer note 47).

The Group has not provided for disputed liabilities disclosed above arising from disallowances made in assessments which are pending
with different appellate authorities for its decision. The Group is contesting the demands and the management, including its tax advisors,
believe that its position will likely be upheld in the appellate process. No liability has been accrued in the financial statements for the
demands raised. The management believes that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the
Group's financial position. It is not practicable to indicate the uncertainties which may affect the future outcome and estimate the financial
effect of the above liabilities.

b] Capital Commitments

Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital account and not recognised for (net of advances) is INR 21.01 Crores
(31 March 2024 : INR 68.80 Crores).

The list of subsidiaries included in consolidation and the Group's effective holding therein:
Name of the Subsidiaries Principal place of Proportion of interest held as at
business/Country of
incorporation March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Aquapharm Europe B.V. Netherlands 100% 100%
Aquapharm Chemicals LLC USA 100% 100%
Aquapharm PChem LLC USA 100% 100%
Aquapharm Specialty Chemicals LLC USA 100% 100%
Unique Solutions for Chemical Industries Co. Saudi Arabia 95% 85%
USCILLC UAE 95% 85%

Note: Aquapharm Foundation is a Section 8 Company and not considered for consolidation since it can apply its income for charitable
purposes only.
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Notes forming part of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
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Segment reporting

(a) Description of segments and principal activities

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.
Board of Directors have been identified as the chief operating decision maker.

The Group has only one operating segment which is 'Chemical' and does not operate in any other reportable segment as per Ind AS
108 : Operating segments. Accordingly, separate segment information is not required to be disclosed.

(b) Information about revenue from operations and geographical distribution of revenue

The Group has only one business segment. Hence, the segment revenue, segment results, segment assets and segment liabilities are
derived from this segment only.

Revenue from one customer amounted to INR 81.44 Crores for the year ended 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: Revenue from two
customers INR 19.12 Crores).

i) Revenue from operations
The amount of its revenue broken down by location of the customers is in the table below:

11th January, 2024
For the year ended to
31st March 2025 31st March, 2024

Revenue from customers

Domestic 973.79 17271

Exports 446.01 67.36
Total revenue per Statement of profit 1,419.80 240.07
and loss

ii) Non Current operating assets

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within India 2,771.71 2,647.60
Outside India 197.14 183.63

Total 2,968.85 2,831.23

Non-current assets for this purpose consist of property, plant and equipment, right of use assets, capital work-in-progress, intangible
assets and capital advances.

iii) Total assets

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within India 3,828.96 4,262.75
Outside India 547.48 487.19

Total 4,376.44 4,749.94




Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
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40 Particulars of the related parties:

Name of related party and nature of its relationship:

(a) Ultimate holding company - under de facto control as defined in IND-AS 110:
Rainbow Investments Limited

(b) Holding Company
PCBL Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "PCBL Limited" )

(c) Related parties where control exists:
Unconsolidated Subsidiaries

Aquapharm Foundation, India

(d) Key management personnel (KMP) of the Company :

Suresh Kalra Chief Executive Officer and Whole time director (With effect from 05 March 2025)
Ganesh Vishwanathan Chief Financial Officer (With effect from 06 February 2025)

Jayesh Damle Company Secretary and Compliance Officer (With effect from 06 February 2025)

Iram Hassan Non Executive Independent Directors (With effect from 17 December 2024)

Tharavanat Chandrasekharan Non-executive independent directors (With effect from 02 May 2024)

Kusum Dadoo Non-executive independent directors (With effect from 02 May 2024)

Mr. Gopal Rathi Additional Director (from 17 December 2024)

Mr. Kaushik Roy Additional Non-Executive Non-Independent Director (With effect from 27 March 2025)
Mr. Kaushik Mukherjee Additional Director (from 11 January 2024 to 27 March 2025)

Mr. Raj Kumar Gupta Additional Director (from 11 January 2024 to 27 March 2025)

(e) Other related parties under IND AS-24 "Related party disclosures" with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

PCBL (TN) Limited Company under common control
RPSG Resources Private Limited Company under common control




Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
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) Transactions during the year with the related partivs:-
i I

Nature of Transaction Subsidiaries tHolding Company KMmPp Other relited parties
CSR contribution 0.33 . .
(0153 £ : 0l
Remuneration to Key Managerial person - - 079 =
Reimbursement of expenses paid . 433
- (24.23) -
License fees - - 10.00
Sale of services 3.00
(1.00)
Interest received . 0.00 -
Loan given 200 E
Loan recovered 2.00
Issue of equity shares - 2,200.00 - 550.00
- (SO0} - {20,000
Issue of fully optionally covertible debentures - - - -
- (2,200.00) - (550.00)
Sitting fees - 002
Closing balances Subsidiaries Holding Company KMmP Other related parties
Other payable - 28.56 5 =
. (24.23) . .
Share capital - 2,280.00 - 570.00
- (80.00) - (20.00)
Optionally and Fully Convertible Debentures - - - <
(") - {2,200,00) : (354,00
Note: Previous year numbers are disclosed in brackets.
(g) Disclosure in respect of material related party transactions during the period:
Relationship For the year ended  For the period 11 January
31 March 2025 2024 to 31 March 2024
CSR Contributions
Aquapharm Foundation, India Subsidiary 0.33 015
Reimbursement of expenses paid
PCBL Chemical Limited Holding company 433 2423
License fees
RPSG Resources Private Limited Other related parties 10.00
Sale of services
PCBL (TN) Limited Other related parties 3.00 100
Interest received
PCBL Chemical Limited Holding company 0.00
Loan given
PCBL Chemical Limited Holding company 2.00
Loan recovered
PCBL Chemical Limiled Holding company 2.00
Issue of equity shares
PCBL Chemical Limited Holding company 2,200 80
PCBL (TN) Limited Other related parties 550 20
Issue of fully optionally covertible debentures
PCBL Chemical Limited Holding company i 2,200
PCBL (TN) Limited Other related parties - 350
Director's sitting fees
Iram Hassan KMP 0.01
Tharavanat Chandrasekharan KMP 0.01 -

*Amount below rounding off norms followed by the Company
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41 Earnings Per Share:
The following table shows the computation of basic and diluted EPS.
For the year 11th January, 2024

ended 31st March to
2025 31st March, 2024
a) Profit for the year attributable to the Owners of the (28.79) (28.36)
Parent Company (INR in Crores)
b) Weighted average number of equity shares (units) 41,64,38,356 8,70,98,765
¢) Basic and Diluted Earnings per share (in INR) (0.69) (3.26)

42 Corporate Social Responsibility
The Parent Company has spent an amount of INR 5.11 Crores (March 31, 2024: INR 0.63 Crores) during the year as required under section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The amount was spent by way of Donation to Aquapharm Foundation of INR 0.33 Crores (March 31, 2024: INR 0.15 Crores) for senior
citizens community center, INR 4.78 Crores (March 31, 2024 : Nil) towards construction of School Building and other CSR activities INR Nil (March 31, 2024:

INR 0.48 Crores) towards constructing village roads.

(a) Details of CSR expenditure:

For the year 11th January, 2024

ended 31st March to
2025 31st March, 2024

Amount required to be spent during the year 3.77 0.67
Amount spent during the year on:
(i) Construction / acquisition of an asset - -
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above

Brought forward from last year (4.78) 4.74)

Short fall for pervious year spent now 4.78 -

Spend during the year for current year 033 0.63

Carried forward to next year (short)/excess (3.44) (4.78)

Amount of cumulative shortfall at the end of the year (3.44) (4.78)

(b) Details of ongoing CSR projects under Section 135(6) of the Act:

Balance as at April 01, 2024 Amount spent during the year Balance as at March 31, 2025
With the company In separate CSR Account Amount required From the From Separate|With the company In Separate
to be spent company’s bank CSR  Unspent CSR Unspent
during the year  account account Account
- 4.78 3.77 0.33 4.78 3.44 -

The Parent Company has subsequently transferred the amount to a separate Unspent CSR Bank account on 29th April 2025.

(¢) Details of CSR expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act in respect of other than ongoing projects:

Balance as at April 01, 2024 Amount deposited in Specified Fund Amount Amount spent Balance
of Schedule VII of the Act within 6 required to be during the year unspent as at
months spent during 31 March 2025
the year
N.A.
(d) Details of excess/(short) CSR expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act

Balance excess/(short) spent as at 1 April 2024 Amount required to be spent during Amount spent Balance excess/

the year during the year  (short) spent as at
31 March 2025

(4.78) 3.77 511 (344)
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43 Financial Risk Management
Financial risk factors
The Group's activities exposes it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial
performance of the Group, derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts, Exchange Earners' Foreign
Currency Account are used to hedge certain foreign currency exposures. Derivatives are used exclusively for hedging purposes and not
as trading or speculative instruments. This note explains the sources of risk which the Group is exposed to and how the Group manages
the risk and the impact of hedge accounting on the financial statements.
The Group's risk management is carried out by the Group's treasury department under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The
treasury department identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risk. The Board provides written principles for overall risk management,
as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial
instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.
This note explains the Group's exposure to financial risks and how these risks could affect the Group's future financial performance.

(a) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

Market risk comprises of three types of risks: interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk.
Financial instruments affected by market risk mainly includes borrowings, financial assets and liabilities in foreign currency, investments
in quoted instruments and derivative financial instruments.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt
and derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant and on the basis of hedge designations
in place as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

i. Interest rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in interest rate primarily relates to the Group's debt obligations with floating

interest rates.

The Group is exposed to the interest rate fluctuation in domestic as well as foreign currency borrowings. The Group's main interest rate
risk arises from borrowings with variable interest rates, which exposes the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group tries to
manage its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate borrowings to the highest extent possible. The
Group may enter into borrowings at variable interest rates and swap them into fixed rates that are lower than those available if the
Group borrowed at fixed rate directly. During year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 the Group's borrowings at variable rates
were mainly denominated in INR, USD, EUR and SAR.

The exposure of the Group's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Variable rate 309.85 262.18
borrowings

Fixed rate borrowings 825.43 798.83
Total borrowings 1,135.28 1,061.01

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the interest rates on borrowings at variable interest

rate. With all the other variables held constant, the Group's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as
follows:

Increase/ Effect on profit
Decrease in before tax
Basis Points Decrease/
(increase)
March 31, 2025
Base Rate +50 1.55
Base Rate -50 (1.55)
March 31, 2024
Base Rate +50 131

Base Rate -50 (1.31)
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ii.Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group has international operations and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, primarily
with respect to the USD and EUR . Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised financial assets and
liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Group’s functional currency (INR). The Group measures its risk through a forecast of
highly probable foreign currency cash flows. The Group hedges its foreign exchange risk using forward exchange contracts. The objective
of the hedges is to minimise the volatility of the INR cash flows of highly probable forecast transactions.

The Group has a policy to keep minimum forex exposure on the books that are likely to occur within a 12-month period for hedges of
forecasted sales. As per the risk management policy, foreign exchange forward contracts are taken to hedge its exposure in the foreign
currency risk. During the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, the Group did not have any hedging instruments with terms
which were not aligned with those of the hedged items.

When a derivative is entered into for the purpose of hedge, the Group negotiates the terms of those derivatives to match the terms of the
underlying exposure. For hedges of forecast transactions, the derivatives cover the period of exposure from the point the cash flows of
the transactions are forecasted to the point of settlement of the resulting receivable that is denominated in the foreign currency.

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the year expressed in INR Crores are as follows:

March 31, 2025

Financial Assets USD EURO
Trade Receivables 73.89 10.75
Cash and cash equivalents 10.70 3.83

Derivative Assets
Foreign exchange forward contracts - -

Net Exposure to foreign currency risk 84.59 14.58
(Assets)

March 31, 2025

Financial Liabilities USD EURO
Borrowings 68.47 =
Trade Payables (Payables for purchase 64.36 6.83

of property, plant & equipment)

Net Exposure to foreign currency risk 132.83 6.83
(Liabilities)
Net Exposure to foreign currency risk (48.24) 7.75

(Assets (-) Liabilities)

March 31, 2024

Financial Assets UsSD EURO
Trade Receivables 90.51 17.55
Cash and cash equivalents 10.27 10.80

Derivative Assets

Foreign exchange forward contracts (41.69) (9.02)
Net Exposure to foreign currency risk 59.09 19.32
March 31, 2024

Financial Liabilities USD EURO
Bank Loan 29.18 -
Trade Payables (including Payables for 19.51 4.00
purchase of property, plant &

equipment

Net Exposure to foreign currency risk 48.68 4.00

Net Exposure to foreign currency risk 10.41 15.32
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Foreign currency sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD and EUR exchange rates, with all other variables

held constant. The impact on the Group's profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. The impact
on the Group’s pre-tax equity is due to changes in the fair value of forward exchange contracts designated as cash flow hedges. The
Group’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material. With all the other variables held constant, the
Group's profit before tax is affected through the impact on change of foreign currency rate as follows-

Change in USD Effect on profit GHEFERin Effect on profit
before tax/ pre- before tax/ pre-
rate ) Euro rate !
tax equity tax equity
March 31, 2025 +5% (2.41)/(2.41) +5% 0.39/0.39
-5% 241/2.41 -5% (0.39)/(0.39)
March 31, 2024 +5% 0.52/2.61 +5% 0.77/1.22
-5% (0.52)/(2.61) -5% (0.77y/(1.22)

iii. Security Price risk
Securities price risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market traded prices.

The Company invests its surplus funds in various debt instruments and equity instruments. These comprise of mainly liquid schemes of
mutual funds, short term debt funds & income funds (duration investments), certain quoted equity instruments and bank fixed deposits.
To manage its price risk arising from investments in mutual funds and equity instruments, the Company diversifies its portfolio. Mutual
fund and equity investments are susceptible to market price risk, mainly arising from changes in the interest rates or market yields which
may impact the return and value of such investments.

The Company’s exposure to securities price risk arises from investments in mutual funds and equity instruments held by the Company
and classified in the Balance Sheet as fair value through profit or loss is disclosed under Note 11.




Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Financial Risk Management

(b) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group
is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its investing activities, including
deposits with banks, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

i. Trade receivables

Credit risk arises from the possibility that customer will not be able to sell their obligations as and when agreed. To manage
this, the Group periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, current
economic trends, analysis of historical bad debts, ageing of accounts receivable and forward looking information. Individual
credit limits are set accordingly. General payment terms include advances and payments with a credit period ranging from
60 to 90 days. The Group has a detailed review mechanism of overdue customer receivables at various levels within the
organisation. The Group has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables based on provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted
for forward looking information. During the period, the Group made write-offs of INR Nil (31 March 2024 : Nil) with
respect to trade receivables and it does not expect to receive future cash flows or recoveries from collection of cash flows
previously written off. For expected credit loss, refer note 11.

The Group’s customer profile for customer contracts include large private corporates. Accordingly, the Group’s customer
credit risk is low. General payment terms include advances and payments with a credit period ranging from 30 to 180 days.
The Group has a detailed review mechanism of overdue customer receivables at various levels within the organisation to
ensure proper attention and focus for realisation and based on assessment performed management has concluded that
impact of expected credit loss is not material and current provision made against trade receivable is adequate to cover the
provision on account of expected credit loss. Refer note 11 for further details.

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Trade receivables is as follows :

Particulars March 31, 2025 |March 31, 2024
Opening balance 0.38 -
Loss allowance addition on account of scheme of amalgamation - 0.38
Charge / (reversal) in allowance during the period (net) (0.06) -
Loss allowance at the end of the period 0.32 0.38

ii. Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Group’s Treasury department in
accordance with the Group’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within
credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Group on an annual basis, and
may be updated throughout the year. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate
financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

Other financial assets that are potentially subject to credit risk consists of inter corporate loans. The Group assesses the
recoverability from these financial assets on regular basis. Factors such as business and financial performance of
counterparty, their ability to repay, regulatory changes and overall economic conditions are considered to assess future
recoverability. The Group charges interest on such loans at arms length rate considering counterparty's credit rating. Based
on the assessment performed, the Group considers all the outstanding balances of such financial assets to be recoverable as
on balance sheet date and no provision for impairment is considered necessary.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024
is the carrying amounts of each class of financial assets.
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(c) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may encounter difficulty in meeting its present and future obligations associated
with financial liabilities that are required to be settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group's objective is
to, at all times, maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral obligations. The Group requires funds
both for short term operational needs as well as for long term investment programs mainly in growth projects. The Group
closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It aims to minimise these risks by
generating sufficient cash flows from its current operations, which in addition to the available cash and cash equivalents,
liquid investments and sufficient committed fund facilities which will provide liquidity.

The liquidity risk is managed on the basis of expected maturity dates of the financial liabilities. The average credit period
taken to settle trade payables is about 30 - 180 days. The other payables are with short term durations. The carrying amounts
are assumed to be reasonable approximation of fair value.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted

payments:

Within 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years More than 5 years Total

As at 31st March 2025

Borrowings 311.64 47541 328.18 20.05 1,135.28
Trade Payables 226.96 - - - 226.96
Lease Liabilities 3.84 6.99 1.07 - 11.90
Other Financial Liabilities 181.70 - - - 181.70
Total 724.14 48240 329.25 20.05 1,555.84
As at 31st March 2024

Borrowings 212,72 298.67 549.62 - 1,061.01
Trade Payables 144.59 - - - 144.59
Lease Liabilities 3.50 7.07 3.98 - 14.55
Other Financial Liabilities 65.60 36.41 - - 102.01

Total 426.41 342,15 553.60 - 1,322.15
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Financial Risk Management
Hedge Accounting:

Foreign exchange forward contracts are designated as hedging instruments in cash flow hedges of highly probable forecast transactions for sales in
EURO and USD. The foreign exchange forward contract balances vary with the level of expected foreign cutrency sales and changes in foreign

exchange forward rates.
The terms of the foreign currency forward contracts match the terms of the expected highly probable forecast transactions. As-a result, no hedge

ineffectiveness arose requiring recognition through profit or loss as on 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.
The cash flow hedges for such derivative contracts as at March 31, 2024 were assessed to be highly effective and a net unrealised loss of INR 0.23
Crores, with a deferred tax asset of INR 0.05 Crores relating to the hedging instruments, is included in OCIL.

Impact of hedging activities
(a) Disclosure of effects of hedge accounting on financial position:

March 31, 2025
Types of hedge and Nominal Carrying Amount of  Maturity date Hedge ratio* Weighted  Changesin Change in the value
risks Value Hedging Instruments Average Strike fair value of of hedged item used
Price/Rate hedging as the basis for
instrument recognising hedge
effectiveness
Assets / (Liabilities)
Cash flow hedge
Foreign exchange risk
(i) Foreign exchange = - - = . 0.22 (0.22)
forward contracts
March 31, 2024
Types of hedge and Nominal Carrying Amount of  Maturity date Hedge ratio* Weighted  Changes in Change in the value
risks Value Hedging Instruments Average Strike fair value of of hedged item used
Price/Rate hedging as the basis for
instrument recognising hedge
effectiveness
Assets / (Liabilities)
Cash flow hedge
Foreign exchange risk
(i) Foreign exchange 41.69 (0.07)  Apr2024- 1:1 USD:INR- (0.24) 0.24
forward contracts Oct 2024 83.3739
(ii) Foreign exchange 9.02 0.02  Apr 2024- Aug 11 EUR:INR- 0.02 (0.02)
forward contracts 2024 90.2178

*The foreign exchange forward contracts are denominated in the same currency as the highly probable future sales therefore the hedge ratio is 1:1.

(b) Disclosure of effects of hedge accounting on financial performance

March 31, 2025
Type of hedge Change in the Value of Hedge ineffectiveness Amount reclassified from Line item affected in
hedging instrument recognised in profit orloss  cash flow hedging reserve  statement of profit
recognised in other to profit or loss and loss because of
comprehensive income the reclassification
Cash flow hedge

Foreign exchange risk - - 0.16 Other income
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March 31, 2024
Type of hedge Change in the Value of Hedge ineffectiveness Amount reclassified from Line item affected in
hedging instrument recognised in profit orloss  cash flow hedging reserve  statement of profit
recognised in other ; to profit or loss and loss because of
comprehensive income the reclassification
Cash flow hedge
Foreign exchange risk {0.06) - - Other income

The Group’s hedging policy requires for effective hedge relationships to be established. Hedge effectiveness is determined at the inception of the hedge
relationship and through periodic prospective effectiveness assessments to ensure that an economic relationship exists between the hedged item and
hedging instrument. The Group enters into hedge relationships where the critical terms of the hedging instrument match exactly with the terms of the
hedged item, and so a qualitative assessment of effectiveness is performed. If changes in circumstances affect the terms of the hedged item such that
the critical terms no longer match exactly with the critical terms of the hedging instrument, the Group uses the hypothetical derivative method to
assess effectiveness.

Ineffectiveness is recognised on a cash flow hedge where the cumulative change in the designated component value of the hedging instrument exceeds
on an absolute basis the change in value of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk. In hedges of foreign currency forecast sale may arise if:

- the critical terms of the hedging instrument and the hedged item differ (i.e. nominal amounts, timing of the forecast transaction, interest resets
changes from what was originally estimated), or

- differences arise between the credit risk inherent within the hedged item and the hedging instrument.

Refer Statement of changes in equity for the details related to movement in cash flow hedging reserve.

44 Fair value measurements
Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group's financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values as of the year end.

a) Financial Instruments by Category

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

FVTPL FVOCI Amortized FVTPL FVOCI Amortized Cost

Cost

Financial Assets
Investments - - 0.01 36.85 - 0.01
Trade receivables - - 311.47 - - 262.08
Cash and cash equivalents (including - - 74.52 - - 132.64
other bank balances)
Other financials assets - - 8.78 - = 5.13
Total financial assets - - 394.78 36.85 - 399.86
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 1,135.28 - - 1,061.01
Trade Payables - - 226.97 = - 144.59
Other financial liabilities (including - - 181.70 - 0.05 101.95

derivative intruments)

Total Financial Liabilities - - 1,543.95 - 0.05 1,307.54

b) Fair Value Hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are recognised and measured
at fair value. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial
instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.
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There are no financial instruments which are remeasured at fair value as on 31st March 2025. Accordingly, fair value measurement
hierarchy is not disclosed.

The following table presents the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's financial assets and liabilities as at March 31,
2024:

Fair value measurement

Quoted prices in active Significant Significant Total

markets observable inputs  unobservable inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial Assets
Investments 36.85 - - 36.85
Derivative Instruments- - 0.05 - 0.05
Foreign Exchange Forwards
Contracts

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
There have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3.

¢) Valuation technique used to determine fair value
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to

estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the quoted mutual funds and bonds are based on quoted price at the reporting date.

The fair values of the unquoted equity shares have been estimated using a DCF model. The valuation requires management to make
certain assumptions about the model inputs, including forecast of cash flows, discount rate, credit risk and volatility. The probabilities
of the various estimates within the range can be reasonably assessed and are used in management’s estimate of fair value for these
unquoted equity investments.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with financial institutions with investment grade credit ratings. Foreign
exchange forward contracts are valued using valuation techniques, which employs the use of market observable inputs. The most
frequently applied valuation techniques include forward pricing model, using present value calculations. The models incorporate
various inputs including the credit quality counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates, yield curves of the respective
currencies, currency basis spread between the respective currencies, interest rate curves etc. The changes in counterparty credit risk
had no material effect on the hedge effectiveness assessment for derivatives designated in hedge relationships and other financial
instruments recognised at fair value.

d) Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balance, loans, other investments, trade receivables, trade
payables, other financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments. The management has further assessed that borrowings availed and loans given approximate their carrying amounts
largely due to the interest rates being variable or in case of fixed rate borrowings/loans, movements in interest rates from the
recognition of such financial instrument till period end not being material.
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Capital Management

a) Risk Management:

For the purpose of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, issued optionally convertible debentures
and all other equity reserves attributable to the shareholders of the Group. The primary objective of the Group's capital management
is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating, healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder
value and optimal capital structure to reduce cost of capital.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by total capital. The Group's policy is to keep the gearing ratio optimum. The Group includes within net debt interest
bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents excluding discontinued operations.

The net debt to equity ratio for the current year increased from 34% to 39% as a result of increase in the working capital borrowing
which has resulted in increase in borrowings as at year end.

Asat As at
31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Long Term Borrowings (including current maturities of long term debt) 1,013.60 1,028.50
Short Term Borrowings 140.47 55.60
Less: Cash and Cash equivalents and other bank balances (74.52) (132.64)
Net Debt 1,079.55 951.46
Equity share capital 2,850.00 100.00
Instruments entirely equity in nature - 2,750.00
Other equity (57.38) (32.56)
Total equity 2,792.62 2,817.44

Net debt to equity ratio 39% 34%
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Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Scheme of Amalgamation and Business combination

Scheme of Amalgamation

The Board of Directors of Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
(“Transferee Company”) and the Board of Directors of Aquapharm Chemicals Private Limited (“ACPL” or “Transferor
Company”), a wholly owned subsidiary of ACL, at their respective meetings held on 1st August 2024 approved the
Scheme of Amalgamation of ACPL with the Parent Company and their respective shareholders under Section 233 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Scheme”). Since, ACPL was a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Parent Company no consideration was issued pursuant to the Scheme.

The Central Government through the Regional Director, Western Region, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“Regional
Director”) vide order dated 06th December 2024 approved the Scheme. The Order was filed with ROC on 1st January
2025, which was also considered as the effective date in terms of the Scheme (“Effective Date”) and consequently ACPL
stands amalgamated with the Parent Company and ACPL ceased to exist as a separate entity.

The aforesaid amalgamation has been accounted in the books of accounts of the Parent Company pursuant to the
‘pooling of interests method’ in accordance with Appendix C of Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations in the current
year ended 31 March 2025.

Pursuant to aforesaid amalgamation and consequent change in tax base of the assets, deferred tax liability of INR
554.20 crores is reversed through statement of profit and loss.

The Parent Company had further performed impairment assessment of goodwill arisen on acquisition of ACPL and has
accounted for impairment loss of INR 554.72 crores based on valuation done by external valuer (refer note 5a). The
impairment assessment was triggered by aforesaid reversal of deferred tax liability and consequent increase in Cash
Generating Unit, on account of amalgamation.

The aforesaid reversal of deferred tax liabilities and impairment of goodwill have been recognised as Exceptional items
in the consolidated financial statements during the year ended 31 March 2025.

Business Combinations

The Board of Directors of Holding Company (PCBL Chemical Limited), at it's meeting held on 28 November 2023, in-
principle approved the acquisition of 212,172 shares of Aquapharm Chemicals Private Limited. Post approval, the
Company, Aquapharm Chemical Limited, formerly known as Advaya Chemical Industries Limited (“ACL” or " the
Company") had made acquisition of 212,172 shares of Aquapharm Chemicals Private Limited (“ACPL"), for an
aggregate consideration of INR 3,851.49 crores (subject to agreed adjustments) representing 100% of the issued and paid-
up share capital of ACPL (“Transaction”). In furtherance of such approval, the Holding Company executed a share
purchase agreement dated 28 November 2023 (“SPA”) with ACPL, and shareholders of ACPL, for undertaking the
Transaction, subject to inter alia obtaining all necessary approvals and fulfilment of other customary conditions, as per
the terms and conditions specified in the SPA.

The transaction was financed through a mix of internal accruals and external funds raised by the Holding Company
and/or its affiliates.The Holding Company along with its Wholly Owned Subsidiary [ PCBL (TN) Limited ] invested
INR 2,850.00 crores, comprising of Optionally Convertible Debenture of INR 2,750.00 crores and Equity Shares of INR
100.00 crores in the Company. The Company has also obtained external funding to the extent of INR 1,000.00 crores
which includes non-convertible debenture of INR 550.00 crores. The proceeds of the non-convertible debenture have
been fully utilised before 31 March 2024, for acquisition of shares of ACPL. Moreover, the funds received from Holding
Company and its Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company have been fully utilised for acquisition of shares of ACPL. The
acquisition of ACPL was completed on 31 January 2024. Pursuant to the acquisition, the Group has provisionally
recognised identifiable assets (tangible and intangible) acquired and liabilities assumed as at acquisition date at fair
value amounting to INR 3,260.12 crores, deferred tax liabilities of INR 569.92 crores on fair value gain on assets
acquired and consequent goodwill amounting to INR 1,161.29 crores in accordance with Ind AS 103 “Business
Combination”.




Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")

Notes forming part of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Business Combinations - continued

(a) Purchase consideration

As per the SPA, the group owns 100% stake in ACPL. The total purchase consideration of INR 3,851.49 Crores has been recorded in the

consolidated financial statements as at period end.

Identified Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The fair value of the identified assets acquired and liabilities assumed as at date of acquistion, 31 January 2024, were:

Assels J\nmunlgl
Property, plant & equipment 452.72
Computer software 1.05
Customer-related intangibles (Refer Note a below) 1,710.80
Product-related intangibles (Refer Note a below) 467.80
Capital work in progress 100.70
Right of use assets 68.40
Investments 36.34
Other non-current financial assets 450
MNon current tax assets (net) 4.14
Other non-current assets 20.85
Inventories 283.95
Trade receivables (Refer Note b below) 27191
Cash and cash equivalents 103.01
Other bank balances 15.03
Other current financial assets 2.32
Other current assets 33.53
Total (A) 3,577.05
Liabilities
Borrowings 73.75
Lease liabilities 15.10
Defered tax liabilities (net) (Refer Note ¢ below) 596.80
Trade payables 165.02
Other current financial liabilities 19.23
Provisions 11.10
Other current liabilities 11.01
Tatal (B) 892.01
Non-controlling interests (C) 5.16
Fair value of net assets acquired (D) =(A) - (B) + (C) 2,690.20
Total purchase consideration (E) 3,851.49
Goodwill arising out of business combination (F) = (E -D) 1,161.29
Purchase consideration Amounts
Purchase consideration 3,851.49
Less : Purchase consideration payable [ Refer Note 24 | 41.03
Less : Discounting impact on purchase consideration (0.52)
Total purchase consideration paid 3,810.98
Purchase consideration - cash outflow Amounts
Total purchase consideration paid 3,810.98
Less: balance acquired

Cash and cash equivalents 103.01
Net cash outflows- payment towards acquisition of a subsidiary 3,707.97
acquired in a business combination

From the date of acquisition, Aquapharm Chemicals Private Limited (consolidated) has contributed revenue from operation of INR 239.08 Crores
and profit before tax of INR 2276 Crore to the profit before tax of the Group. If the combination had taken place at the beginning of the year
revenue from operations would have been INR 1,553.63 Crores and the profit before tax for the Group would have been INR 117.95 Crores.

Notes :
a The determination of the fair value of customers related intangible assets and product-related intangible assets is based on discounted cash flow
method. Key assumptions on which the management has based fair valuation includes estimated long-term growth rates, weighted average cost of
capital, estimated operaling margin and customer churn. The Cash flow projections take into account past experience and represent the
management’s best estimate about future developments. Useful life taken by the management for depreciation of customers related intangible is 25
years and product-related intangibles is 20 years.
Represents net of provision for doubtful debts of INR 0.38 Crores.
¢ Includes impact of deferred tax adjustment amounting to INR 569.92 Crores on fair value gain, arising on business combination adjusted in
Goodwill as per Ind AS- 12 Income Taxes.
The goodwill comprises the value of expected synergies arising from the acquistion which is not separately recognised.
e Refer Note 37 for Contingent Liabilities




Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Notes forming part of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Research And Development Expenses

The Group's business research and development concentrates on the development of improved finished goods and better operational
efficiency. Research costs are expensed as incurred. Expenditure on development that does not meet the specified criteria under Ind AS 38
'Intangible Assets' is recognised as expense as incurred.

Particulars For the year ended 31st March 2025 11th January, 2024 to 31st March, 2024
Pune, India USA Total Pune, India USA Total

Raw Materials & Stores Consumed - 0.99 0.99 - 0.43 0.43
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 7.43 7.70 1513 1.10 114 2.24
Contribution to Provident and Other 0.35 0.35 0.05 - 0.05
Funds

Staff Welfare Expense 0.02 E 0.02 0.00 - 0.00
Miscellaneous Expenses 4.26 - 4.26 1.38 - 1.38
Total 12.06 8.69 20.74 2.53 1.57 4.10
Capital expenditure 0.38 0.07 0.45 0.01 - 0.01
Grand Total 12.44 8.76 21.19 2,54 1.57 411




Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")
Noles forming part of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts are in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

49 Disclosure for Non-Controlling Interests

This information is based on amounts before inter-company eliminations
Financial information of subsidiarics that have material non-controlling interests is provided below:

Proportion of equity interest held by non-controlling interests (NCI):

Name of the Company Principal activity Effective ownership as on Effective ownership as on Country of
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 Incorporation
Unique Solutions for Chemical Manufacturing of Chemicals 5.00% 15.00% Saudi Arabia

Industries Company (USCI)

Summarised Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025:

Parliculars For the year ended 31st 11th January, 2024 to
March 2025 31sl March, 2024

USCI USCI
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to NCT (0.35) (0.42)
Other comprebensive Income attributable to NCI (0.15) (0.02)
Summarised balance sheet as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024:
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As al 31st March 2024

USCI USCI
Accumulated NCI (2,05} {3.60)

50 Code on Social Security, 2020

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the Group towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The draft rules for the Code
on Social Security, 2020 have been released by the Ministry of Labour and Employment on November 13, 2020. The Group is in the process of assessing the additional impact on Provident
Fund contributions and on Gratuity liability contributions and will complete their evaluation and give appropriate impact in the financial statements in the period in which the rules are

notified become effective.

51 Additional regulatory information required by Schedule III:

i

5!

Relationship with Struck off Companies:

The Group has no transaction with the Companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956,

i Ulilisation of borrowed funds:

The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person or entity, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

—

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries), or
b, provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries;
The Group has not reccived any fund from any person or entity, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the entity

shall:

i directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries), or

ii. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

i The Parent Company have used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the sofiware. Further no instance of audit trail fealure being tampeied with was noted in respect of the accounting software.
Additionally, the audit trail of prior year has been preserved by the Parent Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention to the extent it was enabled and recorded in the

respective years.

N

Subscriptions and donations
The Company has contributed INR 9.50 Crores (31 March 2024 : INR 10.00 Crores) to an electoral trust under section 182 of the Companies Act, 2013,

53 The Company was incorporaled on 11th January, 2024 and hence the comparative information relevant to previous year has been furnished for the period from 11th January 2024 to 31st March

2024. Accordingly, the figures of the comparative period ended 31st March 2024 are not comparable to the current year ended 3Ist March 2025.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

For L B Jha & Co
Chartered Accountants Aquapharm Chemical Limited (Formerly known as

Firm Registration No.: 301088E "Advaya Chemical Industries Limited")

D.N.Roy Suresh Kalra anesh Vishwanathan
Partner CEO and Whole time Director Chief Financial Officer
Membership No.: 300389 DIN: 02833715 ;

Place: Kolkata

Date: 23rd April, 2025 C < /
v QB*:)

Gopal Rathi - . Jayesh Damle
Director Company Secretary
DIN: 00553066

Date: 23rd April, 2025
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